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Multiplex is a fully integrated
property business with
operations throughout
Australia, New Zealand, the
Middle East and the United
Kingdom. We develop,

build, manage and own
property adding value for
securityholders at each stage
of the property cycle.

Ao

Artist impression of
Macquarie Bank offices,
King Strest Wharf,
Sydnay



Multiplex Group (MXG)

A Muitiplex Group stapled security
comprises a unit in the Trust and

a share in the Company. Securities
trade under the code MXG on
the Australian Stock Exchange.

Multipiex Developments

Construction -
Multipiex Construct:ons

Property Funds Management
Multiptex Capitat

25 investment grade assets

Four investmentsin .
Midtiplex Capital managed funds
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Multiplex Developments

Muliiplex is an established property
developer with an impressive giobal
development portfolio valued on
complation at approximately $16 bifion.
Oy development projects are spread
across Ausiralia, New Zealand and the
United Kingdom and span the following
property sectors: commercial and
industrial, master planned communities
and land, meiti-residential and retafl,







Muitiplex Constructions

Ovear four decades Multiplex has
esiablished a reputation as one of
Australia’s premier builders with

an impressive rack record in the
succassil delivery of major projects.
Muttiplex aisc has firmly esiablished
operations in the Middle Fast, the
United Kingdom and New Zealand.
Complementing the Property
Development division, Multiplex
Consiructions is currently undertaking
projects with a construction value of
approxdimately 36 billion.
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Multiplex Facilities Management
Multiplex Facilities Management
provides an integrated range of faciliies
and property management services

o Multiplex and fo a diverse range

of public and private clients across a
range of property sectors. The division
currently has 100 confracts under
management with an average duration
of more than nine years.







Multiplex Capitat

Muttiplex Capital is the Property Funds
Management division within the Group,
managing Multiplex Property Trust

and a varisty of listed and uniisted
property funds. Total funds under
management are $5.9 bilior and
provide the Group with quality recurring
income from property ownership and
management faes.




Results in Brief
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$ bilion $ rrition $ bifion

Multiplex Group results® 30 June 2006 30 June 2005
Total revenues {bm) 3176.6 33095
Total revenues and other income ($m) 37955 35711
Net profit after tax attributable 1o stapled securityhoiders (3my' 216.8 843
Farnings per security {cernts) 20,9 117
Total distributions payable per security {cents) 26.5 29.8
Net assets (m) 3,1680.1 31363
Net tangible asset backing per stapled security including SITES) {($) 3.39 3.35
Net tangible asset backing per stapled security lexcluding SITES; () 2.84 2.82
Interest bearing debt o total assets (%) 36.8 351
Nat interest bearing debt to fotal assets (%6} 303 30.8
Waighted average number of securities on issue (milliory B37.4 722.6
Number of sacurities on issug (million) B37.4 8374

Notes:




Group net profit after tax attributable
to securityholders of $216.8 million
was negatively impacted by after

tax losses on the Wembley project.
The Wembley losses of $255 million
were offset by fair valuation
adjustments (FVAs) of $227.7 million
in respect of the Group’s and
associates’ investment properties.

Distributions per security of
25.5 cents were broadly in line with
earnings per security of 25.9 cents.



Year in Review

Multiplex Group Proparty Trust Erroperty Fung

- Muliplex Group financial results in - Con‘mbutaoﬂ to sarnings before — Contribution to EBIT of $53 8 mﬂhon
brief are ocutined on pages 14 and interest and tax EBIT of with an increase in base management
15 of this report $446.5 million and fransaction fees

— Aloss of 8384 million before tax - Strong revaluations resulted in gains - Sale of Sapphire Retail Fund realised
or the Wembiley project had a of $227.7 million from investment a 327 midllion profit
material impact on the Group result properties and associates - Funds under management grew fo

— Succsssiul rationalisation of the - 99% occupancy, up from 93% in $5.9 biion from $5.5 bilion in 2005
Duelguide portfolio including many June 2005 — Launch of the 3640 milion Mulliplex
Frature Non-core assets - 119 new or renewed leases totaling Acumen Prime Property Fund

- Strong revaiuation gains from rust 85,838sqm - Istablishment of first land syndication
investment properties with an overal - 675 direct tenants and 1,425 including at Vale in Western Australia
increase of 12.7% squity investment properties — Acquisition of eight commercial and

- Continued growth of funds - Blue-chip tenant base with a weightad retall assets by the unlisted Multiplex
management business with organic average lease expiry of 5.4 years New Zealand Property Fund
growth within existing funds and - Three Multipiex Capital managed - Strong performance from managed
origination of new product, with funds delivered an average total reiurn funds with a weighied average total
Multiplex Acumen Prime Property of 28.4% in Y2006 return of approxdmately 27%
fund and Multiplex Acumen Vale
Syndicate

— New construction awards of
$2.9 billion during the year with
average margins excluding Wemblay
maintained at historical average

- Three major lease pre-commitments
for 70,000sqm of commercial office
developments in Sydney secured
having a gross development value of
circa $640 miflion

37 % miflion % milion

o: Y] 53.8
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T éf S1 00.0 milion - Net ioss before interest and tax of — Contribution fo

BIT of 7.4 million

— 54 projects with a gross development $319.8 million was fargely as a resuft — 22% increase in number of contracts
value of approximately $16 bilion of losses sustained by the Wemblay to 100

— Suceessiul conclusion of the non-core . project — Average contract duration exceading
asset disposal program in the UK with - Average gross project margin during nine years
the divestment of maiure assets FY2006 of 4.9% lexcluding Wembley}  — Secured a 25-year contract for the

— Successiul delivery of Southern Cross - 36 current projects with a total Melbourne Convention Centre, a
98% leased to the Trust contract value of $8.1 bifion 10-year contract for Parramatta

— Substantial lease pre-commiiments - Successfully completed 25 major Justice Frecinct in Sydrey and
secured from American Express, projects valued at 2.5 bilion an 18-year contract for Centrelink
Macquarie Bank and Australian - Replenishad portfolio by securing Headquarisrs in Canberra
Taxation Office for three new office 18 new major contracts at a total — Secured a three-year security
buitdings in Sydney value of $2.9 billion management contract for the AP

— Achieved important planning - 50% growth in portfolio contract value leased portfalio nationally
approvals across all sectors enabling in the Middle East during the period — Renewed a second major Defence
new developments to commence - More disciplined approach to risk contract in Sydney for a fiveyear

— Re-weighted portfolio with a bias management and project selection pariod
towards the cormmercial and land - Voted National Commercial Builder
sectors of the Year by the Master Builders

Association of Australia

FE 8B million

54 43.1 o [100.2]
i 100.0 5 -319.5 G 7.4




Chairman’s
Report

The aggregated Group profit
attributabie to securityholders for
the year ended 30 June 2006 was
$216.8 million, after tax, minority
inferests and stapling eliminations.

As has been widely reported, the
Group's result was negatively impacted
by the Wembley oroject which
contributed a loss of $364 milion
befora tax for the year under review.
An overview on the posiion of this
project has been provided on page

44 of this report. In December 2005,
we made provisions for possible
Houidated damagss at Wembley and
made further allowances for additional
costs associated with any unforeseen
program delays through o compietion.
While there are still risks associated
with the Wembley project, we believe
that the provisicning that has been
made will be adequate.

At the time of writing this report the
work at Wembley has been substantially
cormpiatad with most of the remalining
work the responsibility of the client,
Wamisiey National Stadium Umited

AMNSL).

It is unfortunate that the Wambley
project is masking a more than
satisfactory resuli from ather divisions
of the Comgpany.

Multiplex Property Trust made a solid
contribution of $446.5 milion to the
Group's result. This inciudes profits on
the sale of invesiment properties of

$27 milion and revaluations made in
compliance with AFRS of $227.7 million.
Distributions fotalling 25.5 cents per
security have been made by the Trust for
the year to 30 June 2606,

The Trust’s property portiolio continues
0 perform strongly and is currenty
99% occupied with a weighted average
lease expiry of more than six years.
Mudticlex Capital had an excelieni year
delivering a strong performance from its
suite of funds and launching a number
of new products. The Chisf bxecutive's
Report provides further detalls on the
operational performance of each of the
business divisions,

Curing the year gl at Multiplex were
saddened at the death of its Founding
Chalrman, Mr John Roberts AQL John
inspired and led the Company over
four decades and under his leadarship,
Muiticlex became one of Australia's
largest builders changing the skyling of
the capital cities across Australia, His
energy, experience and conribution will
e missed by all of us. A summary of
John's achievements can be found on
the following pages.

At the 2005 Annual General Meeting
Fwas able to welcome Mr James
fuckey 1o the Board as an additional
independent direcior. As well as his
confribition 1 the Group, Mr Tuckey
addressed himself particularty to the
Urited Kingdom and given the strength
of his input it was considared fo be in the
best interests of the Company for him
10 be appoinied to the executive rofe of
Chairman of Multiplex’s UK operations.

in January 2006 Mr Bob Mckinnon
was appointed as an Ixecutive Director
and Chisf Financial Officer. We consider
ourselves fortunate to have attracted a
CFO of the calibre of Bob MckKinnon.

13

1
Grosvenor House
Hoted, Bubai

2
Raffies, Perth
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The changes to the Board

composition during the year have
resulted in the Group having a Hoard

of four independent directors and

five executive directors. We are
conscious that this does not meet the
recommendations of the ASX Principles
of Good Corporate Covernance and we
are committed to correcting this so as
o be in full compliance.

Bespite the difficulties at Wemibiay,

the Group’s balance sheet remains
strong. The Group's cutlock is scund
with strong pipelines of work within our
active businessaes.

{ would ke 1o record the appreciation
of the independent directors of our
execulives and staff in what has been
a challenging yaar.

b ".'_:Jf; . d
i’ & ‘%mm

Allan McDonald
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it is with deep regret that we advise that
after a long iliness Mr John Roberts
AD, Executive Director and Founding
Chairman of Multiplex passed away

in Perth on 8 June 2006, He was

73 years old.

John was born in Melbourme on

23 January 1933 and educated at
Guiidiord Grammar School, Western
Ausiralia. He went into the building
trade straight from school, and founded
Muttiplex in Parth, Wasterm Australia,

in 1962, building it info one of Australia's
most prominent businesses.

John inspired and led Multiplex in s
pursult of excellence over 40 years,
taking pride as it became one of
Ausiralia’s biggest builders, achieving
international exposure and acclaim. The
skylines of Parth, Sydney, Melbourms,
Brisbans, Adefaide, Auckland, Dubai
and London are testament to his
succass and vision,

John was very proud to be a part of
the Construction industry in Australia
counting his peers to be equal to
any in the world. He was a pioneer

It the Industry forging relationships
with industry bodies, introducing
new construction techniques and
contract forms and developing the
subcontractor operating model. MHe
was extremely dedicated and driven
and under his leadership Muftiplex
prospered and deliverad over 400
high-rise towers, enough apartmenis
to accommodate a small city and
countless other projects of alt shapes
and sizes.

He was particularly proud thatin a
cyclical industry, the company he
founded had siood the test of ime.
From humble beginnings, Multiplex
grew strongly and resiliently through
a number of property cycles that saw
many competitors fall by the wayside.
John always balieved Muliplex was its
people, and he attributed Multiplex’s
succass to thelr quality and thelr
commitment to the construction and
property industry. This will be one of
John's greatest legacies.

John's commitment 1o his people was
rewardsd with a family of loyal staf{
many of whom served with Muftiplex
for more than 30 years. This ioyaity
and respect was further evidenced

by the 1,500 staff that atiended his
memotial service in person or by
video conference.

In 1988 John was awarded an Order
of Australia for his contribution to

tha Construction and Horse Racing
industries. His contribution to the
Construction industry was widsly
acknowledged, and was recognised
by the Australian Construciors'
Association in 1999 when ha recaived
a L#etime Achievement Award.

John had an extracrdinary iife. He
was deeply passicnate about his
family, about Mauliiplex and about the
Construction industry. His energy and
anthusiasm al=zo extendad to a diverse
range of personal interests including
horse racing, farming, cricket, boating
and traveling.

John was a former Chairman and
iifelong member of the West Australian
Turf Club and actively promotad the
horse racing industry in Perth and
throughout Australia, He had wortd
class facilities and more than 100
racehorses at his home in Fgerton.

John's innovative nature alsc extended
to the farming industry. His maerine
stud farm, The Grangs in Perth, is
acknowledged as an industry leader,
pioneering new sclentific approaches
to breeding and producing some of
tha finest rams in the country. John
was an avid nature fover planting more
than a million trees at Bgerton and
building a haven for Ausiralian fauna
and exotic birds.

John was a caring and compassionate
person, a larger than Bfe charactar
with a great sense of humour, He was
trermendously loyal and demonstirated
total integrily in business dealings. His
passion and his deep understanding
of people, property markets and
Australian hertage will be greatly
missed by all at Mulipiex.

ERE
John Chartes Roberts was born in Melbourms
o Charles Roberts and Gwendolyn Barry

John founded Multiplex (named after a rapidly
sprgading cactos) with £10 of souity.

His first jobts was to build an effluent pipeline
aoross the Bunbury Estuary

i
He married Angela Egerton-Warburion
(2]l thrae of their children hold executive
pasitions in Muktipiex)

v
Johr is awarded the Quesn’s Siver Jubiles
Wiedal for his service to the Construction
indestry

Wultiptex established an office in Sydney

£

E't 5
Multiplex expanded throughout Australia
and in South East Asia

i3
John is awarded the prestigious Crder
of Australia for his contribution 1o the
Construction and Horse Facing industries
#1453

ERv LN
Miltiplex diversified into Property Development

PEEUR
Multipfex expanded inlo the Middle East
and Europe

TR
hultipfex established its Faciliies Managerment
business

John s awarded & Uletime Achieverment Award
for fis services o the Construclion industry by
tha Australian Constructars’ Association

i

HERE
hultipfex established its Funds Managamernt
business

PR

John appoints Andrew Roberts as Chief
Exacutive of Multiplesx

HEREL

Multipfex Group listed on the Australian Btock
Exchange with a market capitaisation of over
$3 bitlion with John as Chairman of the Multiplex
Group Board

HERER

John steps down as Chairrran of the Multiphesx
Group Board and rernaing an Exscutive Director
HEA

B June 2006 ~ John passed away at his Egerton
home in Perth

Avgust 2006 - Johin had accepted an invitation
f0 be honoured as the inavgural “icon” of the
WA property industry by the Property Souncil
of Australia.
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Sydney



Chief Executive’s Report

it has been another challenging year
for Multiplex Group with significant
managament challenges presented
by the deterioration of the financiat
position of the Wembiley project.
While the difficulties at Wembley have
been extremsly disappointing, | am
pleased to report that there has been
no material change in relation to the
financlat position of the Wembley
project in the second half of 2006.

The financial position of the Group has
bsen greatly strengthened over the
last six months. We have improved our
cash position and introduced balance
sheet flexibliity that will enable us o
reinvest into the business. Putting
Wembley aside, there were a large
numier of achievements across the
Group during the period and there

are scund prospects across all the
operating divisinns and posm\i@
momentum withir the business.

Financial performance

Muttiplex Group recorded a nat profit
after tax (NPAT) atiributable 1o stapled
securityholders of $216.8 million for the
vear ended 30 June 2008 comparad
to $84.3 million in 2005, The result has
been prepared for the first time under
AIFRS, The result included a loss in
respect of Wambley of $255 mifion
after tax and fair value adjustments

of 2677 milion. If adjusted for those
two ftems, the underlying NFPAY of

the business was slightly over $200
miliion. The fair valuation adjustments
are reflective of vary strong revaluation
gains in the Trust investment properties
of around 12.7%, reflecting the quality
of the Multiplex Property frust portiolio.

Net assels increased by approximately
%24 million over the year 1o $3.16 billion,
and net tangible assets also increased
slightly 1o $2.84 per security from
$2.82. Aggregated Group Earnings

per Seclrity after tax were 259 cents.
Full Year distributions per security were
25.5 cents comprising two distributions
from the Trust and no dividend from
the Company.

Mult&piex Limited
B Ee}. longe “x.ii'\.
Fh@ Property Developm@nt division
confributed earmings before interest
and tax of $100.0 million to the overal
Group result, on external revenus of
$417.4 million.

The division’s result for the year
included profits of $37.2 millon

from the divestiment of various UK
assets. These profits were offset by
$35.3 milion inventory valuation write-
downs and project cost write-offs.
The raduction in inventory valuation
reflects weaker inner-city residential
market conditions particutarly in
Sydnay, while the cost write-offs relate
to previcusly approved residential and
strata development schemas that were
changed to commercial development
schemes in order to capitalise on the
strong commercial property market in
Australia.

S TErTe
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Key activitias for the division during
the year included:

- Lease pre-commitments baing

achieved for three new buildings at
King Straet Wharf {(Sydney} and World
Square {Sydney) {0 be delivered over
tha next three years for American
Express, Macquarie Bank and the
Australian Taxation Office;

- The comgletion of three mufti-

residential projects being Rafflas
{Perth), The Chancsilor (Sydney} and
Laksiand’s Villas (Gold Coast);
Progress on a further three multi-
residential projects which are currently
pre-selling. Subject to demand,
consiruction on these projects is
expectad 1o commence this vear;

The comgpletion of Stage 1 of the

Vale master planned community in
Western Australia, with all fots sold.
Strong pre-sales of the Newport Quays
master planned community in Adelaide
allowed construction fo commencs;
Planning approval being received for
two retall centres during the year, and
the retail development asset base
being expanded with the acquisition

of Wilsonion Shopping Centre
{Toowoombay;

23

Construction commenced on the

3720 million Eden retall development

at High Wycombe, north of London, in
which Multiplex has a 50% interest; and
Flanning Approval was secured for
Casile House, a residenilal fower in
Central London.

Al June 2006 the gross development
vatue of the UK development pipeline
remained refatively unchanged from
June 2005 at $9.3 billion, whist

the value of the Australian portfolio
had increased from $5.1 Hilion o
%6.6 bilion.

Conalr
The Construction division contributed
a loss before interest and tax of
$319.8 milion to the overall Group

rasult. External revenus was
$2.468.0 milion.

As widely reported, the Construction
division's overall resull has been
materially affected by additional
losses of 3364.3 milion before tax
incurred in respect of the Wembley
project. This result is unchanged from
Becemnber 2005.

Buring the year, the Construction
division completed 25 major projecis
valted at $2.5 billion and continued

to raplenish its workbook, securing

18 major new contracis at a total

valte of $2.9 bilion. At June 2006 the
division's portfciio included 36 projects
with a total contract value in excess

of $8 bilion. The portfoiio is 52%
complete and achieving overall margins
consistsnt with historical norms.

LI
PRy

in the UK, Wembley Stadium is nearing
completion with remaining works
primarily related to the building's
commissioning and handover, An
important part of these works is the
responsibiity of WNSL. The Group is
focusing on pursuing recovery of our
entiflernents from third parties. During
the year, the Group was successful

in its case against the formar steet
subcontractor at Wembley, the financial
outcome of which will be decided at

a further hearing in the first guarter of
2007 unless agreed beforehand.



The remaining key activities during ihe
yaar for the division were:

- The complstion of Scuthern Cross
{Metbourne; for the Trust Freshwater
Place {Metbourne) - the second largest
residential project in Melboume's
history; Raffles (Perth} —a fuxury
residential compiex, Riparian Plaza
and Fastival Towers (Brisbane);

DIFC —The Gate and Phase 1 of the
Hurf Residences {Dubal), and The
Knightsbridge {London) - recognised
as one of London's most prestigious
new residential developments,

The securing of a number of new
contracts including Melourme
Convention and Exhibition Centre
{Metbourne); Parramatta Justice
Pracinct (Sydney), 538 Bourke

Street (Melbourney, Syivia Park Mali
{Auckland); The Index {Dubai) — an
8f-storey multi-use building; and Fden
Shopping Centre (Southern Englandj;
and

Continued progress by Multiplex
Fngineering on two projects being the
Parth Desalination Plant and the Moma
Mingral Sands processing plant.

[
SR

The Facilities Management division
contributed sarnings before interest
and tax of $7.4 million o the overall
Group result.

During the year the division increased i#s
number of contracts by 22% from 82 fo
100. The average term of these confracis
exceads nine years. The new contracts
include a 10-year facilities management
contract for the new Parramatta Justice
Precinct, an 18-year contract for
Certrelink Headouarters {Canberva) and
a 25-year contract for the Melbourme
Convertion and Exhibition Ceritre.

P Y
iR Pt

Progerty Py
This division contributed eamings
before interest and tax of $53.8 milion
to the overal Group result. Of these
earnings, 49% related o the
management of its growing portiolio
of funds under management, and

the remainder of $27.2 million related
to profit on the sale its interest in the
Sapphire Retall Fund in the UKL

The key activities during the year
included:

- Growing total funds under managemenit

(FUM) to $5.9 billion (2005 $5.5 biflion),
after allowing for the sale of the

$0.7 bilion Sapphire Retal Fund;

The launch of a new $6840 milion
Australian Office Fund (MAPPE), to

be listed in Septemibzer 2006. This
fansaction was a major milestone

in the growth of external FUM and
represents a showcasing of Muliiplex's
integrated property business model;
and

The launch of Muitiplex Acumen Vaie
Syndicate in Weastern Australia.

Multiplex Property frust

The Trust performed strongly during the
year and contributed earnings bsefore
interest of $446.5 milion to the overal
Group result (2005 $126.0 million),

in accordance with Group policy,

ail investment properties were
independently fair valued duing the
year and Trust earnings included fair
value adjustments of $227.7 million

in respect of its investment properties
and the investment properties of

its associates.

Ciring the year the Trust has:

Improved ocoupancy 1o 99%;

Achieved a tenant retention rale of 95%
by area, with 119 naw and renswed
leases complated in respect of more
than 85,000sgm;

Concluded 433 rent reviews in respect
of 340,000sgm or 43% of the portiolio’s
net lettable area, at an average increase
of 3.9%;

Achisved an average total return of
28.4% from its equity invesiments in
Muitigiex managed funds;

Sold Geoidfields House at a profit to the
Trust of $26.6 milion, and

The weighed average lease term {by
income) across the Trust's portfolio

is now B.4 years, compared to the
industry average for office lisied
property trusts of five years.

1

Freshwater Place,
Melbeurne

2

Artist impression
of Eden,

High Wycombe,
UK
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Outlook
Thea Board believes the Group's
prospects for FY2D07 are sound.

The Proparty Development division has
a solid development pipeline in terms of
its gross development value, while the
Consiruction division has a replenished
warkbook and good forward workload,
The earnings profile of each of these
divisions will be impacted by AFRS
under which development profiis are
generally brought fo account at projact
completion. tn the case of Property
Bevelopment, the development pipeline
is biased towards project completions
In FY2008 and bayond. Accordingly,
project completions in FY2007 are
likely 1o be fewer than average and this
is expected o impact on earnings in
the short term. As the Construction
division increases its level of internal
davelopment work, the emergence of
profit on this work will also be delayed
under AlFRS and cnly emerge in the
year in which the relevant development
completas.

The Funds Managemeant and Facllities
Management divisions are expecited to
buitd on growth achieved over the last
year although thelr FY2007 eamings are
not expected to include any significant
one-off profits outside normal
operations. The Trust is expected

to continue to benefit in FY2007

from the strength of its property
investment portfolio, in particular its
high occcupancy and s recent tenant
retention and rent reviews.

Andrew Roberts




Multiplex Property Trust 20

One of the Trust's competitive advaniages is its abllity o
originate and manage its own property invesiments. In

March 20086, the A-grade Southem Cross office tower in
Meibourne, which was built and developed by Mulliplex, was
successiully completed. Scuthern Crass is B8% leased to the
State Government of Victorla with a weighted average lease
expiry in excess of 14 years.

Promerty aoodsi ek civas
In May 2006 the Tru de a $152.3 million equity
investment in the Multiplex Acumen Prime Property Fund
(MAPPF). The Trust’s investment cumently equates 1o 80.1%
and is anticipated this will reduce to an interest of between
20.19% 1o 30.1%, on compietion of the MAPPF capital raising
in September 2006,

The following Trust assets were acquired by MAPPE during
the financial year:

S
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— 100% Defence Plaza, Melboume

— 50% of Bmst and Young Centre and 50 Goulburn Street,
Sydney, and

— 256% of Southarn Cross, Melbourne.
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P 5, g, 5, g e 1, The Trust made a further equity investment of $15.4 million into
P ARRES RO M T LA 1R Multiplex Acumen Property Fund, taking its total investment

to $43.8 milion representing 19.9% of the fund’s issusd
capital. These nvestments in listed Muitiplex Capital managed
vehicles enhance the diversification of the Trust, deliver low
risk annuity income streams to Multiplex securityholders and
see the Trust's stakes at thelr prefarred level of 20%. The
transactions are consistent with the Trust’s strategy to align
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Operational performance , its interests with the Group and to invest in Multipiex Capltal
Mu_ltlplex Property "1rustl has a dlwe:)fszﬂ@d‘portfoho of managed vehicles.

25 investment grade office, retall, industrial and car park o ) . o o .
properties and four investments in Multiplex Capital buring the period, the Trust sold 26.8 mitlon units in AMP
ranaged vehicles. The gross asset valus of the Trust’s New Zealand Office Trust {ANZC) for consideration of
portiolio is $2.9 hilion. The lettable area for the Trust is $24.9 million. Following this transaction, the Trust’s equity
circa 800,000sgm and the porticlio derives rent from investment in ANZO equates fo 21.2% of issued capital
675It@rlwants directly and a further 1,425 properties via its in June 2008, the Trust announced the sale of Goldfields
equity investments. House, Sydney for a premium of 37% 1o the latest extemal
In the past 12 months, the Trust’s key metrics continued valuation dated January 2005. The premium achieved

to strengthen with portfolio ncoupancy having increased reflects the strength and competitive dynarmics of the

to 98%, up from 93% in June 2005, The weighted average invastment market for Australian CBD office properties.
lsase term {by Income) across the portfolio is 6.4 years, Proceeds from the sale will in part be applied to the Trust’s
which compares favourably 1o the average for office listed CMBS program and to retiring senior debt. The profit from
property frusts {five years). The top 10 tenants accounted the sale was recognised in FY2006 and resulied in an

for 51.9% of net income in June 2006 up from 45.8% in increase in the distribution payable to securityholders.

June 2006, The weighted average lease expiry of the fop
10 tenants Is 7.0 years.
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Multiplex Property Trust 28

Portfolio
interest % Valuation $m % of Total Portfolio
Office
Southern Cross 78% 380.0 13.3%
Darling Park 30% 309.0 10.6%
Jessie Street Centre 100% 180.0 6.1%
Bourke Place Trust 43% 153.4 5.2%
1AG House fformaerly NEMA Housa) 50% 140.0 4.8%
Commonwealth Bank Building 100% 170.0 5.8%
KPMG Tower 50% 122.5 4.2%
AMP Place 100% 170.0 5.8%
BarkWest Tower 50% g97.5 3.3%
15 Blue Street 100% gr.0 3.3%
NAR House 25% 8.8 2.7%
111 Alinga Street 100% 55.0 1.9%
Ernst & Young Building 1o0% 49.0 1.7%
ANZ Centre 50% 4.3 2.2%
2078.5 70.8%
Retail
World Square 509% 89.0 3.4%
King Street Wharf 100% 92.4 3.2%
Pittwater Place 100% 715 2.4%
Great Western Super Centre 100% 62.5 21%
Carillon Shopping Cenire 50% 572 2.0%
Bracken Ridge Plaza 100% 22.0 0.8%
4046 13.9%
industrial
James Hardie - Rosehill 100% 57.0 1.9%
Jamaes Hardie - Carcle Park 100% 124 0.4%
James MHardie — Welshpoo! 100% 10.2 0.3%
James Hardie — Meeandah 100% 4.6 0.2%
84,2 2.8%
Car Park
{una Park Car Park 100% 7.6 0.6%
170G 0.6%
fnvestmentis
AMP NZ Office Trust 219% 955 3.3%
Multiplex NZ Property Fund 22% 56.4 1.9%
Multiplex Acumen Property Fund 20% 43.8 1.58%
Multiplex Acumen Prime Property Fund 80% 1623 5.2%
3481 11.9%

2.936.3 100.0%
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Portfolio statistics
Lease expiry profile by income

Vacant
Y07
Y08
FY0Q
FY 10
Y11
Fy12
FY13
Y14
FY 1o
FY 16 # June 2008
W June 2006

FY17+
W,

- Y el
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Geographic split - by value Sector split - by value

B ATY  New South Wales
20%  Victoria
¥ 179% Queensland
% Western Australia
W 2%  Australian Capital Teritory
% 5%  New Zealand

8 80% Office
16% Retail

¥ 3%  industry

%  CarPark
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Multiplex Property Trust

st rernains in an overweight positicn in office and
is benefiting from current favourable market conditions.

Heavaluations were completed on the Trust’s asseis and those

of aszociates during the financial year to June 2006 resulting
in an increase in unrealised gains of $227.7 milion. Thisis a
substantial increase over the previous year when revaluations
of the Trust’s assels resulted in an increase in portfolic

value of $28.5 milion.

The Trust's strategy to maintain a bias towards properties
locatad along the sastern seaboard of Australia resulied in
significant property revaluation gains experienced for the
Trust’s commercial assets paricularly in the Brisbane market
but also in Sydney and Maelbourne.

A softening retall market did not prevent five out of six of
Multiplex’s retall assets experiencing strong revaluation
gains. Pittwater Place and King Street Wharf retail in

New South Wales achisved over 10% gains as did Carillon
& City Arcades in Perth. Both of the Trust’s retail centres
in Queensland, Bracken Ridge Plaza and Great Western
Supef Centre were revalued with an uplift of 9%.

"f@nant r@t@ntion dur:ng the year was 92% by net income and
95% by area, up from 879 by net income and 88% by area
in June 2005, 119 new and renewed leases were completed
during the 12 months to June 2006 totaling more than
85,000sgm. Expirles in the portfolio were less than 4% of net
lettable area.

Significant leasing highlights for the Trust during the pericd
included: a 15 year lease 1o the State Government of Victorda
{25,900=qmy) at the newly developed Southern Cross Tower
in Melbourne; renewal of GE Commarcial lease {6,856s0m)
for a period of seven years in National Australia Bank House,
Sydney, and a new leass to PKF {1, B18sgm} for & 10 year
term in AMP Place, Brishane.

A Heads of Agreement was signed with IAG for its continued
lease and occupation from November 2008 (current lease
expiry), at 388 Gaorge Street, Sydney. Four other major lease
renawals are in final stages of negotiation that will reduce risk
and enhance the already strong lsase maturity profile.

fhe Trus t compteted 433 rent reviews during the year

to June 2006 resulting in an average increase of 3.9%
above the 3.2% increase achievad during the fiscal year
2005. The area reviewed In June 2006 represented circa
340,000sgm or 43% of the portfolic net isttable area.

Orporiunitios

Muitzplex s ability 1o originate new product is an important
competitive advantage and the Group currertly has a very
strong pipseline of cormmercial and retail development assets.
The Trust will continue to pursus opportunities to invest in
Mudtiplex managed funds and to align 1S inferests with those
of the Group.
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in the retall secior, planning is underway 1o redavelop
some of the Trust's assets. A planning application has
been submitted by Multiplex to further develop the Great
Western Super Centre and its surrounds. The relall team is
in advanced discussions with a number of retailers on pre-
commitments for the new space. Pittwater Place received
planning approval for a new child care centre during the
perind. Acre Woods will take occupancy of this space in
November 2006, Management at Carillon & City Arcades are
currently master planning the redevelopment of the Upper
Hay Sireet level which presents an opportunily to upgrade
and revitalise the Perth centre.

in the industrial secior, Multiplex is pursuing development
opporiunities and management is in the process of
submitting a development application to build a substantial
warehouse facility at Bosehill in Sydney due fo strong interest
in the area.

fhe i“rust is commrtted toi zmpt oving the sustainability of

its assets and is proactively looking for ways o improve

the energy efficiency of its office portiolio. In August 2005,
KPMG Tower in Sydney was awarded a 4.5 star energy
rating by the Australian Building Greenhouse Rating (ABGR)
and the recently completed Southerm Cross development in
Melbourne was designed o achieve a 4.5 star ABGH rating.
The Trust is currently undertaking an ABGR benchmarking
axercize of the remainder of its office porticlio o identify and
impiement pofential improvements to overall energy ratings.

i

Comprnunily I
Through Muit:p!ex s f@tad properties we strive to develop

real community refationships by genuinely recognising and
rewarding community support and foyalty. Muliiplex’s School
Rewards Program impiemenied at both Great Wastern Super
Cenire in Brisbane's North West and Bracken Ridge Plaza

in Brisbane's North, contributes a significant sum amongst

12 state and private primary scheols each vear. School
Rewards is truly a great community initiative, providing a sense
of community pride and support, as well as financial benefils.
Fariticipating schoot communities choose to shop at our
shopping centres io galn financial confributions for their school.

Qutlook and strategy

Strong portiolic metrics coupled with a strong office market
provide a solid platform for the Trust continuing to perform
in the short 1o medium term. The successful delivery of
Southern Cross, 98% oceupied, in March 2006 will provide
an uplift in nat income for Y2007

in the short term, the Trust is focusing on renewing major
leases and will aim to improve the lease maturity profile by
angaging with those tenants with medium-term expiries.

Over the coming year, the retall and industrial portiolios
will investigate development opportunities that have been
identified during the year.

The Trust will continue to evajuate and invest in Multiplex
Capital managed investment vehicles, domestically and
offshore.
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Operational performance

Companies within the Multiplex Capital divisicn manage
Multiptex Propearty Trust and a suite of listed and unlisisd
property investments. Total furds under management grew
from $5.5 biion 1o $5.9 biion during the year even after
allowing for the sale of the 30.7 billion Sapphire Retall Fund.
External FUM has grown from $28 milion to $2.9 billion ower
three years making Muttiplex Capital a significant player in
the property furds managemert industry in Australia with a
recognised, credible and proven brand name. Multiplex Capital
deliverad a strong performance from external funds under
management during the pericd with a weighted average total
ratum of approximately 27%.

Maior activities during the fiscal year included the launch

of a new 36840 milion lsted Australian office fund and the
astablishment of its first land syndication in Western Australia;
the sale of the Sapphire Retall Fund and its manager inthe
United Kingdorm; and the acquisition of eight commercial and
retail assets by the unlisted Multiplex New Zaaland Property
Fundk.

‘s
LY

furuds

n June 20086, Muttinlex Capital launched a naw 3640 million
office fund, Multiplex Acumen Prime Property Fund
(MARPPEF). A Product Disclosure Statement has been

izsued to raise $169.1 miliion from investors through a fully
underwritten issue of 168.1 milicn units. Upon alictment,
Multiplex Property Trust’s initial interest of 90.1% will reduce
to between 20.1% and 30.1%, depending upon whether
oversubscriptions are accepied. The fund is anticipated to
list on the Australian Stock Exchange on 15 September 2006
and is fully underwsitten by National Australia Bank and ANZ

Invastment Bank as the fund distributors.

MAPPF constifutes an outstanding portfolio of prime CBD
office investments with gross assets valued at 5640 million
Comprising:

100% of the new American Exprass Bullding in Sydney's
King Strest Whart, currently under development by Multiplax
Bevelopments and due for compietion in December 2007,

Fund Eetablished FUM Muitiplex BMultiplex Total Fund
irferest in Irterast in retuen for
Fund Manager the year
(AGm) % % %
AP N2 Office Trust (ANZO)} Dec 97 951 21.2 50 29.2
Multiplex Acumen Prime Property Fund (MAPPE) May 08 540 301 100 —
Multiplex New Zealand Property Fund (MNP Sept 04 742 2149 100 32.4%
Multiplex Acumen Property Fund (MPF) JU O3 306 12,9 100 181
Multiplex Development and Opportunity Fund Apr 2 146 2.8 100 13.2
{MDOF)
Multiplex Acumen Vale Syndicate (MAVSL) Aug 05 58 (eXe) 100 203
Total 2,853

1. Anticipatad 19 ket on ASY In Septamber 2008
2. Based on AB1.00 eniry price

3 Prospectus forecast anraalised ratum for the tarm of e irvestment
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Multiplex Capital

E0% of EBrnst & Young Centre and 50 Goulburn Street, World
Square, Sydney,

25% of Southem Cross Tower, Melbourne;

100% of Defence Plaza, Melbourne; and

a portfciio of Listed Property Trust securities valued at circa
$63 million.

High quality tenants, a weighted average lease axpiry of

10 years, diversification and the substantially new nature of
the properties provide mvesiors with an attractive and stable
income stream.

The transaction is another major milestone in the growth

of Muttiplex Capital's externat funds management platform
and demonstrates clearly the strength of Multipiex’s
infegrated property model. 1t will deliver attractive up-front
establishment and ongoing management fees in the form of
both base and potential performance fees. it is consistent
with the division'’s strategy to leverage off the manufacturing
capabiity of the Group o upscaie its external funds
management platform with the maority of the fund’s portiolio
having been, or cumently being, developed by Multiplex.

Multiplex Acumen Property Fund (MPF) performed

waell during the period with a oial return for the vear to

30 June 2006 of 18.1%. Net profit for MPF was up 81% to
$32.2 million with earnings per unit up 32% o 17.2 cents.
Distributions per unit were up 3.6% to 10.3 cents, which
equates to a cash yield of ©.0% at the $1.14 closing price.
Net tangibie assets per unit grew by over 10% in the year to
$1.18 per unit and retalned samings for the fund increased
from $6.3 milion to $29.0 mition.

MPF has total assets of $308 milion, up 29% on the previous
correspanding pericd, well diversified across a portiolio of
43 different property fund invesiments, with 20 different
managers reflecting an average lease tsrm 1o explry of
approximately 8.5 years. The investment portiolio is currently
yietding 9.3% on cost.

AMP NZ Office Trust (ANZD), managed by AMP Multiplex
Management Limited in which Multiplex has a 50%

interest, had a market capitalisation of $442.5 mifion and a
portiolio comprising 17 office buildings with a total value of
$951 milion at 30 June 2006, Multiplex Praperty Trust has
a 21% equity interest in ANZO which delivered a 29.2% total
return for the 12-month perfod fo 30 June 2006, Portfolic
cccupancy increased 1o 99% (95.19% in June 2005) as at

30 June 2006,

Uinifeled funds

Multiplex Capital has more than 31 bilion in undisted
funds under management. The core contributor to this

iz the Muliipiex New Zealand Property Fund (MNZPF).
Established in September 2004, the $741.6 million fund is
one of the largest owners of commercial grade real esiate
in New Zealand and one of the largest unlisted property
funds in Australia. The fund comprises a diverse portiolio
of 40 properiies with approximately 222 fenants located
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throughout New Zealand with 99% occupancy and an
average lsase term by income of 7.6 years.

in Becember 2005, MNZPF expanded iis asset base
purchasing eight assets in Wallington, Auckland, New
Plymouth and Whakatane currently valued at circa

$184.2 milion. The assets, a mix of commercial and retail
properties, give MNZPF greater gecgraphic and secior
diversification and, importantly, exposure o a strong
Wallington CBD office market. Six of the sight acquisitions
settled during the period with the remaining two assets due
to setile in February 2007,

MNZPE delivered an annualised yield of 8.60% and 8.88%
on entry prices of $1.00 and $1.07 respectvely for the
period. There was a $71.5 milion valuation upiift in the
portfolio for the period. As a result of the acquisitions and the
revaiuations, the NTA per unit increased to $1.18 from $0.96
as at 30 June 2005, a 23% increase over a 12-month period.
MNZPE deliverad a 20.2% |IRR to ofiginal investors based on
$1.00 entry price.

The $66 milion Muliiplex Acumen Vale Syndicate was
succassiidly launched during the period with the fund offer
closing oversubscribed in November 2005, The syndicate
prospectus offered a forecast annualised pre-tax retun

of 20.3% and is currently on track to meet or ocutperform
this farget.

The syndicate will develop stages two o six of the Vale
master planned community in the piciuresque Swan Vailey,
25 kilometras north-east of Perth. It is expected that the
project will eventually deliver over 1,580 residential iots,
madium density housing, two shopping centres, two
retirernent villages and a private school

The project is currently outperiorming prospectus forecasts
with sades to the vaiue of $82.0 million already secured and
529 sales of residential allotments recorded for the period

to 30 June 2006. The strong Western Australian residential
market has significantly benefiied the syndicate and reflected
in a significant Uplitt in the anticipated gross realisation
faliowing a review of the project and sales achieved thus far,

The $146 milion Multiplex Development and Opportunity
Fund (MDOF) delivered a retum before tax but after operating
expenses of 13% per annum for the 12 months 1o 30 June
2006, MDOF currently invests in 19 development projects
acyoss the residential, commercial and mixed-use property
sectors in most states of Australia,

Muttiplex Capital’s direct property investments, Acumen
Office Trust and Port Hedland Boulevard Shopping Centre
deliverad annualised yields of 9% and 12% respeclively to
unithoiders for the period to 30 June 2006, Both investments
achieved positive revaluations for the pericd with the NTA
per unit of Acumen Office Trust and Port Hedland Boulevard
increasing by circa 39% and 27% respectively.



i May 2006, Multiplex Group agreed o selt its interests in
the Sapphire Retall Fund and its management company
(R&M Funds Management Limited) reafising $27 million profit
on the transaction. The sale of the properties capitalised on
the buoyant market conditions and reftects strong investor
appeiite for this type of property investment.

Qutlook and strategy

Going forward, Multiplex Capital is in a strong position o fully
capture the benafits of improving office market fundamentals
with a number of other major office prejects curently within
the Development portfolio which may lead to further funds
management initiatives. Mulliplex Capital aims o take full
advantage of the integrated property moded and to align its
interests with those of the Group and is invastors,

Growih in external funds has been considerable over the past
thres years with further growth expecied, ullimately leading

10 a constellaiion of externally managed funds. The focus for
the business will be the organic growth of existing funds and
arigination of new products both in Australia and internationally.

Over the next yvear, Multiplex Capital will investigaie the
creation of a wholesale funds management business and
seek 1o expand its distribution network in Australia and
overseas. Muliiptex Capital continues to explore cpportunities
0 create a funds management platform in the UK foliowing
the sale of the Sapphire Retall Fund.

Muitiiex Capital has esiablished a subsiantial funds
management platform and is well positionad 1o becoms
a significard profit contributor to Multiplex Group in
fuiure years.

Artist impression of the
American Express Bailding,
Syd
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Artist impression of Artist impression of
Castle House, London Latitude East, World Square,
Sydney

The Commaercial/industrial sector had a strong financial The Group remains well placed to continue o capitalise on
year, the highlight of which was the successiul compietion the strong office market in Australia with substantial lease
of Southern Cross for Multiplex Property Trust. The pre-commitments secured for three new bulldings at King
development was completed ahead of program with Sireet Wharf and World Sguare in Sydnsy, all of which are
the office space fully leased with the overall bullding’s expected to be delivered over the next three years.
occupancy at 98%.
Lease Location Approximate Cwnership Gross
Net Lettable interest Bevelopment
Area Value {GOV)
{sqer) P
Macquarie Bank” 1 Shelley Street, 32,000 100 320
King Street Whari, Sydney
Australian Taxation Office” { afitude Fast, World Sguare, 23,000 100 200
Sydney
Amarican Exprass 12 Shelley Straet, King Street 14,600 100 124
Whart, Sydney
Total 68,000 544

* Annmunced post 30 June 2006
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The Group also has & strong pipeline of commercial development assets with a gross development value of over $71 billion.

Project Name Location Approximate Ownership Approxirnate
Development interest Multiplex Share

Potential of GDV

{seymi % &m

City Square Perth 75,000 50 315
163 Castlereagh Street Sydney 55,500 50 290
Bishops See Perth 54,000 50 245
111 Bourke Street Melbourne 45 000 50 130
Bank of New Zealand Centre Auckland 22,000 100 140
Total 251,000 1,120

Planning approval was secured for City Sqguare and Bishops See, Perth, and Latitude East, Sydney during the pericd.
Planning consent has also been granied for a 22,000 square metre corporaie premises for Bank of New Zealand in Auckland,
construction of which is expected to commence within the next six months.



Property Development

The MPC/ALand sector continuad to expand is portiolio
during the pericd with the acquisttion of Taylor's Rise, Sussex
Iniet, New South Wales and the completion of the acquisition
of land at Biuewater, Caims, Quesnsland.

Construction of Stage 1 at Newport Guays, Adelaide,
cormmenced after sufficient pre-sales targets were met.
Planning approvals were obtalned for a number of stages at
Bluewater to aliow iniial construction to commence on the
first stage of the project.

Stage 1 of Vale, Perth was compietad during the financial
year with all lots sold and 91% of lots settled by 3C Juns
20086, The Multiplex Acumen Vale Syndication {comprising
Stages 2 1o B of the Vale developmant), of which Multiplex is
the developrment manager, is benefiing from the strength of
the Westerm Australian residential market and experiencing
some very strong sales results.

;l he Mulii-Residential sector delivered three Multiplex Living
projects during the period: Raffies, Perth; The Chancellor,
Sydney, and |akeland Villas, Queesnsland.

Approvals were received for a $420 milion (0% interest)
residential development at Sydney Clympic Park in joint venture
with Babcock & Brown and for the circa $120 million Cotton
Beach and Pandanus Pocket projects on the Tweed Coast in
New South Wales.

Stage 1 of East Quarter, Murstvilie, Cotton Beach and
Pandanus Pocket in New South Wales are alf currently
pra-sefling and expected 1o commence construction within
the next 12 months. In July 2006, The Esplanade, Perth
commenced pre-seling its 37 apartments, all of which were
sold in tess than two days, illustrating the significant strength
of the Wastern Australia market at prasent.

In March 2006 the division announced it had finalised a

deal with Landcom to jointly develop, with 51 Luke’'s Hospital
Complex, a $148 million 3-tier aged care facility in eastern
Sydnay, which is expecied to commence construciion later
in the year,

The team wili continue its strateqy to targst quality product in
desirable locations. Developments will be launched in stages
iy fine with market demand.

Planning approval was received for Claremont Arcade
Shopping Centre, Perth during the financial year.

{ easing was also completed for the retall component of
Stage 1 at Portside Whar!, Queensland which cpened in
fate August 2006,

During the pericd, Multiplex expanded its retail development
asset base acquiring the 350 million Wilsonton Shopping
Centre, Toowoomba. The acquisition is part of the Group’s
strategy to acquire well positioned, strong performing retad
assels, which can be enhanced to achieve increased returns
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by further development. The acquisition includes an adjacent
parcel of land north of the shopping centre of more than
13.000sgm currently zoned for retall use.

The outlook for Retall is expected o remain solid and
Multiplex has a strong pipeline of projects across New Sowth
Wales, Queensland and Western Australia. The tearn will
focus on securing planning approvals for these projects in
the corning financial year.

3 Hirmpdom

Multiplex Developrments commenced the $720 million Eden
development during the pericd, of which our interest is
50%. Fhase 1 of the project comprising the bus interchange
completed ahead of program in August 2008, Demand
from prospective fenants has been encouraging with
approximately B0% of the 54,000sgm retall centre income
pra-committed.

Government planning legisiation in the United Kingdom
continues to reinforce the focus of retall/mixed-use schemes
in towns and cities where retail expenditure and development
will remain the key economic diver. The immeadiate focus

of the retall team is to maximise potential from our existing
opportunities, delivering quality assets on a timely basis,

as well as progressing the planning process in an efficient
Marmes.

i June 20086, planning approval was secured for Castie

House, a 43-storey landmark residential tower in Ceniral
London. A planning application has been submitled for a
second residential development at West Cromwell Boad in
West London. Both developments incorporate a number

of environmenially susiainable design features designed to
mest or exceed stringent new UK buliding regulations and are
expected to deliver substantial energy cost savings 1o residents.

The London residential market is experiencing strong
demand, under an environment of reasonably stable pricing.
Multiplex is well placed in the short to medium term with the
Castle Mouse scheme expectad o commence in FY2007
and West Cromwell Road thereatter.

Multiplex has a 50% interest in a major regeneration scheme
at Cricklewood i North London. Multiplex considers the
Cricklawood project a highly strategic and significant
development. The focus and chalienge for the feam will be
securing timely planning approvals, financing and adequatsly
resourcing the development.

Londen is forecast o experience significant growth over
the next 15 years and the UK Planning Framework and
Central Government directives have created a focus on
major regeneration projects within London and South-East
England. Multiplex will continue o bulld its capability in
regeneration to capitalise on these opportunities.



The 2006 financial year saw the compistion of Multiplex's
non-core asset disposal program in the UK which included
the disposal of Buchanan House and St Vincent Street in
Glasgow, and Park and Emerson Street and Grosvenor
Sirest properties in London.

As part of the program, an agreement was reached {o sell a
number of interests previously hald within B&M Investments
to Aldersgate {an entity assoclated with Simon and David
Reuben) for £68.25 million (aporoximately AB166 million).

The agreement provides for Aldersgate or entities associated
with Aldersgate to acquire the Group's interests in the assets
nominated below (subject to conditions including the ultimate
restruciure of Duslguide and the consent if necessary of
various third parties):

— 45% interest in the Sapphire Retall Fund;

— 50% interest in RA&M Funds Management Lid {the Manager
of the Sapphire Retall Fund),

— 25%, interest in Rushmere Shopping Centre, Northem freland,

— 20% interest in Paddington development site, Central London;

— 25% interest in St Encochs development site, Glasgow, and
— B.8% Inferast in Stockley Park, Wast London.

This fransaction was consisient with the sirategy for the
Group's UK portfoiio, most recently communicated at the
interim results in February 2006, Not only doss it efiminate
investments in minority interests but it enabled the release
of equity that can be applied to those development
opportunities which remain.

The gross development value of the UK development pipeline

has remained refatively unchanged during the vear and
cumrently equates to approximately $@ billon. The majority
of the assets divested in the period were mature assets.
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Qutlook and strategy

The cutlook for the Property Development business is
positive. However, the sarnings profile of the Property
Cevelopment division will be impacted by AIFRS undsr which
development profits are generally recognised at prolect
comgpletion. Muliiplex Developments has a solid pipsiine of
development assets biased towards project completions

in FY2008 and beyond. Project completions in Y2007 are
likaly to be fewer than average and this is expecied to impact
on eamings in the short-term.

in Australia, the division will leverage its strong core capability
in the office sector to capitalise on robust market conditions.
The business will continue fo pursue a more balanced
pipeline of projacts to accommodate cyclical demand,
sirengthaening is presence in the retall and master planned
communitias sectors, while pursuing staged mukt-residential
davelopments in desirable locations.

in the United Kingdom, the business will continualty review all
proiects to rminimise risk and maximise profit. The team will
focus on securing outling planning consent for Cricklewood
and on accelerating its large scale mixaed use schemes that
wil underpin fts performance. The business will continue

0 monior new opportunities, o complement the existing
portfolio, and o take advantage of sirong market conditions
in a number of sectors, including commercial.

Multipiex Developments will strive, across all regions, to
opiimise the benefits of integration with each of Multiplex's
other business units, belng Constructions, Multipiex Capital,
and Faciiiies Managemeant.

Artist impression of
Claremont Shopping
Cantre, Perth



Construction

Operational performance

The Construction division recorded a foss before tax of
$319.8 milfion. A loss on the Wembley National Stadium
project was the main driver for the negative result,

A more detalled update on Wemblsy is provided on
page 44 of this report.

Deaspite the problems at Wembley, Multiplex Constructions
successiully completed 25 major projects valued &t

$2.5 hillion during the period and secured 18 new contracts
at a ofal value of $2.9 billion.

Opearations in New South Wailes and Victoria continue to
perform strongly. Projects delivered successiully during the
petiod included: Southern Cross, Freshwater Place, Urban
Warkshop and Victoria Point in Melbourne; and Centro
Bankstown and Ettalong Cuirigger Beach Resort in New
South Wales.

Freshwater Place, a 80-level residential project at Southbank,

iz the second largest residential project in Melbourme's
history. The project was delivered to an external client on
tima and on budget. The successiul delivery of Southem
Cross designed 1o achieve a 4.5 star energy rating was one

of the critical factors the Victorian Government considerad in

committing to a long lease term in the building.

Both states replenished their workbook during the perind
securing large construction projects including: Metbourne
Convention Centre and 538 Bourke Strest in Victoria; and
Parramatta Justice Precinct and Regent Theatre Siage 2

in New South Wales,
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In Wastern Australia, Raffles, a luxury residential complex
was successfully completed in June 2006. The very active
market in the state is currently placing some pressure on
resources and cosis. The business is responding by ensuring
risk mitigation measures are in place to lock down resources
and cosis early in the contraciing process.

in Queensland, Multiplex complsted two major projects
during the period, Riparian Plaza and Festival Towars,
Pricing pressures continug in this market and as a resull
the business continues to focus primarily on opporiunities
originating internally from the Group’s development pipeline
and selected external projects whers sufficient contingency
can be secured.

Buring the period, Multiplex Constructions was awarded

the prestigious accolade of National Commercial Bulider

of the Year by the Master Hullders Association of Australia,
cermenting its reputation for delivering high guality projects.
Award winning projects during the period included: Berwick
Community Hospital and Seasons Apariments, Victoria, Perth
Corwvention & Exhibition Centre, Western Australia; Ermst &
Young Centre, Bitalong Outrigger Beach Raesort and Pittwater
Place in New South Wales; and Sky Plaza in Canberra.

The new industrial relations environmant, driven by recent
government legislation, is causing significant chaillenges
within the industry. Muttiplex is responding proactively by
providing guidance and ralning to all project staff in the form
of manuals and guideiines, in order to ensure full compliance
with the law and minlmal disruption on projects.
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Construction

The key focus for the region is on Public Private Partnerships
{FPPs), delivering existing projects and converting the
pipeline of opportunities. Multiplex s seeking to develop
alfiances with key equity providers and is currertly reviewing
varicus options aimed at increasing the flexibility of procuring
equity and funding for these projects. The division wil
continue to develop and leverage its relationships with
existing clients, both external and internal,

Multiplex Engineering continues to parform well on two major
projects. Perth's Seawater Desalination Plant is the world’s
second largest reverse osmosis seawater desalination plant,
and the largest in the southerm hemisphere. The plant is on
schedule for first water praduction in Novembar 20086,

The Moma Mineral Sands project is a Design and Construct
contract to relocats and establish a mineral sands
processing plant into northern Mozambique. Construction
iz well advanced using a local and expatriate work farce and
practical completion is forecast for Aprl 2007

Multiplex Enginesring will continue to grow its business
targeting projects within specific market segments whare risk
can be shared with the client.

Multiplex Constructions expanded its business in New
Zealand securing a number of new contracts during the
period including: Sylvia Park North Mall (390 milion),
The Sentinal ($50 milion), and The Docks ($4C million).

The North Mall of Sylvia Park, a shopping centre and retail
complex In Auckland was secured in January 2008, The
contract was in addition to existing contracts for the South
Malt and Infrastruciure works. The total contract valus

for the project is circa AB200 milion making it one of the
targest projects in the New Zealand market. The South Mall
successiully openad on time in June 2006, Sylvia Park’s
environmenial merits were acknowledged with an award
during the period by the Auckland Branch of the New
Zealand Contractors’ Federation.

hMultiplex's Construction business continues to grow in the
Middle Fast with a total contract value of $1.2 bilion. Curing
the period, Nasa Multiplex secured its largsst contract fo
date, The Index, with a contract vaiue of $395 miflion, for
one of the region’s premier developers. Dasigned by Lord
Norman Foster, this B6-storey muiti-use building will be
delivered using the latest construction technology.
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Nasa Muitipiex successfully completed DIFC - The Gale
during the period. Phase 1 of the Burj Residences project
with a contract value of $230 milion was also completed.
This six-tower residential project is part of the prestigious
Bur] Dubai development which will include the world's tallast
bullding. It is Nasa Multiplex's first complete design and
construct project in the region and is a good example of
successiul client/contractor partnering. The success of this
project resulted in a further 15 towers being secured for the
same client for a total value of circa $555 million,

Multiplex continued to gain a stronger foothold in the Middle
Erast with Multiplex Medguif WLL commencing operations in
Qatar in July 2005 with the construction of a landmark five
star 28-storey W hotel. The project is progressing well and
is set to become a speclacular new addition 1o the Doha
skylinge. Multplex have partnered with Ensry, a member of
the prominent local business group J&A Jaldah Hoidings, to
successiully combine their commercial, residential and retail
construction capability with local construction expertise and
logisticat support in Qatar.

Multiplex will continue to grow its operations in the Middle
East, leveraging ks established track record in Dubai to
embark on a controlled and focused expansion into the
Qatar and Bahrain markets.

The property market in the Middle East continues to grow at a
rapid pace with Dubal striving Io become the business centre
for the entire Middle East and Gulf region. Nasa Multipiex wil
contirue 1o grow 1ts business through negotiated work with
existing clients and carefully selected projects.

Lhvitasd Wingokom
The paerformance of the Construction business in the UK has
been marred by the delays and project losses incurred by the
Wambley project.

The Knightsbridge (5404 milion), completed in November
2005, is recogrised as one of London's most successiul and
prastigicus new residential developments. Recent industry
awards include London’s Best Large Residential property
award 2005/06 and London District Surveyors’ Association
{LDSA] ‘best buil-in quality’ Award 2006. This is the first time
that Muliiplex worked under a managament contract in the
UK, forging a closer three-way bond with the client and our
established subcontractor base. The project was successiul
for all parties involved providing good margins and an
cutstanding product.

in Cctober 2005, consiruction of the mixed-use scheme at

High Wycombe commenced. The projact is progressing wel
with the new Bus Interchange completed in August 2006 ahead
of program. i is Multiplex’s first project in the UK involving both
its construction and development businesses with management
confident the project will be a major success.



in August 2006, Multiplex agreed 1o transfer the White City
project in London to Westfield Group. Westield has assumed
full responsibility for the rermaining design and construction
warks on the project. The transfer of White City enables
Mudtiplex 10 focus predominantly on internally generated
wark from Multiplex’s development projects including BEden
at High Wycombe, Newcasile City Centre, Cricklewood
urban regenaration scheme, and the Castle House and Wast
Cromwell Boad residential projects.

There are significant opporiunities in the FFI/PPP market
in the UK. The region is currently focusing on converiing
its existing opportunity, Peterborough Hospital and
achieving financial close (currently preferred contractor).

Outlook and strategy

The outiook for the Construction business is positive with
Meudtiplex continuing to focus on repositioning the portfolio
through disciplined project selection.

Akey focus for the business will be to develop a reward
and recognition program o promote a high performing
cufture that can attract and retain the best employees in our
industry. The businass wil also seek o faster a leadership
development program and 1o better align performance
metrics with the division’s cljectives.

Artist impression of
Parramatta Justice
Pracinct, Sydney
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in Australasia, Multiplex Constructions will take a leading

role in driving the Group's participation in PRP opportunities
providing an integrated service offering. The business will
continue to work closely with Multiplex's other business units,
particuiarly Multiplex Developmeants, o take full advantage of
the Group's integrated property madel,

iy the Middie East, Multiplex will continue to build relationships
with its existing client base and 1o pursug clisnt relationships
in new markets such as Abu Dhabl. The tsam will concentrate
on converting a select number of key client opportunities

in Bubal, Qatar, Bahrain and Abu Dhabi. The business will
maintain a limited presence in Kuwalt and Jordan to monitor
upcoming opporiunities and build sirategic relationships.

i the UK, the key challenge and focus for the business will be
0 daliver Wembley with favourable cost, claim and reputation
outcomaes. The business will continua to work closaly

with the Developments tearn on High Wycombe and on
upcoming projects stich as Castie House in London. Muktiplex
Constructions UK will also focus on further consolidating

its operations, improving its organisational siructure, risk
management systems and business processes.



Wembley Update
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The Wembley project had a substantial adverse impact on
the FY2006 result. Aloss of $364.3 milion was recorded in
the inferim period 1o 31 Decemnber 2005, with no matetial
change in the financial position in the six months fo 30 June
2006, Multiplex is actively pursuing claims against the client,
Wembley National Stadium Limited MWNSL} and a number of
other parties involved in the project to recover some of these
costs.

In June 2006, the English High Court found in Multiplex's
favour on the key issues claimed against ifs former steet
subcontractor Claveland Bridge (CBUK). This is anticipated
to translaie into a damages claim with SBUK which i not
negoiiated or mediated prior will be determined by the courts
in aarky 2007

Wambley National Stadium is nearing completion with
remaining works primarily related 1o the building's
commissioning and handover. An important part of these
works is the responsibility of WNSL

A4

90,000 seat stadium

with a single bowl structure
rather than separate stands
The 133 metre tall, 315 metre
long steel arch is the longest
single roof structure in the
world

7,000 tonne roof with
retractable system

500 food-service points



Wembiey National Stadizm,
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Facilities Management
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Operational performance

During the period, Mutiplex Facilities Management increased
s number of contracts by 22% from 82 o 100, The division
has strong long-term prospects with an average contract
duration exceeding nine years.

The division has now secured four Public Private Partnership
{FPF) proiects, is preferred bidder on a fifth and short-

listed or pursuing several others. At present, only the Casey
Community Hospital project is confributing to revenues as
three other projects are stili under construction. Revenue
from these projects will commence in the first half of the
2007 financial year.

In FY2C08, the division was successiul in securing the
25-year contract for the Melbourne Convention and
Exhitition Centre and was recently shortdisted for

the Defence Single LEAP PPP project. In additicn the
business secured an 18-year contract for a new Centrelink
Headguarters in Canberra and a 10-year facilities
maragement contract for the Parramaita Justice Precinct
both currently being constructed by Muliiplex. This is
consistent with Muftiplex Facilities Management’s strategy to
leverage off opportunities originating through other divisions
within the Group's integrated property model.

Centrefink is schedulad to be operational in 2007, with

the 40,000 square metre, Parramatia Justice Precinct,
scheduled o come online in March 2008, and the Melbourne
Convention Centre in 2009, The division was also successiul
in entering the Aged Care sector securing the facilities
marnagement coniract for Anglican Homes' Wastarn
Australian portfolio,

A number of contracts originating from within the Group
cormmenced during the period. These included: Scuthern
Cross East Tower, Melbourne; 388 George Street, Sydney,
and Raffles Apartments, Parth.

IAG Building, Sydney Artist impression of Centretink

Headquarters, Ganberra

Multiplex Facifities Management has a strong track record

in the defence sector and, through its joint venture {Defence
Maintenance Management Pty Lid) with John Holland Group,
secured a second major contract renewal with the Australian
Befence Force. The Comprahensive Maintenance Service
Coniract which covers major defence establishments in the
Sydney Central Begion {including Garden Istand, HMAS
Watson, HMAS Waterhen, HMAS Penguin, Randwick and
Victoria Barracks and Delence Flaza, Sydney) was renewed
for a further five years, with four one-year options.

The National Archives Contract in Canberra was also
successiully renswed for ancther bwo-year ferm during the
financial year.

Buring the pericd, Multiplex continued to target the
corporate real estate market in Australia pursuing standaione
opportunities and opportunities in conjunction with its joint
venture partner, CB Richard Eles. Maltiplex was successful in
securing a three-year security management contract for the
AMP leased portfolio naticnally. The AMP portiolio comprises
nine office buldings spread across New South Wales,
Victoria, Queensland, Western Australia, South Australla and
Australian Capital Territory and includes AMP's Head Office
in Sydnay. The corporaie real estate market will be a key
focus for the division moving forward.

% A opmorturilies swd ohy
The current and future focus of Australia’s State and Federal
governments on new indrastructure development to be
deliverad through the PPP and Design Construct & Maintain
contract models will underpin continued growth in the
industry, at least for the next decade. The division is well
placed, with Multiplex’s other business divisions, to capitalise
on opportunities within this sector.







Facilities Management

The key challenge for magor faciliies management companies
iy Australia continues to be the retention and recruitment

of key statf with the wide range of skills and experience
necessary o model, win and deliver profitable new coniracts,
particutarly large scale national portiolio and PPP contracts.
We are coniinuing o respond 1o these challenges by
streamlining our bidding and management processes,
providing robust support systems and focusing on the
indivichuatl development nesds of our staif.

Eywironmy

Multiplex Facilities Management is an active participant
in promoting the role of faciliies management in more
sustainable built environments through the Cepartment
of industry, Tourism and Resources sponsored, Faciities
Management Action Agenda.

The division is also the key driving force behind an Australian
Building Greenhouse Rating (ABGH] benchmarking exercise
of Multiplex Property Trust’s commercial portfolio and for
implementing initiatives to improve the energy performance
of the Trust’s assets and hence reduce fts confribution 1o
greenhouss gas emissions.

Multiplex Facilities Management is alsc implementing the
Green Building Council of Australia (GBC) Green Star Office
Asset Pilot raling tool inttially across two assets owned by the
Trust, 388 George Street, Sydney and Jessie Street Centre,
Parramatta. The objective is to identify and implement
potential improvements o overall ESD management to
FrINIMise walsr use, energy consumption and waste
produced with the overali objective to obtain a minimum
ABGR of 4.5 stars and Greensiar Rating of & stars.

As part of this process, the division has aiso entered into
agreements to independently monitor the wiility consumption
across the managed Trust portiolio.

Outlook and strategy

The period ahead is expected to provide the division
furiher opporiuniies to secure new long-term contracts
to enhance the scale and diversification of the portfclio.
A key focus however will be on the successiul delivery

of previously secured contracts such as Perth Courts,
Melbourne Showgrounds, Melboumne Convention Centre
and Parramatia Justice Precincl.

In the short ferm, the division will focus on external
opportunities, directly and through our loint venturs partners,
John Holland {Defence) and Morton & Morton {Residential
Property Management). Servicing a growing number of
internal opporiunities being generated from within the Group
will continue 1o De a key priority, particularly in supporting
the delivery and management of sustainable Duilldings for
the Group's commercial portfoiio.

Jon MeCormick

Gharlie Reilly
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Sustainable Workforce
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Our people are as diverse as the regions and fields in which
we do business. We recognise that to ensure g sustainable
business, we need a susiainable workforce and Multiplex is
absolutely commitied to the wellbeing of its employess.

Multiplex Group has more than 2,000 employees across its
operations throughout Ausiralia, the United Kingdom, the
Middle East and New Zealand. Total employee numbers
have remalned sieady over the past year. Similarly, employee
numbers by division and gender have also remained
constant. A breakdown of the Group's employses is outlined
in the charts provided.

During the period, the Group conducted its first independent
wortdwide Employes Opinion Survey. The survay was very
useful, providing clear infformation on employes engagement
across the Group and for identifying areas that need
improvermnant. The results provided valuable input into

the pecple planning components of the Group’s strategic
plans for 2007 and beyond. An independent survey will be
conducted on an angoing basis o monitor progress.

During the pericd, the Group erhanced its performance
management program across all regions with the roliout of a
standardised performance management systerm. The Group
also refined both is short and long-term incentive policies to
better align the interests of business units with those of the
Group and its securityhoiders.

Multiplex is committed o the health and welibeing of its
employess. A number of safety and welibeing iniiatives which
were launched throughout 2005 were continued during the
period. The Group’s Employee Assistance Program, which
providas confidential, professional assistance to employees
whose performance s, or may become, affected by personal
or work-related problems is now firmly in place in all regions.
The program ensures all our employees and thelr immediale
famiies are provided with assistance as they require . As
part of Multiplex's Wallness Program, employess were also
offered a free health assessment and free flu shots.

o0

Buring the forthcoming year, Multiplex will seek 1o improve
its employee retention rates and enhance succession
planning initiatives and career development. 1 is anticipated
that thess initlatives will be undertaken throughout the
Group's business units.

Omcunetio wralth and Dafely OHER

Multiplex is firmly commitied to the safety of its employees
and promotes safety as a core value in the workplace. Safety
statistics are monitored continucusly across the Group and
published on a monthiy basis.

The Board is deeply saddened fo report that over the past
year there was one work-related fatality within the Group.

The lost time injury frequency rate for the Group at June
2006 was seven, an improvement over the previous
corresponding period when It was eight. Positive
performance indicators are being introduced across the
Group o measwe preventive stralegies to minimise incidents
and accidents at the source.

Buring the pericd, the Group continued a number of OHES
initiatives that were launched in 2005 and successfully
embarked on some new initiatives. Heart defibrilation units
have now been deployed 1o ali of the Group's offices and
majcr construction and development sites across the globe.
The defibriflaiors have already been used for successful
resuscitation on fwo occasions on projects.

Muttiplex has a zero tolerance approach owards safely

on construction and development sites. A global poster
campaign which seeks to target commeon risk areas on sites
was continued throughowt the pericd. Hundreds of posters
ara regularly deployed across our sées. The ever-changing
suite of designs for our safely posters ensures maximum
penstration is achisved amongst our on-site workforces.
Multiplex is also refining its pre-qualification criteria for
subcontraciors to put a greater emphasis on their previous
and prospeciive OMES performance.

All site workers undergo stringent OHES training and as

part of the Group’s commitment to safety in the workgplace,
an online safety induction program is being rolled out across
the crganisation. The Group is also implementing a smoke-
free workplace policy in its offices and sites across the globe.
The program was developed internally and is supported by
various quit smoking boedies in the regions in which Multiplex
operates and aims to provide a safe and healthy working
environment as well as support to those employees wishing
o stop smoking.



2006 Headcount - by region
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2006 Headcount ~ by division

¥ 50Y% Australia

22% United Arab Fmirates
¥ 17% United Kingdom
6%  New Zealand

20086 Headcount - by gender

Female

¥ 70% Construction
11% Faciities Management
¥ 9% Developments
8% Corporate
2% Capital

) i : S i
Multiiex’s clienis across the globe expect very high levels

of quality and to ensure that thase levels are mat, Multiplex

is accredited o 150 9001:2000 in each of the geographical
regions in which it ocperates. Best practices and processes
are adopted o continuously deliver improverment, world class
quality and customer satisfaction across all projects.

Curing the period, Muliipiex Constructions’ operations in the
UAE: achieved environmental acoraditation o AS/NZS 150
14001, Multiplex is now accredited in each of its geographic
ragions with the intermational standard.

Yo support the high level of OMES performance expected by
Mudtiplex, our safety managsment systems are accredited
0 internaticnally recognised standards. During the period,
Meitiplex Constructions operating in the UAE: achisved
OMH&S accreditation o IS0 18000, Multiplex Faciities
Management's OH&S systems ajso achieved formal
accredilation to AS4801.
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15 Blue Street, Sydnsy

As Australia’s fargest developer of commercial property,
Multiplex is ploneering advances in energy efficient design.

The Group continuatly monitors its environmental Many of our commercial projects seek to achieve 4.5 star
performance on its project sites and is pleased to report Australian Green Building Rating (AGBR). Commercial
that it dict not have any major environmental incidents during ~ Ge@velopments currently with or seeking this energy rating
the period. Multiplex's operations are subject 1o significant include:

environmental reguiation and all of Multiplex's construction  — KPMG Bullding, King Street Wharf

cpearations are accredited to 150 14001, which relates to — Brnst & Young Buliding, Perth

environmental best practice. — Sputhem Cross, Melbourne

The Group’s environmental initiatives focus on ecologically  — ENst & Young Centre, Sydney

sustainable development, energy and water management, ~ — American Express Building, King Strest Wharf

poilution minimisation and resotrce and waste management. — Macquarie Bank offices, King Street Wharf

Some examples of environmental inttlatives implemented Multiplex's recently completed Southern Cross tower

by the Group are outlined below. in Maelbourne is a showcase project for environmental

. sustainabifity. Energy efficiency, sun shading and natural
sty . ) vertilation and light are all key elements incorporated in the
For the past five years, Multiplex Constructions has design, with the building’s state-of-the-art management conrol

championed its own waste minimisation strategy, seeking o gystem, optimising energy consumption and tenant comfort.
cut the amount of landfill generated from construction sites

FEY

and o increase recycling activitles, This program, known Southern Cross has been designed 10 achieve a 4.5 star

as Muiticlex Waste Wise, has been a phenomenal success energy rating. Multiplex F-am_iitilaas Managernens, the facilities
and new interna reporting methods and data collection managst, Wl.ﬂ ensurs the-? building continues to perform at that
processes alow us to evaluate our progress. levet for the 15-year period.

By way of examgple, in June 2008, average recycling and
waste rminimisation from our construction sites in Australia
was approximately 70%. That figure of recycling and waste
minimisation was represenied by Hardcore, Soficore and
Steel/Ferrous/Non-Ferrous materials. Multiphex is monitoring
Hs performance 1o ensure that improvements are continually
being made.



Melbourne Convention and Portside Wharf, Queensiand

Exhibition Centre, Methourne

The Poriside Wharf development integrating Brisbane’s first
cruise ship terminal with both residential and retall precincts
has been designed 1o incorporate significant initiatives for the
managament of water and energy. Water efficient initiatives
include AAA rated taps and tollets, waterless urinals, as well
as water efficient imigation systems and native landscaping.
Energy managemsnt initiatives include:

gach apartment building achieving a 3.5 star NathERS rating;
the office component of the terminal bullding achieving a

4 star ABGR snergy rating; and

tenant ighting power consumgtion 30 per cent less than
BEC Energy Efficlency Code requirements.

At Vale in Western Australia, Multiplex will use 40,000 cubic
metres of pine rees that have been cleared from Stages 4
and 5 of the project to harvest a high quality, nuirient-rich
mudch and soll conditioner for Vale's parks and gardens.

The stored ree wasie will refurn approximately 30,000
cubic metres of compoest and demonstrates Muitiplex's
commitment to waler-wise, nulrient-managed landscapes,
while meeting best practice standards at a national and
international level for using local materials.

Taylor's Rise in New South Wales is the first major land
release in over a decade in Sussex Inlet. This master

planned beachside community, has incorporated extansive
environmental initiatives throughout the development process.
Buring the site clearing process, trees thal were cleared were
muiched and used on-site and no materials were sent to
landfili. Native planting has been part of the landscaping plan
in order to increase the biodiversity of the local flora.

o3

Curing the period, Muliiplex Developments in conjunction
with Multiplex Constructions successiully remediated a
long-term diesel spilage which was discovered as part of
our due diigence process on the Fden at High Wycombe
project. The redaevelopment of this site involved the relocation
of the existing High Wycombe bus station which has

been active for 40 years. Multiplex completed a complax
remediation exercize in conjunction with the environmental
agency to clean the site whilst still operating the bus station
and preparing the site for construction works,

Muitiplex is incorporating leading environmentally sustainable
dasign principles into its projects in the United Kingdom.
Castle House, a residential development at Elephant & Castle
in London recently obtained planning approval based on

a design that included wind turbines which will generate
anough renewable elactricity fo run the lighting for the whole
of the building. The sustainabie design exceeds UK buiiding
regulations and is expecied to deliver 40% energy cost
savings o residents over an average UK residence.

The Cricklewood urban regeneration project in North London
is taking an innovative approach towards energy and wasta
management. The project design aims to reduce snergy
requiremnents by passive fbulding materials used} and active
means {control and recovery systems) and to distribute
anergy more efficiently. Renewable energy sources have also

BTN 3

Muttipiex Capital is committed to improving the sustainability
of Multipiex Property Trust’'s assets and is proactively
working with Multiplex Facilities Management 1o identify
measuras that can be implemented to improve the energy

sfficiency of ks commaercial portfolio.

3

Fa Saraamnent

Mudtiplex Facilities Management is currently undertaking

an Australian Building Greenhouse (ABGR) benchmarking
axercize of Multiplex's Property Trust portiolic and is
implemeanting the Green Building Council of Australia {GIRC}
Green Star Office Asset Pilot across two assets owned

by the Trust. The objective of these exercises is 1o identify
and implement potential improvements to overall energy
performance across the portfolic.

Multipiex Facilities Management is also an active participant
in promaiing the role of the facilities management industry
in more sustainable built environments thyough the Faciities
Management Action Agenda. Jon McCormick, Managing
Cirector Multiplex Facilities Management, is chairman of
Sustainability Working which aims to promote the role of
Facilities Management in delivering sustainable outcomes,
davelop a business case for sustainability and participaie in
industry and government {orums in relation to sustainability
inffatives,



Contributing to the Community
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In October 2005, Multiplex launched its Workplace Giving
Program in Australia. The program was established as a
means of streamiining the Group’s charitable donations and
promoting community participation among Multiplex Group
empicyeas,

The program supports six charities chosen by a committee
of employess represeniing the key areas of concem identified
across the Group comgrising:

Cause Area Selected Charity

Cancer Cancer Council of Australia

Children’s illnesses

and disabilities Starlight Children’s Foundation

Paverty/homelessness/

unemployment Mission Ausirafia

Conservation and the environment Ciean Up Australia

Children and families at risk The Smith Family

Youth at rigk BoysTown

Charitable donations from employees are supported by the
Group through the deduction of the donations at payroll net
of tax. { enables employees to make regutar contributions
to their chosen charities in a simple, low cast, tax-effective
manner. It also provides the selected charities with a steady
stream of donations and can aliow them access 1o the
skills and time of voluntesr empioyees through targeted
communications.
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The Group also supports the program by matching employee
donations on a dollar-for-dollar basis up to a maximum
annual amount thus doubling the benetfit to the employes's
chosen charity. Since its inception, the Multiplex Workplace
Giving Program has donated over $107,000 o selected
charities.

The Multiplex Group Board has determined that political
donations will genarally not be made but have however
delegated to the Chief Executive approval for expenditure
up to a total of $80,000 in any fnancial year. Al recuests
for poliical donations must be referred to the Company
Secretary for approval by the Chief Executive. Approved
political donations are disclosed in accordance with
legistation. Below is a table that sets out the political
donations made by the Group throughout the year:

Party Donation Amount
The Liberal Party $22,477
Australian Labor Party $48,678
Total $71,155

¢ s s
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in New South Wales, Multiplex has made a commitment to
provida project management services for a new youth centre
at Macquarie Felds. This initiative is being driven by Father
Chris O'Rilay for “Youth Off The Streets’, a foundation that
supports homeless and drug addicted young Australians as
thay work o tumn their Bves around. Based on the philosophy
that every young person has greatness within, the programs
offerad by the foundation are non-denominational and
non-discriminatory. Muliiplex is currently assisting with the
development of the new facility.

Muttiplex graduates once again lent thelr support to the
community participating in a number of important initiatives,

participate in an affordable housing project in Kwadulu-
Natal, Scuth Africa. The work was undariaken for God's
Goiden Acre, a non-profit, non-governmental organisation.
Funds were ralsed through donations from consultants

and subcontractors to go towards building materials and
other costs. The graduates provided labour and project
management and successfully completed all finishing works
on an accommodation block and provided the foundations
for a house.

New Zealand graduates spent three days in December
volurdeering at Habitat for Humanity, a community based
housing program aimed at providing underprivileged
fammilies with a home of their own. The graduates helped

a farmily to build a two-storey home in Clendon, Manukau
in South Auckland. They carried out a range of tasks such
as constructing the fagade, installing joinery, plumbing,
sanding and painiing.
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At Multiplex, we understand our development projects
impact on existing and emearging communities. As a resul,
community engagement and consuliation is built into

the planning process for our projects, in order to ensure
they achieve positive social, economic and environmental
sustainability outcomas. A community engagement and
consultation plan is established for sach development
God's Golden Acre, South Africa  Bluewater, Queensland proiect, 1o provide relevant interest groups, stakeholders and
government agencies with the opportunity o be invoived in
the development process.

From door knocking carmpaigns, one-on-one meetings

and workshops, and community information and feedback
sessions; through to setting up community information

suites and websites, and distribuding newsletters, Multiplex is
committed 1o maintaining open, meaningful consultation with
its surrounding communities.

Muitipiex’s development and construction projects also
contribided to the community in a number of ways during the
periad. These included:

- constructing a $50,000 fence to protect wallables around the
perimater of the Bluswater development at Trinity Beach in
North Queensfand,

- donating a quad biks to be used by lifeguards and volunteer
surf lifesavers at the Salt Surf Life Saving Club at Casuarina
Beach to promote beach safety;

- raising funds for the Lauren Huxiey Appeal by the Pamramatia
Justice Pracinct project site;

- joining forces with Keep Scouth Australia Beautiful (KIESAR)
on a Clean Site program as part of a construction
industry initiative at Centro Colonnadas shopping centre
redevelopment site at Noarlunga Centre, south of Adelaide;

- participation by a team from the Regent Theatre site, Sydnsy
in Clean Up Australia Day;

- AnArt Plus Development Award’ for Eden at High Wycombe
0 contribute to the funding of the ‘Living Wycombe' art
project, the first Art Plus award 1o be made 1o a retall
davaiopment in the UK, and

- Muitipiex Living sponsored community events such as Avon
Cescent, the Rotinest Channe! Swim and Sculpiures by the
Sea in Cotteslos,
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Corporate Governance Statement

introduction

The directors of Multiplex Limited the Company) and
Multiplex Funds Management Limited tthe Responsible
Entity) (together the Group or Multiplex) are cormmitted to
achieving an effective system of corporate governance. The
divectors of Multiplex believe that a functional and flexible
governance framework is essential to the health of the Group
and 1o the operation of an orderty markat through clarity and
accountability in the achievemant of the Group's objectives.

The Group was listed on the Australian Stock Exchange

on 2 December 2003, Throughout the yvear the Group

has cperated in accordance with the existing systems of
corporate governance, and has also reviewed the adequacy
of those systems. A description of the Group's governance
framework is set out below,

Board of Directors

Multiplex's governance policies regulate the relationship
between the Board and securityholders, and the Board's
relationship with management. The relationship between
the Board and serior management is oritical o the Group’s
bong-term success. The Board's focus is to enhance the
irferests of securityholders and other key stakeholders
and o ensure the Group is properly managed.

The Board Charter ciarifies the respective roles of the Board
and senior management, and assists in decision making
processes through the identification of a schedule of matters
reservad soiely for the Board. The Board has delegated to
the Chief Exacutive those matters which are not formally
reservad for the Board under the Board Charter. I turn, the
Chisf Exacutive has authorised a delegation framework to
senior executives and the Multiplex Group Credit and Risk
Compmittes.

Faode of Board

”l"ﬁ@ Hoard Charter defines the role of the Board as:

- to provide guidance on and approval of corporate sirategy
and parformance;

- o moenitor the implementation of financial and other

objectives;

to overses and approve the risk, control and accountabiity

syslems;

- to monitor compliance with legal, constitutional and ethical
standards, and

- to approve and monitor major contracts and capital
expendiure including the allocation of capital to major
business units of the Group.

The Board is also responsityie for:

- the appointmant and removal of the Chisf Executive, the
Chief FMnancial Officer and the Company Secreiary,

- the review and performance evaluation of management;

- succession planning and management development; and

— ensuring effective communication with the Group's
securityholders.
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in addition to the role of the Board, the Board Charter

also sets out the role of the Chairman. The Chairman is
responsible for the leadership of the Board, the efficient
organisation and conduct of the Board’s function, the briefing
to afl dirsctors in relation o issues arising at Board mestings,
faciliating effective contribution of all directors, promating
constructive relations between Board members and between
the Board and management, follow up of matters arising
from the Board meetings, and uitimately setting the Board
agenda.

Bay-to-day management of the Group’s affairs and the
implemantation of the corporate strategy and policy initiatives
are formally delegated by the Board o the Chief Executive
and senior executives.

The Board Charter stipulates that ail direciors are entitied
to seek independent advice af Multiplex's expense and that
Hoard members should not have any business or other
relationship that could materially influence or interfere with
the exercise of thelr independent judgement apart from
those formally disclosed o Multiplex in accordance with
the Corporations Act 2007,

Buring the pericd the Board undertook a review of its
performance and of its commitiees in accordance with

the Board Charter. This evaluation was carried out by
self-assessment and identified minor alterations to the Board
Charter. These changes reflect the changing nature of the
Group's busingss.

rid comnpositon

The Board is struciured in a manner that balances the
extensive experience of existing executive direciors with the
specific experience of independent non-executive directors.

B

The Group Boards currently comprise of nine and ten
directors respectively of whom four are non-executive
independent directors. The Chalrman of each board is
Alian McBDonald. The Directors continuously review the
compaosition of the Board,

Through the financial pericd the compasition of the Boards
have changed through the appointment of Bob McKinnon as
Chief Financial Officer in January 2008 and the appointment
of James Tuckey as non-executive director in September
2005, and his subseguent executive appointment as
Chairman of the Group's UK operations in February 2006,
Following James Tuckey’s appointment 1o an executive role,
Mr Tuckey resigned from his appointments as a member

of the Audit & Risk Committee and the Remuneration
Comrmittee.

The year also saw the sad death of Founding Chairman,
John C Roberts AD on 8 June 2006 after a long finess.



The Constitution of the Company specifies that alt directors
cther than the Managing Director must retire from office no
later than the third annual general meeting {AGM) following
their last election. Where efigible, a director may stand for
re-election.

The HBoard seeks 1o ensure that:

at any point in time, its membership represents an
appropriate batance between directors with experience and
knowledge of the Group and directors with relevant external
axperience; and

the size of the Board is conducive to efiective discussion and
efficient decision-making.

The current composition of the Board is set cut below,
Allan McDonald

Allar McDonald was appointed o the Board pricr 1o the
Group's listing in December 2003 and was appointad
Non-Fxecutive Chairman of Multiplex in May 2605, Allan

has had extensive experience in the role of Chairman and

is prasently associated with a number of companies as a
consuftant and company director, Allan’s other direciorships
ot listed companies are Babcock & Brown Japan Property
Managamaent Limited {responsible entity of Babcock & Brown
Japan Property Trust) {appointed November 2004), Bilabong
International Limitedt {appaointad July 2000), DCA Group
Limited {appainted May 1988} and Ross Human Directions
Limited {appointed April 2000, Age 66.

Guring the past three years Allan has also served as a
director of the following other listed companies: Australian
Leisure and Hospitality Group Umited (October 2003 to
Novernber 2004), Brambles Industries Limited (August 1981
to November 2005), Brambles Industries ple {August 2001
to November 2005) and TAB Limited (Oclober 1997

to July 2604).

Peter J Dransfield

Pater Dransfield has formerly worked in executive roles

at Australand Holdings Limited, Long Corparation and as
the Director of Housing for the New South Wales State
Government. Peter alsc serves on the board of the trusies
for the Grant Samuel Development Trust, is a member of the
Investment Commities of the St Hiliers Enhanced Property
Trust as well as Independent Chairman of two Landcom
joint veniures. Peter is alsc a director of Bramer Park Limited
fappointed November 2008). Peter has over 3G years'
experience in the indusirial, relall and residential property
development seciors across Australia and in the United
Siates. Age 57.

There are no other listed companies of which Peter has
served as a director during the past three years.
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John Poynton AM CitWA

John is a co-founder and executive Chairman of
Azure Capital

John is Chairman of Alinta Uimited and Deputy Chairman of
Austal Limited. John is a non-executive Director of Burswood
Lid and Muitiplex L3d and is a member of the Payments
Sysiem Board of the Reserve Bank of Australia. He is
Chairman of the West Australian Museum Foundation and a
member of the Board of the Business School at the University
of Western Australia, where he also serves as Adjunct
Frofesser of Financial Services. John has previously served
as a Director of ASK and as Chairman of the ASX in Perth,

John is a Senior Fellow of the Financial Services Institute of
Australasia (FINSIA), and a Fellow of the Australian institute
of Company Directors (AICD) and Austrafian Institule of
Management (AIM).

John is a Member in the General Division of the Order
of Australia,

In June 26086, John was awarded with Citizen ot the Year
in the industry and Commerce category. Age 54,

There are no cther isted companies of which John has
served as a direcior during the past three years.

Barbara Ward

Barbara Ward has gained extensive business and finance
experience through her réle as Chief Executive Officer of
Ansett Worldwide Aviation Services, as General Managsr
Finance for the TNT Group and as a senicr ministarial
adviser. Barbara is Chairperson of Country Energy, a director
of Commonwealih Bank of Australia {appointed September
1894) and Licn Nathan Limited (appointed February 2003).
Barbara is also a direcior of Alico Finance Group Limited
lappcinted April 209055 and acis as Chairperson of the Alico
Finance Group Audit, Finance and Risk Committee. In
addifion, Barbara is a trustee of the Sydney Opera MHouse
Trust and a director of the Australia Day Council of New
South Wales. Age 52.

There are no cther sted companies of which Barbara has
served as a director during the past three years.
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Andrew Roberts

Andraw Roberts is Managing Direcior and Chief Executive of
Multiplex. During more than 20 years with Multiplex, Andrew
has been invcived in all aspects of the business. Thraugh his
position as Managing Director and Chief Executive Andrew
provides sfrategic and managerial lsadership for the Multiplex
Group execulive ieam. Andraw is a Board member of the
University of Western Australia Business School. Age 40,

Andrew also serves as a director of Scarborough Minerals
plc {appointed Juky 2006).

During the past three years Andrew also served as a direclor
of MTM Funds Management Limited (May 1998 to December
2005) fresponsible entity of MTM Entertainment Trust),
Greenwich Rescurces plc (Decambar 2001 1o Seplember
2005) {a company listed on the London Stock Exchange) and
Danae Resources NL {Decembzer 1998 1o May 2006},

Bob Mc_Kinnon

Bob MckKinnon was appeinted Muiticlex's Chief Financial
Officer in November 2006, Bob brings 35 years of extensive
financial and senior management expetience to fuliiplex,
having held senior positions with Lend Lease, MLC, State
Street Australia and fatterly, Commonwealth Bank of Australia
where he was Group Executive, Technology and Chief
Intcrmation Officer. Age 53,

There are no other listed companies of which Bols has
served as a director during the past three years.

tan O'Toole

lan is a Oirecior of the Responsible Entity and is Managing
Director of the Investment Management division, Multiplex
Capital. The Capital divisicn is responsible for the execution
and implemeantation of the Trust's investment sirategies
and managing a “Family of Trusts”. This is in addiion o
the creaticn and management of new Trusts, acquisitions,
disposais, asset and delt management, and investor
relations for each Fund. lan has over 24 years’ experience
in funds management and real estate and was pravicusly
responsible for the capital iransactions and asset
management of the ING Industrial Fund and the ING
Office Fund. Age 47.

There are no other listed companies of which lan has
served as a director during the past three years.
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Ross Mcbhiven

Ross McDiven is Chief Operating Officer of Multiplex.

Hoss has over 36 years’ experience with Mulliplex and is

a key member ot the core management team of Multiplex
Group. He spent his earty years at Multiplex in the
Construction business and for 18 years led the company's
cperations in New South Wales. Ross was also responsibie
for overseeing significant growth of Multiplex’s Development
Gperations and is now responsisie for the Group's
canstruction, development and facilities management
businesses worldwide., Age &7.

There are nG other listed companies of which Ross has
served as a director during the past thres years.

Tim Roberts

Tim Roberts has over 18 years’ experience in the
construction and property industry, working both overseas
and throughout Australia. Tim is part responsible for strategic
and operational leadership within the Development division
throughout Ausiralia and has also assumed responsibiiity for
divisional integration within the Group. Throughout his career
Tim has been involved in numercus majcr projects such as
the Perth Convention and Exhibition Centre, the Raffles Hotal
redevelopment, the King St Whart development and the Vale
land syndication in Western Ausiralia. Age 35.

There are no other listed companies of which Tim has served
as a director during the past three vears.

James Tuckey

James Tuckey was appdinted as a non-executive director in
Saeptember 20056 and subsequently accepted an executive
appointment as Chairman of Multiplex's UK operaticons in
February 2006, James is currently an invesiment adviser 1o

BP plc in respect of ts pension fund assets and is Chairman of
property consultants NAI Fuller Peiser, James spent 25 years
at MERC pic, a UK property owner and developer, most
recenily as Chief Executive from 1983 1o 1999, A Fellow of the
Royal [nstitute of Chartered Surveyors, James is a Member of
the President’s Committee of the British Property Federation,
Raving served as President during 1993 and is a former Deputy
Chairman of English Partnerships, the UK Government's
rational regeneration agency and a former Member of the
Froperty Advisory Group to the United Kingdom Department
of the Ervironment {1893 to 1997). Age 60.

There are no other listed companias of which James has
served as a director during the past three years.



Mark Witson

Mark Wilson was appointed Company Secretary of Multiplex
in 2003, He joined Multiplex in 1997 and has heid varicus
positions in the Group inciuding directcr, secretary and
Managing Director of varicus group entities. Pricr to joining
Multiplex, Mark was with one of the major accounting firms
specialising in corporate finance. Age 33.

The composition of the board of each of the Company and
the Responsible Entity represents a depariure from ASX
Guideling 2.1, which suggests that a majority of directors
should be independent. Folowing the appoiniment of James
Tuckay to an executive role, the Board is reviewing the Board's
composition and the proposed appointment of a further non-
execuiive director 1o strengthen the Board. This reflects the
imporiant contribution played by the executive directors in the
future success of Muliplex.

Healow is a table showing the Directors’ attendance at full
meetings of the direciors throughout the financial year:

Mame Number of Full Mumber of Full

Meetings in Period” Meetings Attended
John Corcoran 4 3
Peter Dransfield 12 i
Ross McDiven 12 12
Allan #cDonald 12 12
Hob Mckinncn 5] 5
lan O'Toole 12 12
John Poynton Al 12 10
John © Foberts AT 11 3
Andraw Roberis 12 12
Tim Roberts 12 12
Jamas Tuckey 9 2]
Barbara Ward 12 12

Mok of 1ol mestings held during e time the Direclos held office,

The Board has assessed the independence of its non-
executive directors according o the definition contained
within the ASX Corporate Governance Guidelines and has
concluded that all four non-executive directors, being Allan
McDonald, Peter Dransfield, John Poynton AM and Barbara
Ward, are independent. In assessing independence, the
Board adopted materiality tests using both quantitative and
quaiitative bases. An amcunt of over 5% of annual turnover
of the Group or 5% of the individua! directors’ net worth is
considered malerial for these purposes.
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Upon appo;ntmont naw d|fectors enter intc a Deed of
Access, [nsurance and Indemnity. Accordingly, they are
antitled 1o request from the Group and any of its subsidiaries
and their directors, employees, auditors and advisers,

all information reasonably required in crder 1o be able to
parform their duties as a direcior of the Group or to assass
the financial condition and prospects of the Group and iis
subsidiaries.

M( y/‘ %/‘,\S CHTTHEYCE

Fhe Board operates an induction process for new direciors
conducted by the Company Secretary and executive
management. The induction covers the history and structure
of the Group, divisicnal overviews of the business, legal

and financial averviews, key strategy, an introduction fo

key sxecuives within the Group, terms and condifions of
smployment and Board meeting protocol. In addition, new
directors are supplied with a Direcior's Manual containing
copies ot key Group documents for reference.

Upon request the Company Secretary will arrange for
directors 1o altend development programs as requested
ar as determined in cansuftation with the Chairman at the
individual director's performance assessment.

The Board has completed a review of Board performance.
This review was undertaken by each individual directcr and
the Board as a whole, The resulis of the review have been
considered by the Board. Individual director reviews have
aist besn underiaken and the results discussed with the
Chairman.

Board committees

SAHY £
Fhe Roard has astabiished an Audf and Risk Committee.
The Audit and Risk Committee is governed by a formal
charter which requires that:

all members must e able 1o read and understand financial
stafements; and

at leasi one member must have financial expertise, that is
the parson must be either a qualified accourntant or cther
financial professicnal with experience of financial accounting
matiers.

Under the charter, the chairperson of the Audit and Risk
Commitiee must be a non-executive director and cannot

be the Chairperson of the Board. The Chief Executive and
the Chief Financial Officer are not members of the Audit and
Risk Committee but may be invited to attend mestings of the
Committee for reasons of efficiency. Although they may be in
attendance they are not entitled fo vote.

The current members of the Audit and Risk Commitiee are
Allan McDonald, Peter Dransfield, John Poyrion AM and
Barbara Ward. The Board appcinted Barbara Ward as Chair
of the Committes.
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Below is a table showing the Audit and Risk Commiitee
mamber attendance throughoui the financial year:

Name Position Mumber of  Abtendance
Meetings in
Period”
Barbara Ward Chair 2} G
Peater Dransfield Member 2} G
Alian McDonaid Member 2} G
John Poynton AM - Member 2] 8
James Tuckey Member 3 3

FMuer of meetings Belo during he times the Memiber beld office.

The main responsibilities of the Committes are to

— review, assess and approve the annual full and concise
reports, the half-year financial report and all other financial
information published by the Group ar released 1o the markst;

- assist the Board in reviewing the eftectivenass of the
organisation’s internal contrel environment;

- determing the scope of the internal audit function and ensure
that its rescurces are adequate and used effectively, and
assess its performance, including independence;

- oversee the effective operation of the risk management
framework;

- recommend o the Board the appointment, removal and
remuneration of the external auditors, and review the larms
of their engagement, the scope and quality of the audit and
assess performance;

- consider the independence and competence of the external
auditor on an ongoing basis;

- review and approve the level of non-audit services provided
by the external auditors and ensure it does not adversely
impact on auditor independence;

- review and monitor related party transactions and assess
their propriety; and

- oversee the Group's transition to Internaticnal Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

In fuRiling its responsibiiities, the Audit and Risk Committes:

- receives regular reports from management, the internal and
external auditors and the FRS frangition project team;

—will meet with the internal and external auditors at least twice
ayear or more frequently if necessary;

- reviews the processes the Chis! Executive and Chief
Financial Officer have in place to support their cerfifications
to the board;

- reviews any significant disagreements between the audiicrs
and management, irrespective of whether they have been
resalved; and

- provides the internal and external audicors with a clear ine of

direct communication at any time to either the Chairpersan of

the Audit and Risk Committee or the Chairman of the Board.,
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The Audit and Risk Committes is entitted 1o consull with
experi advisers and seek expert advice where it considers

it reasonable and necessary to carry out its duties at

the expense of the Multiplex Group. The Audit and Risk
Committee alsc has a right of access 1o internal and external
auditors and o senior management.

In accordance with the Audit and Risk Commities charter the
Ceommittee has underiaken a self-assessment performance
review. This review has resulted in no major amendments 1o
the charter of the Committes.

ST F Y

The Board has established a Bemuneration Commitiee
comprising a minimum of three memisers with the majority of
members being the independent directors. The Committes
membears currently are: Allan McDonald, Peter Dransfield,
John Poynton Al and Barbara Ward, The Chalrman of the
Committee is Peter Dransfield.

The Committee is governed by a formal charter adopted
by the Board and was established to review, evaluate and
make recommendations to the Beard in relation to:

paolicies for remuneration programimes appropriate 1o
Muttiplex;

the remuneration packages of senior/executive management;
reviewing the performance of the Chiet Executive 1o pre-
determined criteria on an annual basis;

non-execUtive director remuneration;

the Company's recruitment, retenticn and termination
policies and procedures for executive/senicr management;
ncentive schemes;

superannuation arrangaments;

any report on executive remuneration, which is required
pursuant to any Listing Rule or legisiative requirement of
which is proposed for inclusion in the annual report; and
the remuneration framework for directors,

In making recommendations to the Board in relation to
non-executive director remuneration the Remuneration
Committee must source advice from external advisers
in relation to market trends for non-executive director
remunaration.

In accordance with the Remuneration Committee charter the
Ceommittee has undertaken a self-assessment performance
review. This review has resulted in no major amendments 1o
the charter ot the Committee.



Below is a table showing the Remuneration Commities
member atiendance throughout the financial year:

Mame Position Number of Attendance
Mestings in
Perod”
Peter Dransfield Chairman G 5
Allan McDonald Meamber & 5
John Poynton AV Member 5] 5
Jamas Tuckey Meamber 2 2
Harbara Ward Meamber G 5

* Murrkies of mieelings beld dudng e e the Member held office.

Further information regarding the remuneration ot
directors and seniar executives is contained in the
Remuneration Report on page 75.

The Remuneration Commitiee is also responsibie for
reviewing any fransactions between the Group and the
directors, ar any interests associated with the direcfors,

o ensure the struciure and the terms of any transactions
are in compliance with the Corporations Act 2007 and are
approoriately disclosed.

Maorainmtion Commities
The Board has ostabirshed a Nomination Commities
compfising a minimum of three members with the
majarity of members being the independent directors,
The Committee members currently are Allan McDonald,
Fater Dransfield, John Poynion AM and Barbara Ward,
The Chairman ¢t the Committee is Allan McDonaid.

The Committee is governed by a formal charter adopted by
the Board and was established to review, evaluate and make
recommendations to the Board in relation 1o various matters
including a process for determining the necessary and
desirabie competencies of Board membears, the appoiniment
ot suitably qualified candidates to the Board, and the
appointment of the Chief Executive.

In accordance with the Nomination Committee charigr the
Cemmittee has undertaken a self-assessment performance
revienw. This review has resulted in no major amendments 1o
the charter of the Commitise.

Mame Position MNumber of Attendance
Mestings in
Petlod”
Allan McDonald Chairman 4 4
Pater Dransfisid Membar 4 4
John Poynton AV Member 4 3
John © Hoberis A2 Member 3 2
Harbara Ward Meamber 4 4

* Murrkies of ssedings beld dudng the time the Membaer held office,
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Eth:ca! framework

@ oo o

A Gode of Conduoi applies to all employees of the Group.
The Cede provides guidance to Group directors and
employees regarding the slandards of conduct expected
of them in the course of their employment and their
dealings with third parties.

The Boarcl has adcpied a Security Trading Palicy fa
regulate the trading by its employees in the Group's
securities. The Beard undertook a review of the Security
Trading Pclicy and adopted amendments 1o the scope
and structure of the poficy. These amendments were
implemented in Aprit 2608,

Under the policy, ali directors and employees are prohibited
from trading in securities issued by Multiplex or any cther
secUrities nominated by Multiplex, while in possession of
unpubiished price sensitive infermation.

Further restrictions on trading apply to dirgcfors and to
nominated employess, who are permitted 1o frade in
secuUrities issued by Mullipiex:

Commencing 24 hours after the announcement of

hatf-yearly results until 3G days thereafier;

- Commencing 24 hours after the announcement of yearly
resufts urtil 30 days hereafter;

— Commencing 24 hours after the annual general mesting

urdit 30 days thereafter; and

Or as otherwise determinad by the Board.

Uirectors must keop the Board advised, on an ongoing basis,
of any interest that could poteniially conflict with those of the
Company. The Board has developed procedures to assist
directors to disclose potential conflicis of interest.

Whare the Board believes that a significant conflict exists
jor a director on a board matter, the director concaermed
does not receive the relevant board papers and is not
present al the meeting whilst the iterm is considered.
Details of director related entity transactions with the
Company and consalidated entity are sel oul in Note 34
of the Full Financial Beport.
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reporting

Eraeutive

In accordance with the Corporations Act and ASX Principle
4, the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer

have provided to the Board a written statement that in

thedr apinicn the financial statements of Multiptex Limited,
Multiplex Property Trust and the consolidated entity
present a true and fair view, in all material respects, of their
financiai candition, have been prepared in accordance with
relevant accounting standards and further that the financial
records of Multiplex Limited, Muttiplex Property Trust and
the consolidated entity have been property maintained in
accordance with section 286 of the Corporations Act.

The Board has also received a siatement from the
Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Oificer made in
accordance with ASX Principle 7.2, This statement also
containg a certification that having made all reasonatie
enquiries and to the best of the knowledge and belief of
the Chief Executive and the Chief Financial Officer:

The statermenis made in relation to the financial integrity of
the Group financial reports are founded on a sound systam
of risk management and internal compliance and control;
The system of risk managementi in operaticn at 30 June
2008 implements the policies adopted and delegated by the
Board of Directors and of the aother decision-making bodies
operaiing within the Group and was operating eftectively; and
The systems relating to financial reporting are operating
effectively in all material respects at 36 June 20086,

The statemenis made by the Chisf Executive and the
Chief Financial Officer have been supported by the internal
assessmant of the stalus and operaticn of the financia
risk management and internal compliance and control
systems primarily through declarations made by specific
executives within the Group who were deemed 1o have
direct knowledge and control over those systems,

Associates and non-controlled entilies were not considered
by the Chief Ixecutive and the Chief Financial Officer for the
purposes of their statermnants.

At ared ek Corrant
The role of the Audit and Risk Committee in promoting
integrity in financial reporting is described above.

£ %
The policy of the Board is 1o appoint external auditors

who clearty demonstrate quality and independence. The
performance of the external auditor is reviewsd annually

and applications for tender of external audit services are
requested as deemed appropriate, taking into consideration
assessment of performance, existing value and lender costs.
KPMG has a policy 1o rotate audit engagement partners on
isted companies at least every five years,

64

An analysis of fees paid 1o the external auditors, including
a breakdown of fees for non-audi services, is provided
on page 91 of the Directors’ Report. It is the pdlicy of the
external auditors to provide an annual declaration of their
ndependence 1o the Audit and Risk Commitiee.

The external auditor is required to attend the annual genera
meeting and to be available 1o answer securityhclder
questions about the conduct of the audi and the preparaiion
and content of the audit report.

Market disclosure

9% s Disolonure
The Board is commitied to the promation of investor
confidence by providing full and timely infarmation to all
securityhclders and market participants about the Group's
activities and fo comply with the continuous disclosure
requirements contained in the Corporations Act 2007 and
the Australian Stock Exchange Listing Rules. The Continucus
Uisclosure Policy was subject to a Board review in 2005 and
was again updated in February 2006,

oy

The purpose of the Continuous Bisclosure Palicy is to
detail the processes implemented by the Group 1o ensure
compdiance with continuous disclosure requirements and
o act as a guide to all relevant personnel.

Multiplex has nominated the Company Secretary as the
Continuous Disclosure Officer o be responsibie for the
design, implementation and ongoing monitaring of this
paticy. The Continucus Disclosure Officer also acts as the
primary contact between Muitiplex and the ASX in relation to
disclosure issues and is responsible for reviewing proposed
anncuncements, liaising with management and preparing
regular disclosure reports to the Board.,

The pclicy dictates that material price sensitive information
must not be released o any person with the exception of
auditors, lawyers and advisers that have been engaged by
the Group, until it has given the information to the ASX and
has received an acknowledgement that the ASX has released
the information to the market. All information released to the
market is then posted to the Group website.

In crder to capture intormation thal may need to be
disclosed, directors and executive officers have been
recognised as being responsible for identifying relevant
information about the activities of their business units.

In this regard, Muitiplex has established a training and
development program to ensure that directcrs and executive
cfficers are aware of the obligations of Multiplex 10 keep the
market fully informed. A guidance note for employees has
alsc been incorporated into the Continucus Disclosure Policy
in order G ensure that fimely and accurate information about
the Group is provided equally to all securityhciders and
markeat participants.



Securityholders’ righis

The Board fully supports securityholder participation at
general meetings as well as ensuring that communications
with securityholders are effective and clear, 7o promote
undersianding of this the Board has adopted a
Communications Policy.

Unless otherwise requested, all securityholders receive
a copy of the annual and halfyearly reports. In addition,
the Group seeks to provide cpportunities for securityholders

o participate through electronic means. Through the Group's -

wahsite, securityholders are able to accass an email query
mechanism and have an oplion 1o register their email
addrass {0 receive Multipiex annual and halt-year reports
via email nofifications.

Wherever possible the Group has fried 1o minimise the
environmental impact with regards to the preparation and
distribution ot financial reports. Throughout the last year the
Group has striven to offer securityhotders an environmeantally
frisndly alternative 1c receiving hard copy financial reports.
Wherever possible the Group communicates with
securityholders by electronic means and aclively promotes
the Flectronic Investor service to all new investors. The
Hectronic Invesicr service is available 1¢ all securityholders,
By choosing this opticn securityholders can receive
Multiplex Group half-year and annual reports electronicaliy.
A natification emall is sent to the securityholder when the

halt-year and annual reporis become avaiiabie fo view online.

Faflowing the implamentation of the CLERP 9 raforms
securityhalders will also be able 1o receive electronically,

if they agree, the notice of meeting for the AGM. The Group
supports the adoption of other methods of electronic
communications and is also reviewing its options following
the recent announcement by the Federal Government o
allow listed entities to make annual reports available on the
internat, with hard copies only being sent to securityholdars
Upon reguast.

Risk assessment and management

The Board, through the Audit and Bisk Commiitee, is
responsible for ensuring there are adequate palicies in
relation 1o risk management, compliance and intarnal
control systems. These policies are designed to ensure
relevant risks are identified, assessed, efiectively and
efficiently managed and monitcred o enable achievement
ot the Group’s business oyectives.

05

The basic risk management principles utiised at Multiplex,
as espoused under systems such as AS4360, CPA Australia,
COSC and other well regarded risk management standards,
include:

Establish the context within which risks are to be
considered sk appetite, key philosaphy, operating
anvironmant, competitive environment, otxectives);

[dentify risks;

Test and analyse risks for ikelihood and impact;

Evaluate risks and possible responses;

Treai the rigks (Bg. insurance, contract terms, engagement
of specialist advigers, alternate method of construction,
additional financier); and

Monitor the sffectiveness of the risk ireatment.

Considerable importance is placed on maintaining a strong
coniral environment responsible for ensuring compliance
with the principles above. This is supported through the role
of the Multiplex Group Credit and Risk Committee and the
divisional structures that sit below this Commitiee.

Muitiplex Group has dedicated key resources to the risk
management function focused on ensuring the ongoing
enhancement and effectiveness of the risk controf
framework,

The Credit and Risk Committes was established by
managemant and has a clearly defined charter. There are
saven voting members on the Credit and Risk Commitiee.
The: voting members include the Chief Fxecufive and the
Chief Financial Officer as weli as the Chairpersons of the
operating divisions.

The Cradit and Risk Committee’s main objective is 1o
regulate and administer the risk and capital approval
framework for Muitiplex. This reguiation and administration
applies 1o both financial and operational commitments and
is always subject to the defined matiers reserved for the
Board set out in the Board Charter. In accordance with the
delegation framework the Credit and Risk Committes is
broadly responsible for contractual, financial, investment
and reputation risk.

This strong contral environment is alsc reinforced through the
definition of the crganisaiion structure with clearly drawn lines
of acoountability and delegalion of authority. At the individual
employes level, adherence to the Code of Conduct is
required at all imes and the culture of quality and integrity is
further supported through the active promction of the Board.
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Detailed control procedures are in place covering
management accounting, financial reporting, project
appraisal, environment, health and safety, [T security,
compliance and other risk management issues, The risk
management framewacrk is supported by internal audi
carrying out regular systematic monitaring of controd activities
and report to both relevant business unit management and
the Audit and Risk Commitise.

Risk management conircls and processes have been
created throughout the Group and are based on the
operational fundamentals of the operating divisions which

inn turn feed into the Cradit and Risk Committee. The [niernal
Audit function provides an independent assessment of risk
treatment according 1c declared controls and processes.

The past 12 months have shown ongoing enhancemeant of
risk management systems and struciures within Muitiplex
such as the allocation of dedicated risk management
resources and the review of the Cradif and Risk Committee
processes and charter. \Wherever possibile, risk management
systems are being standardised throughcout the Group.

The Construction division Global Managemeni System
which is used throughout Australia, New Zealand, the
United Kingdom and the United Arab Emirates was
audited by DLIG Cartification Services (OLIG), part of the
Davis Langdon & Seah international Group. The audit
covered such areas as Quality Systems (SO 2001),
Ervircnmental Systems (SO 14001), Health and Safety
Systems (150 18001 /Australian Standards 4801) which
form the basis of our management system.

DU provides certification to (SO standards and to

other relevant business management system standards,
including Austratian Standards. DL certification is
recognised by JAS-ANZ and UKAS 1o provide certification
worldhwide to International 1S0 Standards and Austrafian
standard management systems and requirements.
Following the review the Construction division successfully
retained all current certification.

With the exception of the departures from the ASX
Corparate Governance Guidelines detalled above,
Multiplex Group believes that it has followed the best
practice recommendations set by the ASX,
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Directors’ Report 09
Multiplex Limited and its controlled entities

Introduction

The Directors of Multiplex Limited {the Company or Multiplex) present their report together with the concise financial report
of the "Consolidated Entity”, being the Company and its controlied sentities (Multiplex Group or the Group), for the year ended
30 June 2006 and the independent audit report theraon.

Directors

Ay Allan McDonald
Ay Patar J Dransfield
Ay Ross A McDiven

Ay Robert V Mcolkinnon
My John 1 Poynton AM
My Andrew T Roberts
Mr Timothy A Foberts
Mr James L Tuckey

Ms Barbars K Ward

The following persons ceased to hold office during the vear ended 30 June 2006

Mr John A Corcoran fresigned 16 October 2005)
Mr John C Roberts AO {passed away 8 June 2008).

F e B e, e o e, T
wfnrraation on Lhr

Birector {of Muttiplex Limited)  Experience Special Responsibilities

Allan McbBonald Altan McbDonald was appointed to the Board prior {o the Group's MNon-Executive

Btcon, FCPA, FAIM, FCIS  isting in December 2003 and was appointed Non-Executive Chairman
Chalrman of Muliinlex in May 2005, Allan has had extensive
experience in the role of Chairman and is presently associated with
a number of companies as a consultant and company director.
Allan's other directorships of listed companies are Babcock & Brown
Japan Property Management Limited {responsible entity of Babeock
& Brown Japan Property Trust) (appointed November 2004),
Billabong Infernational Limited {appointed July 2000, DCA Group
Limited {appointed May 1988} and Ross Human Directions Limited
lappointed April 2000} Age 66,

Buring the past three years Allan has also served as a direcior of the
foliowing other sted companies: Australian Leisure and Hospitality
Group Umited (Ociobaer 2003 1o Novernber 2004, Brambles
Industries Limited [August 1981 to November 2005), Bramblas
Industries plc {August 2001 to Novemnber 2005) and TAB Limited
(Ociober 1997 to July 2004}

Chairman of
Nomination Committes

Pster J Dransfield Peter Dransfield has formerly worked in executive roles at Australand  Chairman of
Holdings Limited, Long Caorporation and as the Birector of Housing Remuneration
for the New South Wales State Government. Peter also serves on Commities
the Board of the trustee for the Grant Samuel Development Trust, is
a member of the nvestment Committes of the St Hillers Enhanced
Froperty Trust as weall as independeant Chairman of two Landcom
joint veniures. Peter is aiso a director of Bremer Park Limited
([appointed November 2005). Peter has over 30 years’ experience
in the industrial, retall and residential property development seclors
across Australia and in the United States. Age 57,

There are no other listed companies of which Peter has served as a
diractor during the past three years.
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Director (of Multiplex Limited)  Expetience Special Responsibilities

John Poynton AM CHWA
BCam, FSIA, FAM, FAICD

John is a co-founder and execuiive Chairman of Azure Capital.

John s Chairman of Alinta Limited and Deputy Chalrman of Austal
Limited. John is a non-executive Director of Burswood Lid and
Multiplex Ltd and is a member of the Payments System Board of the
Feserve Bank of Australia. He is Chalrman of the West Australian
Museum Foundation and a member of the Board of the Business
School at the University of Western Australia, whers he also serves
as Adjiunct Professor of Financial Services. John has previously
served as a Director of ASX and as Chairman of the ASX in Perth.

John is a Senior Fellow of the Financial Services institute of Australasia
(FINSIAY, and a Fellow of the Australian Institute of Company Directors
fAKCD) and Australian Institute of Management {AIM),

John is a Member in the General Division of the Order of Australia,

in June 2006, John was awarded with Citizen of the Year
int the Industry and Commerce category. Age 54.

There are no cther listed companies of which John has served as a
director during the past three years.

Barbara Ward
HEcon, MPolEcon, MAICD

Barbara Ward has galned exiensive business and finance experience  Chalrman of the Audit
through her role as Chief Executive Dificer of Ansett Worldwide and Risk Committes
Autation Services, as General Manager Finance for the TNT Group

and as a senior ministerial adviser. Barbara is Chalrman of Country

Energy, a director of Commonweaith Bank of Australia (appointed

Septermber 1984} and Lion Nathan Limited {appointed February

2003). Barbara is also a director of Allco Finance Group Limited

{appointed Aprit 2005) and acts as Chalrman of the Alico Finance

Group Audit, Finance and Risk Commities. In addition, Barbara is

a trustee of the Sydney Opera House Trust and a directer of the

Ausiralia Day Council of New South Wales, Age B2,

There are no other listed companies of which Barbara has served as
a diractor during the past three years.

Ross McDiven
HCom

Ross McDiven is Chief Operating Cificer of Muitiplex. Ross has Chigf Operating Officer
over 36 years’ experience with Multiplex and is a key member of

the core management team of Multiplex Group. He spent his early

years at Multiplex in the Consiruction business and for 18 years

ted the Company’s operations in New South Wales, Ross was

also responsible for overseeing significant growth of Multiplex's

Bevelopment operations and is now responsible for the Group's

Censtruction, Development and Faciiies Management businesses

waorldwide. Age b7

There are no other listed companies of which Ross has served as a
director during the past three years.

Hob Mckinnon
BCom, CA, MAICD

Bob McKinnon was appeinted Multiplex's Chie! Financial Officer Chief Financial Officer
in Novernber 2005, Bob brings 35 years’ of extensive financial and

serior management experience to Multiplex, having heid senior

posiions with Lend Lease, MLC, State Strest Australia and latterly,

Commonwealth Bank of Australia whers he was Group Fxecutive,

Technciogy and Chisf Information Officer. Age B3,

There are no cther listed companies of which Bob has served as a
director during the past three years.
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Birector {of Muttiplex Limited)  Experience Special Responsibilities
Andraw Roberis Andrew Roberts is Managing Director and Chief Executive of Managing Birector and
BCom, MEBA Mudtiplex. During rmore than 20 years with Multiplex, Andrew has Chief Executive

been invoived in all aspects of the business. Through Hs position

as Managing Director and Chief Executive Andraw provides strategic
and managerial leadership for the Multiplex Group executive team.
Andrew is a board member of the University of Western Australia
Business Schocl. Age 39

Andrew also serves as a director of Scarborough Minerals plc
(appointed July 2006).

Buring the past three years Andrew alsc served as a director of
MTM Funds Management Limited {responsible entity of MTAM
Ertertainment Trust) (May 1998 fo December 2005), Greenwich
Resouwrces pic (a company listed on the London Stock Exchange)
(December 2001 to September 2005) and Danas Resources NL
(December 1938 to May 2008).

Tim Foberts Tim Roberts has over 18 vears’ expsrience in the construction and
property industry, working both overseas and throughout Ausiralia.
Tim is part responsible for stralegic and operaticnal leadership within
the Development division throughoot Australia and has also assumed
respensibility for divisional integration within the Group. Throughout
his career Tim has been involvad in numerous major projects such

as the Perth Convention and Exhibition Cendre, the Raffles Hotel
redevelopment, the King St Wharf development and the Vale land
syndication in Western Ausiralia. Age 35.

there are no other listed companies of which Tim has served as a
director during the pasi three years.

Jamas Tuckey James Tuckey was appointed as a Non-Executive Director Chairman - UK
in September 2005 and subseguently accepted an executive Cperations
appointment as Chairman of Multiplex's United Kingdom (U]
operations in February 2006, James is currently an investment
achviser to BP plc in respect of its pension fund assets and is
Chairman of property consultants NAI Fuller Peiser. James spent
recently as Chief Exacutive from 19923 fo 19899, A Fellow of the
Roval Institute of Chartered Surveyors, James is a Member of the
Fresident's Committes of the British Property Federation, having
served as President during 1993 and is a former Deputy Chalman
of English Partnerships, the UK Government regeneration agency for
England and a former Member of the Property Advisory Group to the
UK Degartment of the Ervironment (1993 to 1997). Age 60,

There are no other listed companies of which James has served as
a direcior during the past three years.

Mark Wilson Mark Wilson was appointed Company Secrefary of Multiplex Limited  Fxecutive General
BCom, LLE, FFIN in 2003, He ioined Multiglex in 1997 and has held various positions Manager — Corporate
in the Group including Director, Secretary and Managing Director

of various Group entiies. Prior 1o joining Multiplex, Mark was with
one of the major accounting firms specialising in corporate finance.
Ags 39,
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Paraci : 4
The number of Directors’ meetings {including mestings of committees of Directors) for the Company, and the number of
mestings attendad by each of the Direciors during the financial year wera:

Board Audit & Risk Remuneration Nomination
Meetings Corrynities Commitiee Commitiee
Meetings Meetings Mesetings
Director A B A B A B A B
Mr J A Corcoran 3 4 v * ¥ i * i
Mr P J Dransfield 11 12 G 5 & 4 4
r R A McBiven 12 12 - * ¥ i * i
i ¥ A MecDonald 12 12 ] g B 5] 4 4
ir RV MeKinnon 5 5 ¥ * ¥ i * i
Mr J H Poynton AM 10 12 & 2 5 8 3 4
Mir AT Roberts 12 12 - i ¥ i * i
dir J C Robarts AD? 3 11 " * ¥ * 2 4
Mir T A Roberts 12 12 - i ¥ * * i
Mr J L Tuckey' 9 G 3 3 2 2 * *
Ma B K Ward 12 12 9 G 5 & 4 4

A MNurnber of meetings attended,

B Nurnber of mestings held during the time the direclor held office during the year,

* Mot a member of the relevant commilize,

1 W Tuckey was a Non-Executive Director of Multiplex Limited until his agpaintment 10 an executive role ag Chairman - UK Operations in Febraary 2008,
2 Wr John G Rloberts AQ passed away on 8 June 2008,

i 5 Kay activities for the division during the year included:
During the vear the principal aciivities of the Group were

Property Development, Construction, Faciiities Management,
Investment Managemeant, Property Funds Management and
Property Investment.

- bease pre-commitments being achisved for three new
builtdings at King Street Whart (Sydney) and World Square
{Sydney) to be delivered over the next three years for
American Express, Macquarie Bank and the Australian

There were no changes in the Group's activities during Taxation Office;
the year. — The completion of three multi-residential projecis being
o e E s Raffies (Parth), The Chancellor (Sydney} and Lakeland's Villas
g5 TEMEYENONE \
({Goid Coasty,

Multiplex Group (the Group) recorded a net profit after tax
attributatie to stapted securityholders of $2168.8 million for
the year ended 30 June 2006, The result has besn prepared
for the first tme under AFRS.

— Progress on a further three multi-residential projects which
are currently pre-seliing. Subject to demand, construction
on these projects is expectsd to commence this vear,

— The completion of Stage 1 of the Vale master planned

% community in Western Australia, with all iots sold. Strong
pre-sates of the Newport Quays master planned community
The Property Bevelopment division contributed earnings in Adeiaide allowed construction to commencs;
before interest and tax of $100.0 miflion to the overal — Planning approval being received for two retall centres
Group result, on external revenue of $3417.4 million. during the year, and the retall development asset base

The division's result for the year included profits of being eﬁpanded with the acquisition of Witsonton Shopping

o . . Centre {Toowoomba);

$37.2 million from the divestment of various UK assets. ; , o
! P , - The commencement of construction on the $720 million

These profits were offset by $35.3 million nventory valtation . . e
W;Ete-dgwm and project ogst write-offs, The r@duition in Efd@ﬂ retal d@vgiopm@p‘{ at High Wy‘ff"’T‘b@ in Southern
inveriory valuation primarily reflects the currently weaker B .E.';Qg!iggt;;%w?fchigfﬁtpjzx h?;;ﬁg{%g;%fﬁaﬁgg
inner-city residential market in Sydney, while the cost write- 2 resi d@ntiai%owpr iri ’C@% tz’gﬁ_or on ’
offs refate fo previously approved residential deveicpment © s

schemes that have now been changed to commercial At June 2006 the gross development value of the UK
development schemes in arder to capitalise on the strong development pipeline remained relatively unchanged from
commaercial property market in Australia, June 2005 at $9.3 billion, whilst the value of the Australian

partfolio had increased from $5.1 billion o $6.8 bilion.



@ -Co.nstr.uction division contributed a loss before interast
and tax of $318.8 milicn to the overall Group result,
fxternal revenue was 52,468.0 milion,

As widely reported, the Construction division's overall

resuit has beer materially affected by additional losses of
$364.3 milion belfore tax incurred in respect of the Wambley
project. This result is unchanged fom December 2005,

Buring the year, the Construction division compleied

25 maior projects valued at $2.5 billion and continued 1o
reptenish s workbook, securing 18 major new contracis at a
total value of $2.9 bilion. At June 2006 the division’s portfolio
included 36 projects with a total contract value in excess

of 38 billion. The portfolio is 52% complete and achieving
ovarall marging consistent with historical norms.

in the UK, Wembley is now substaniially complets and the
Group is focusing on pursuing recoveries from third parties.
Buring the year, the Group was successiul in its claim against
the former steel subcontractor at Wembley.

The remaining key activities during the vear for the
division werea:

The completion of Southern Cross (Melbourms) for the Trust;
Freshwater Place (Mefbourne) - the second largest residential
project in Meltbourne's history, Raffles {Perth) — a luxury
residential complex, Riparian Plaza and Festival Towers
{Brisbane), DIFC - The Gate and Phase 1 of the Burj
Rasidences (Dubal, and The Knightsbridge {London) —
recognised as one of London's most prestigious new
residential developments;

The securing of a number of new contracts including
Meibourne Convention and Exhibition Centre (Melboume),
Parramatta Justice Pracinct {Sydnsy), 538 Bourke Street
Malbourne), Syivia Park Mall {Auckland), The Index {Dubai)

- an 88-storey multi-use bullding, and Eden-High Wycombe
Shopping Centre (Southerm England); and

Cortinued progress by Multiplex Enginearing on two projects
being the Perth Desalination Plant and the Moma Mineral
Sands processing plant project in Northerm Mozambigue.

The Faciliies Manag@f;n@nt division contributed sarnings
before interest and tax of $7.4 milion o the overall Group
resuit.

Buring the year the division increased iis number of contracis
by 22% from 82 to 100, The average term of these contracts
exceeds ning years. The new contracts include a 10-year
faciiities management contract for the new Parramatta
Justice Precinct, an 18-year condract for Centralink HQ
{Canberra) and a 25-year contract for the Melbourne
Cenvention and Exhibition Centre.
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This division contributed sarnings before interest and tax of
£53.8 million to the overall Group result. Of these samings,
49% related to the management of its growing porticlio of
funds under management, and the remainder of $27.2 milion
refated 1o profit on the sale of is interest in the Sapphire
Retall Fund in the LK

The key activities during the year included:

Growing total funds under management (FUM) to $5.8 billion
(2005 $5.5 biliory, after allowing for the sale of the

$0.7 bifion Sapphire Retall Fund;

The launch of a new $640 million Austrafian Office Fund
(MAFFF), to be listed in September 2006, This transaction
was a major milestone in the growth of extermal FUM and
raprasents a showcasing of Muliiplex's integrated property
business modsl; and

The launch of Multiplex Acumen Vale Syndicate in Westermn
Australia.

The Trust performed strongly during the vear and contributed
sarmings bhefore interest of $448.5 million 1o the overall Group
result (2005 $126.0 milion),

I accordance with Group policy, all investment properties
were independently falr valted during the year and Trust
earnings included FVAs of 82277 million in respect of its
investment properties and the investment properties of its
associates.

Buring the year the Trust has:

- Improved cocupancy 1o B9%;
- Achieved a tenant retention rate of 90% by area, with 119

rew and renswed leases completed in respect of more than
25 000sgm,

Congcluded 433 rert reviews in respect of 340,000sgm

or 43% of the portfolic's net letiable area, at an average
increase of 3.9%;

Achieved an average total return of 28.4% from its equity
investments in Muliiplex managed funds; and

— Sold Goidfiedds House at a profit to the Trust of $26.6 million.

The weighed average lease term {by income) acioss the
Trust’s porticlio is now 8.4 years, compared o the industry
average for office listed property trusts of five years.

Significant changes in state of affairs
There were no significant changes in the siate of affairs of
the Company during the year.



Directors’ Report continued

Matters subsequent to the end of the financial year
On 22 June 20086, a wholly owned subsidiary of Multiplex
Limited, Multiplex Capital Limited, fodged a product
disclosure staterment for a new CBD office fund, the Mukltiplex
Acumen Prime Property Fund {(the Fund). The Fund is
seeking 1o raise equity of 3163 milion {and may accept up
to $28 million in over subscriptions) with a portfofio of assets
valued at $640 miliion. The Fund's portiolio will comprise
the following investments: 100% of the new American
Express buliding at Sydney's King Sireet Whart, curreritly
under development by Multiplex Developments and due

for completion in December 2007, B0% of Ernst & Young
Centre and 50 Goulburn Street, World Sguare, Sydney;

25% of Southern Cross Tower, Melbourne; 100% of Defence
HPlaza, Melbourne and a portfciio of listed property trust
securities. The offer of units in the Fund opened on 10 July
2006 with trading expected 1o commence on the Australian
Stock Exchange on or around 15 September 2006, Muttiplex
Property Trust will retain a cormersione irwestment in the
Fund. Upon completion of the offer the net proceeds
recaived by Multiplex Group will allow for a reduction in
existing borrowings.

On 17 August 2006, Multiplex Group announced the ransfer
of the construction contract for the White Gity project in the
Unifed Kingdem to Westfield Group. Westfield will assume
construction responsibility for White City and will continue o
coilaborate with Multiplex Group on construction elerments
for the duration of the project. The agreement with Wastfield
provides for subcontractors currently engaged on the project
to be assigned to Westiield and for the secondment of
Multiplex UK construction personnsl directly engaged on the
projact to Westfield. Under the agreement Multiplex will retain
responsitiity to deliver certain rall works in relation o the
White City project.

Apart from the events notad above, thera has not arisen in the
interval between the end of the financial pericd and the dale
of this report any matier or circumstance that is iikely, in the
opirion of the directors, o affect significantly the operations of
the Company, the results of those operations, or the siate of
affairs of the Company, in future financial years.

Likely developments and expected resulis

of operations

Information on likely developmentis in the operations of the
Company in future financial years and the expecied results
of those operations has been included in the Muitiplex
Group Annual Beport. In the opinion of the direciors,
further information has not been included in this report
because the directors belleve that to do so would be likely
to resull in unreasonable prejudice to the Company and the
Multiplax Group.

4

Environmentat regulation

Ag an integrated property group, the Group's operations

are subject fo significant environmental regulation under
international, Australian Commonwealth and State legislation.
This is particularly the case in refation 1o the Company’s
Construction, Development and Property Investment activities.

The Company has systemns in place to manage its
environmental obligations within #s construction activities. As a
developer and property invesior, the Company is also subject
to and operates under other environmental reguiations.

Buring the year thers were no significant environmental
breaches within any of the Company's activities.

The following minor breaches have accurred through
the year

My Deaiand

An abatement notice was issued to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and a comesponding fine of
NZEE33 pald ioliowing a leakage of muddy water running
irto the strest drain outside the sife.

Notices V\:feté issued to a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company for excessive notse from one of the Company's
sites with fotal fines of £68,000 paid in January 2008,

Dividends and distributions

Total dividends and distributions declared o securityholders
during the year ended 30 June 2006 were 25.5 cenis
2005 29.81 cents).

Distribution Reinvestment Plan {DRP}

As previously announced to the ASX on 168 June 2005,
the Muttiplex Group DRI has been deactivated until
otherwise advised.



Remuneration Report
Your directors submit their audited Bemuneration Report
{the Report) for the year ended 30 June 2006,

Way Muoraoerment Personnel
The names and details of the Key Management Personnet
of Multiplex Uimited and its controlled entities {the Group) in

office during the financial year until the date of this report are
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listed below. Key Management Personnel wers in office for
this entire period undess ctherwise stated. This disciocsure
aiso includes the five executives who recaeived the highest
ramuneration, whether or not they were Key Management
Parsonnal by any other definition. Independent direciors
are defined as Key Management Personnel, but they do
not consider themsebves as part of management.

Mame Capacity Title

Ay B A McDonald Non-Fxecutive Chalrman Non-Exacutive Chairman

Ay P J Dransiield Non-Fxecutive Direcior Non-Exacutive Direcior

Mr J H Poynton AM Non-Executive Director Non-Executive Director

Ms B K Ward MNon-Fxaecutive Direcior Non-Exacutive Direcior

Mr J C Roberts AQ Eracutive Director Founding Chalrman and Executive Director;

My AT Roberts Fracutive Director

Ay B A McDiven Fxecutive Director
Mr J L Tuckey Eracutive Director
A BV MoKinnon Fracutive Director
Ay T A Roberts Fxacutive Director
W M G Wilson Member of the Executive Committee

Mr J A Corcoran Former Executive Direcior

Mr N R Henderson Former Executive Direcior

Mr 1 B G'oote Memiber of the Executive Committes
Ay it J B Tigd Fracutive
M G Kostas Eracutive
Mr M H Stagg Eracutive

deceased 8 June 2008

Chief Executive and Managing Director

Chisf Operating Officer

Exscutive Chalrman UK, appointed 23 September
2005

Chisf Financiat Cfficer; appointed 18 January 2006
Exscutive Director

Exacutive General Manager Corporate and Company
Sacratary

Former Chief Investment Officer, ceased as a director
November 20056, Ceased employment 30 June 2006
Former Chairman - Construction division;

ceased employmert 30 April 2006

Managing Director - Multiplex Capital

Managing Director, Construction UK

(GGEM Sirategy, Capital and Transactions

Former Director Construction UK,

ceased employment 12 August 2005

This Report outlines the remuneration arrangaments in
place for directors and executives of the Group. Throughout
this Report compensation is referred 1o as remuneration,
and includes cash, norrmoenetary and other consideration
received by any of the Key Management Personnet over the
course of the financial year.

Famune g

This Report describes the Group's policy o the
remuneration of directors and Key Management Personnel.
The Report alzo containg specific details of the remuneration
and inferests in secwrities held by the directors and Key

Management Personnel.

The Multiplex Group Remuneration Gommittes reviews,
evaluates and makes recommendations fo Multiplex
Limited's Board regarding remuneration policy.

The Group has adopted four key guiding principles which
vnderpin the Group's execulive remuneration struciure:

— Remuneration should result in an alignment of interests of all
executives with the interests of the Group's securityhinidars
through the creation of value for the securityholders. As for

most crganisations, the Group's remuneration strategy
svolves in ine with confemporary market practice;

- Remuneration should be markst based and competitive.
The Group periadically reviews the components of the
rermuneration system, such as salary competitiveness,
short-term and long-term incentive plans, and equity
ownership;

- Remunaration should enable the Group to attract and retain
talented execuiives; and

- Remuneration structures should be transparent and readily
understood. As the Group changes, impertant aspects such
as remunaeration need to similarly develop.

The Group aims to maintain the effectiveness of the
rernuneration framework and systemns In order 1o provide
the necessary alignment with securityholder interests.

Remuneration arrangements and performance targets
for executives are agreed with each individual. Feference
is made o independent remuneration consuling advice,
including benchmarking against comparative data where
availabte,
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At the time of the Initial Public Offering (1PO) in December
2003, executives were able {o take interest-free loans

to purchase Group stapled securities. The Employee
Ownershsp Man is discussed in more detall below.

Faayy 5y 30y 4%

The Remuneration Committee reviews the remuneration
strategy 1o ensure policies and practices are appropriate.
This commitiee makes recommendations 1o the Board
on the Chief Executive's remuneration, and approves the

remuneration for all direct reports 1o the Chief I'xecutive.

The currert members of the Remuneration Committes are
Pater Dransfield (Chairj, Barbara Ward, Allan McbDonald
and John Poynton AWM. All members of the Remuneration
Committes are independent non-executive direciors, The
Chisf Exacutive, though not a member of the Committee,
may attend by invitation.

Framiur % i

In accordance with baest practico COrpOrate governancs,
the structure of non-executive direcior and executive
remuneration is separate and distingt.

The Board seeks to set aggregate remuneration at alevel
that provides the Group with the ability {o attract and retaln
directors of the highest calibre, whilst incurring a cost that is
accepiable 1o securityholders.

Rermuneration of nor-execuiive directors is determined by the
Board within a cap of $1.0 milion. Non-executive directors
take no part in the discussion or decision relating 1o their

own fees. I setling the fees, the responsibiiiies of directors
in dealing with the complex giobal nature of Multiplex's
business, and the level of fees paid to non-executive direciors
in comparable companies, are considerad.

The amount of aggregate remuneration socught to be
approved by securityholders and the manner in which itis
apportioned amongst directors is reviewed annually. The
Board considers advice from external consultants as well
as the fees paid o non-executive direciors of comparable
companies when undertaking the annual review process.

Fach director receives a fee for being a director of the Group.
An additional fee is also paid for each Beard commilise

on which a director sits. The payment of additional fees

for serving on a commities recognises the additional time
commitment required by directors who serve on one or more
sub-committess.

Non-executive directors have been long encouraged by
the Board to hold securities in the Group {purchased by
the director on market). It is considered good governance
for directors to have a stake in the Group on whose board
thay sit.
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The non-exascutive directors are not enditted to receive
retirermnent benefits beyond statutory superannuation
contributions. As required, the Company obiains reguiar
market research to ensure non-executive director
remunaration is in ine with market rates.

Mr McDonald receives fees higher than other norn-executive
directors by virtue of his position as Non-Executive Chalrman
of Multiplex Limited and Multiplex Funds Management
Limited {the Responsibie Entity of the Mudtiplex Property
Trust,

Betails of the nature and amount of each major slement of
the remuneration received by the directors are set out in the
remuneration table.

This Secﬁon of the R@por{ cohtams detaﬂs oi th@ various
potential components of remuneration for Muliiplex's Key
Management Personnel, including the executive directors.

The Group alms o reward executives with a level and mix
of remuneration commensyrate with their position and
responsibifities within the Group and o

Reward executives for company, business unit and indhddual
performance against targets sei by reference 1o appropriate
benchmarks;

Align the interests of executives with those of securityholders;
Lirsk rewards with the strategic goals and performance of the
Group; and

brsure total remuneration is competitive by market
standards.

& remuneration structure for executives typically comprises
a base package (including superannuation and allowancas),
and a variable short-term incentive component.

The Group provides salary, superannuation contributions and
other benefits for executive directors and Key Management
Parscrnel within a framework known as Total Bemuneration
Package (TRP). This framework provides an execulive

with the flexibitity to choose the precise mix of cash,
superannuation, and oher benafits up to the overall
specified fotal amount. It should be noted, as explained
below, overperiormance on the part of the executive could
mean that total aciual remuneration may exceed the THP
because Short-Term Incentives (S1is) have the ability to
increase commensurate with strong performance.

in determining the level and composition of executive
remuneration, the Remuneration Committes engagad an
external consultant to provide independent advice in the form
of a written report detalling market levels of remuneration for
comparable executive roles from which the commities made
fts recommendations o the Board. Consideration is also
given to the appropriate mix of fixed, variable and long-term
remuneration.



Bietalls of employment terms and conditions are provided
below, and consist of the following key elements:

Fixed Remuneration {inchuding base salary, superannuation,
deferred amounts, and sign-on bonuses);

Short-Term Incentives provided through sultably challenging
parformance-based incentive plans;

Nor-Monetary Benefits; and

Erouity Ownership Benefits.

The Remuneration Commities establishes the proportion
of fixed remuneration and variable remuneration (potential
short-term and long-term incentives) for the Chief Executive
and each of the Chief Executive's direct reports. Detalis

of the nature and amount of sach major element of the
rermuneration received by the Key Management Personnel
including the executive direciors are set oul in the
remuneration table.

{hese payments include cash salary and cash-like benafits,
paid as part of the THE Executive directors do not receive
fees for serving on the Board of Multiplex Limited.

it is infendead that the TRP for executives be set at
competitive levels within a market range. The Remuneration
Committee progressively benchrarks remuneration levels
against comparator data provided by independent souwrces.

The TRP is calculated on the basis of the fotal cost to
Mudtiplex, including actual cash, plus benefits such as motor
vehicles, car parking, intermational assignment premivms,
and the fringe benefiis tax (FBT) applicable to each bensfit,
The executive directors and cther company executives have
flexibiity regarding the mix of bensfits they receive within
their TRE These are provided at cost and include benefits
such &s motor vehicles, car parking and salary sacrifice
superannuation.

in ine with Muliplex Group's International strategy, significant
nuisers of executives are required 1o travel o the UK and
cther international locations. This important travel often
involves significant time in these locations, including some
international transfers. internationalisation is an importart
componant of the Group strategy and in circumstances
where Multiplex requires an executive 1o relocate o a foreign
base an expatriate poficy is applied. This policy includes
providing housing, paying relocation costs and other location
adjustment expenses where appropriate, plus applicable
taxation.

A shaort-term incentive component is structured as part of
each executive’s terms and conditions as discugsed in detall
beiow. Each ST component is tallored to reflect the nature
of the posttion held.
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The complex nature, gecgraphical and business diversity of
Muitiplex’s business means that individual executives may
racelve bonuses even though Multiplex as a group fails to
meets its forecast or budget profits. Primarily this occurs
when a particular business unit or division performs in a
sirong manner despite other paris of the Group's operations
performing below budget. Discretionary bonuses are

also approved, from ime o ime, 1o recognise significant
achievernents that are beyond the agreed scope of an
sxecutive's objectives.

The impact of this independent targe! setling is that each
of the divisions is considered separafely with its own targets
and actual performance. These individual performance
figures are then consolidated fo result in the Group profit

as disclosed. As a result, it is possible for execuiive ST|
payments to vary widely.

Cualitative and quaniftative measures are included in sach
incentive plan. All executives disclosed here have a 209%
waighting attached o qualitative performance as determined
by thelr manager. This component includes thelr manager's
assessment of the effectivensss of thelr teanmwork, the
sirength of external relationships, thelr lsadership, thelr
operational excellence and the overall quality of their
contribution o the Group as a whole.

The majority of executives disclosed here have the remaining
80% weighting attached to quantitative performance as
determined by thelr cbjectives agreed with their manager.
The quantitative component is typically inked 1o the
periormance of the relevart division or business unit, or of
thelr individual team or projects. Fhis quantitative component
includes the degres to which they have underachieved,

met, or excesded the objectives agreed by them with their
manager. The measures used could include profit against
budget, revenue against targets, and cost managemaent.

Onee the actual Group performance is known, relevant
targets are cormnpared with final resuits. These comparisons
are then used to calculate the ST payable 1o the executive.
For executives in support roles this nexus is potentially less
clear and thersiore their manager, in relation fo thelr 511,
retains a greater degree of discretion.

Given the relatively independent nature of executive ST, it is
possible that the division/business unit that an executive
leads exceeds its budgets and thus qualifies for a greater
than target return. This is so even i the Group overall misses
its target. Assuming the executive rates strongly in the
quakitative factors, he or she will recelve most of thelr targst
incentive payment, perhaps even exceading it

Consistent with previous years and depending on Company
performance, ST1 payments could reach a maximum of
250% of targat through performance exceading objectives,
in such circumstances, the Group retains amounts

avar 170% of target for up to three years as a retention
mechanism.
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No retirement benefils are provided to the executive
direciors or the Key Management Personnet outside usual
superannuation arrangements. None of the direciors or

Key Management Personnet has a contractual entitlernent
to a notice period of more than 12 months. Mr Henderson
recaived a termination payment consistert with his
contractual terms and conditions when he left the Group,

as detailed below. Mr Corcoran's employment with Mudtiplex
ceased on 30 June 2006. Under his contract of employment
with Multiplex, Mr Corcoran was entitied at law to reasonable
notice of the termination of his employment. The amount of
notice was not specified. The parties remalin in discussion
about the quantum of alawful and reascnable benefit to be
paid 1o Mr Corcoran.
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The Group has previcusly foreshadowed the infroduction of
a U, inchuding an undertaking 1o do so by the Chairman of
Muitiplex Limited at the Annual General Meeting in November
20056, The Group recognises the imporiance of ensuring
appropriate alignment between the executives and the
lorg-term interests of securityholders. While Key Management
Perscnnel typically have considerable security holdings and
therefore a strong alignment with securityholders’ interasts
generally, the abysence of a Lt has meant that remuneration
of senior executives has been negatively impacted relative to
comparable arrangements elsewhere.

it is intended to submit a LTt for approval to the next general
meeting of Multiplex Limited securityholders, to be held in
November 2006, It is further intended that this plan wilk:

— Maximise the value of the business for securityholders,

— Aliow senior employess fo share in the wealth created for
securityhoidars,

— Balance short-term with long-term Group focus;

— Act as a retention mechanism for high calibre senior

Pricr to the Group's Iistiné ’iﬂ December 2003, an Employes
Ownership Plan (ECP) was established to provide employees
with the cpportunity to acquire an equity stake in the Group.

Participants were invited 1o take interest-free lbans o
become participants under the FOP The loan scheme is
described eflsewhere in this Report. Employees are the
registered legal owner of the securities and as such have the
same rights as other owners of Multiplex Group securities,
with the exception that there are restrictions on particlpants’
rights to selt or pledge the securities. As the registered legal
owner, pariicipants also receive distributions (if any) and wil
be subject to increases or decreases in the market valus of
tha securities.

The EOP and accompanying loan scheme are structured on
the basis that the Board may slect at its discretion to waive

fnan amounts payable by executives, The FOP contempfated
tha possibility of loans being waled over a three-year perlod.

For the first ime since thelr issue, this year the Board
determined nct o forgive $1.4 millon in loans owing by
members of the Executive Cormmities. Even though the
total retum o the Group’s securftyholders for the year was
approximately 20%, the Board believed it appropriate 1o
withhold loan forgiveness. The EOP is discussed in more
detall 1ater in this report.

employees and ensure our remuneration packages are
compatitive; and

— Provide an ownership vehicle for senior employess which is

linked fo the success of the Group.
Frinciples that will be adopted in proposing a U will include:

— Lowast possible cost 1o company, while sl achieving

the objgctivas of the plan;

— Ensuring adequate aignment between the Group's

performance over a longer term, and the employee; and
Minimised dilution impact on securityholders.

it is anticipated the LT will contemplate the issus

of Performance Rights to certain executives. The

LT is expected o be structured such that speciied
performance hurdles for BEarmings Per Share growth and
Total Securityhelder Return will have o be met o trigger
entiilements,

in the absence of a Lt in 2008, the Remuneration
Comrmittee has approved the Chief Executive making several
discounted retention awards under a Deferred ST1 Plan which
mature in 2009, i the L1 is approved at the next general
meating, it is intended that the first awards under the LT

will be made effective January 2007 and vesting {subject

to performance; on 30 June 2010,
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he Kéy.f\}}énégém@n - Personnel of the Group are under contract, the terms and condftions are noted befow.

Termination Conditions
MNote 1

Personnel

Non-Executive Chalrman

Ongoing role.

None

At sach AGM one-third
of the directors and any
director who has held
office for three years or
more must retire from
office; they may stand
for re-election assuming
they are eligible under
the Corporations Act.

Non-Executive Director

Ongoing role.

None

At sach AGM one-third
of the directors and any
director who has held
office for three years or
more must retire from
office; they may stand
for re-election assuming
they are eligible under
the Corporations Act.

Non-Executive Director

Ongoing role.

None

At sach AGM one-third
of the directors and any
director who has held
office for three years or
more must retire from
office; they may stand
for re-election assuming
they are eligible under
the Corporations Act.

o

Non-Executive Director

Ongoing role.

None

At sach AGM one-third
of the directors and any
director who has held
office for three years or
more must retire from
office; they may stand
for re-election assuming
they are eligible under
the Corporations Act.

Fxecutive Director

Nt applicable see Note 2.

éhs@f Executive &
Managing Director

Orngoing employment contract.

ST Target is 86% of fixed pay.
KPls: 20% qualitative including
tearmwork; 80% profit of

the Group againat budgst.

Actual ST was nil,

The costs of relocation,
accommodation and additional
work-related assignment
expenses are reimbursed for
the additional financial and tax
burdens incurred as a result of
UK tax residency.

1: Stafutory entilements;
2: Reasonable notice:
3¢ Reasonable notice.,
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Key Management Contract Special Termination Conditions
Personnel Tetms Conditions Note 1

Ceased employment. None 1! Statutory entifflenents;
Former Chief 2! Reasconable notice;
Investrment Gificer 3! Reascnabile notice.
{ceased employment
30 June 20086)

NE Henddarson Ceased employment. None 1: Statutory entiftements;
Former Chalrman 2! Reasconable notice;
Constructions 3! Reascnabile notice.
{ceased employment
30 Aprit 2006}

Ongoing employment contract. None 1: Statutory entittements;

GGM Strategy, Capital
& Transactions

ST Potertial 70% of base.
KPis: 20% gualitative inchuding
tearmwork; BO% performance of
projects and function.

Actual ST was 100% of target;
40% of maximum.

2 Reasonable notice;
3 Reasonabls notice.

Chief Operating Officer

Ongoing employment contract.
ST Target is 709% of fixed pay.
KPis: 20% gualitative including
teamwork; 20% Group profit
against Group budget, 60%
Construction & Bevelopment
divisions against budgets.

Actual ST was 42% of target;
17% of maximurm.

$800,000 defarrad short-term
benefit offered as retention
payment. Not payable if not in
sarvice 20085

Mr McDiven was awarded foreign

service allowance to recognise
his extended period of work in
the UK.

1 Statiory entiffernents;
2: Reasonable notice;
3 Reasonabls notice.

:Chief Financial Of:ficef

Ongoing employment contract.
ST Target is B5% of fixed pay.
KPis: 20% gualitative including

teanwork; 80% profit of Multiplex

Group against budget and
agreed KPls,

Guarantae minlmnum STI
$500.000 for 2006 year being

77% of target; 30% of maximum,

$650,000 deferrad short-ierm
benefit offered as retention
payment. Not payable if not
in service 2000.°

Contractual entilement 1o receive

135,000 Multiplex Securities or
cash equivalent in November
2008, 2007, and 2008 subjeci to
service conditions onky.*

1! Statutory entiffements;
212 months’ notice;
3 Three months’ notice.
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Termination Conditions
MNote 1

Managing Director,
Multiplex Capital

Ongoing employment contract.
ST1: Targst 77% of base: KPls!
20% Group profit against Group
budget; 80% Multiplex Capiial
performance.

Actual ST was 100% of targei;
40% of maxdmum.

At sign-on, Muliiplex provided an
interest-free loan of $500,000, a
benefit which had been provided
by Mr O'Toole’s previous
employer.

$750.000 deferred short-term
benefit offered as retention
payment, Not payable if not in
service 2000.°

Mr O'Toole may alsc receive

a further discretionary bonus
upoen the successiul allotment
of securities in the Multiplex
Acumen Prime Property Fund.

1: Statutory entilemants;
2: 12 maonths' notice;
3¢ Six months' notice,

Orngoing employment contract. None 1: Stafutory entittements;
Exacutive Director ST Target is 81% of fixed pay. 2. Reasonable notice;

KPls: 20% qualiative including 3: Reasonable notice.

tearmwork; 80% profit of

Bevelopments division.

Actual ST was 92% of target,

37% of maximurm.

Former employes. None Not applicable.

Farmer Director
Construction LK
{ceased employment
12 August 2005;

Managing Dtréctor,
Consiruction division UK

Orngoing employment contract.
ST Target is 85% of fixed pay.
KPls: 20% qualitative including
teamwark; 80% profit of
Construction UK vs. budget.

Six monthe’ pos-termination
restraint. Last year, Mr Tidd
receivad a payment GBP338,000
as a sign-on benefit and retention
mechanism, the pro rafa amount
is repayabie If Mr Tidd resigna
before 2012,

1: Staiutory entilerments;
2: 12 months' notice;
3¢ Six months' notice,

.C'l'harfman,
UK Operations

Fixed ferm contract terminating
2007. Na ST in 2006,

Fixad term contract ferminating
2007. Subject to KPIls on
business succass, a contract
bonus may be paid of up o
GHP250,000.

1: Staiutory entilerments;
2: 12 months' notice;
3¢ Six months' notice,

Execuiive General
Manager Corporate &
Company Secretary

Ongoing employment contract.
ST Potential 4% of base.
KPls: 20% qualiative including
teamwork; 80% performance of

prolects and Secratarial function.

Actual ST was 100% of targei;
40% of maximurnm.

$275.000 deferred short-term
benedit offered as refention
payment, Not payable if not in
service 20097

1: Stafutory entilements;
2: Reasonable notice:
3¢ Reasonable notice.,

Moie 1 Legend for above contract tarma: 1: Termination for Cause; 2: Termination by Multiplex, 3 Termination by Executive.
MNote 2 MrJ Fobarls AD passed away on B June 2006,
Mofe 3 This deferred short-term benefit is being armortized over the 37-maonth term of the agreement. One montiy's value s included in Other Long-Term
Benefits in the remuneration tabie.
MNote 4 The 2008 securities are not yet issosd. The esfimated value is amortised over the tarm during which they are expectad 1o be subjict t service
condiicns. The seven-month vaiue for 2008 baged on the closing vaiue of the Multipiax seourity at 30 June 20048 is inciuded in the "Share Baged
Payments” okumn ir the remuneration table. The polential ogtions which may be issued in November 2606 {or exercize in 2007 and 2008, subject to
the approvat of the LT will be disclosed in those appropriste sceounting periods,
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grch a0 e PO
Short-Term Post-Employment
Ernployee Benefits Benefits
Cash Short-Term Non- Other Pansion & Other Post-
Salary Profit Share Monetary Shert-Term  Superannuation Employment
& Bonuses Benefits Benefits Benefits
% % % % 3 %
Non-Executive Chairrman 257,660 - - - 12,130 -
Non-Executive Director 103,670 - - - 9,330 -
Non—&“-xecuﬂve DCiractor 107,330 - - - 9,661 -
Non-Executive Director 112,844 - - - 10,156 -
Founding Chatrman
{Passed away & June 2008) 81322 - £ 560 - 5,565 -
Chief Executive & Managing Director 1,046,013 - 739,263 - 12,140 -
Chief Operating Officer B37.544 RBO0.G00 48 7H3 200,000 13,159 -
Chief Financial Officer 318,350 830,000 22 085 - 6,070 -
Execttive Director 401,853 300,000 27,010 - 12,130 -
Executive Chalrman UK (AUD equiv 551,436 - - - - -
Executive General Manager Corporate
& Company Secretary 500,360 500,000 25,633 - 12,138 -
?“ofm@r Chief Investment Officer
{Ceased employment 30 June 2008 515,330 - 34953 - 3,000 -
Former Chalrman,
Consiruction division

{Ceased employment 30 April 2006} 6532 592 - - 248,277 10,116 -

Managing Uiractor, Multiplex Capital 627,854 800,000 40,780 658,417 12,139 -
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Other Long-Term Termination Share-Based
Employee Benefit Benefits Payments
Other LT Terminationn  Equity Settled  Eguity Settled Cash Settled Other Total
Long-Term Payments Benefits Shares Options Share-Based Share-Based Employment
Benefits & Units & Hights Payments Payments Benefits
& & $ $ $ $ & $
21,621 - - 41,030 - - -
17,568 - - 267,513 - - -
7432 - - - 3,068 - -
- - - - 5,920 - -
- - 1,493,049 - 790,856 - -

20,270 - - - 7136 - -
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# ity b SR WE i3
Short-Term Post-Employment
Ernployee Benefits Benefits
Cash Short-Term Non- Other Pension & Other Post-
Salary Profit Share Monetary Shert-Term  Superannuation Employment
& Bonuses Benafits Benefits Benafits
3 3 3 3 $ 3
Managing Birector, Construction
division UK [AUD eqguiv) 804,762 595,238 - - - -
GGM Strategy, Capital & Transactions 447 485 750,000 24,595 - 12,739 -
Former Director Construction UK
{Ceased employment 12 August 2005) 2,667 - - - 1,834 -
Total 7,459,571 4,275,238 868,0M 514,694 142,722 -
1 W McDiven racetead the following short-tarm benefita: 200,000 short-derm Doncs which refated fo key strategic everts which were ihoomplete at the snd
of the 2008 financial yesr and g such ware nol peid or accrued in that yesr, He sleo received $200,000 other short-term benefit amount relating to the
significant tme He spert in the L8
2 W dckinnon received a sign-on bonus of $330,0600; $500,000 5Y1 payrnant for the 2008 financial yvear and has & grant of securiies due in Novernber 2008
consiatent with hiz contraciual tarms.
3 M Wilson receivied 150,000 short-tarm bonus that related to key strategic deliverabies in the baginning of the 2008 financial year and was paid once
recogniged and $350,000 ST1 gaymerd for the 2006 financial year.
4 Wr Corcoran's emgloymant with duliplex ceased on 30 June 2008, Under hiz contract of ernployment with Muitinles, My Corcoran was antitfed at lgw to
reasonatile notice of the termination of hig emigloyment. The amount of nofice was not specified. Tha parfies remain in discussion about the quantum of &
gl and ressonable benefit 1o be pald o Mr Corcoran,
5 W Ofoole receieed $300 000 short-term bonus that refated 1o the successiul compiation of & key business praject, which was recognised and paid in
Daecernber 2008 and $500,000 571 payrmant for the 2006 financial year.
6 W Kostas recelved $400,000 shorl-ierm borws that refated © key strategic defiverabiss in the baginning of the 2006 financial yvear and were paid once
recogrised, and B350,000 ST payment for the 2006 financisl yaar
43 e 2008
Short-Term Post-Employment
Employee Benefits Benefits
Cash Short-Term Non- Other Pension & Other Post-
Salary Profit Share Monetary Short-Term Superannusation Employment
& Bonuses Benefits Benefits Benafits
3 $ $ & $ 3
Non-Execuiive Chairman 138,415 - - - 11,685 -
Non-Executive Director 91,743 - - - 8,257 -
Non-Execuiive Director G1,743 - - - 8,257 -

Non-Executive Director 1,743 - - - 8287




Other Long-Term Termination Share-Based
Employee Benefit Benefits Payments
Other LT Terminationn  Equity Settled  Eguity Settled Cash Settled Other
Long-Term Payments Benefits Shares Options Share-Based Share-Based
Benefits & Units & Hights Payments Payments
& & $ $ $
- - - - 183,015 - -
- - 1,250,671 - 2 5465 - -
66,891 - 2,743,720 288,543 946,141 - -
Other Long-Term Termination Share-Based
Employes Benefit Benefits Payments
Other LT Termination  Equity Settled  Equity Settled Cash Settled Other
Long-Term Payments Benefits Shares Options Share-Based Share-Based
Benefits & Units & Rights Payments Payments
& & 3 $ $ &

8o

Total
Employment
Benefits

$

Total
Employment
Benefits

$
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Short-Term Post-Employment
Employee Benefits Benefits
Cash Short-Term Non- Other Pension & Other Post-
Salary Profit Share Monetary Short-Term Superannusation Employment
& Bonuses Benefits Benefits Benefits
3 $ $ $ $ 3
Founding Chairman
{Passed away 8 June 2008) 78,214 - 3,883 - 10,428 -
Chief Executive & Managing Direcior 985,827 - 550,647 - 11,685 -
Chief Operating Officer 788,716 100,000 - - 11,585 -
Chief Financial Officer - - - - - -
Executive Director 400,064 100,000 2,000 - 13,936 -
Executive Chalrman UK (AUD eguiv - - - - - -
Executive General Manager Corporate
& Company Secretary 383,184 100,000 - - 11,685 -
Former Chief Investment Officer
{Ceased employment 30 June 2008 BB2,500 200,600 - - 2167 -
Former Chairmaﬁ, '
Construction division
{Ceased smployment 30 April 2006} 930,141 - - - 88,207 -
Managing Director, Mukiplex Capital 339,103 200,600 - - 11,685 -
Managm'g Directo r, Construction
division UK [AUD eqguiv) 1,336,306 - - - - -
GGM Strategy, Capital & Transactions 378,415 - - - 11,685 -

?‘o;m@r Diractor Construction UK
{Ceased smployment 12 August 2005) 420,632 - 909,942 - 11,054 -

Totad 7,022,258 760,000 1,466,472 - 220,073 -




a7

Other Long-Tarm Termination Share-Based
Employes Benefit Benefits Payments
Other LT Termination  Equity Settled  Equity Settled Cash Settled Other Total
Long-Term Payments Benefits Shares Options Share-Based Share-Based Employment
Benefits & Units & Rights Payments Payments Benefits
$ & & 3 $ $ & $
- - - - 1.643,339 - -
- - - - 138,602 - -
- - - - 307,217 - -
- - - - 428,742 - -
- - - - 280,785 - -
- - - - 142,847 - -
- - - - 33,600 - -

- - - - 3,081,142 - -
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T:he ﬂumbers of Muiirpéex Stapted decunhes held during the period 1 July 2005 to 30 June 2006 (inclusive) by the Key
Management Personnet of the Consclidated Entity, including thelr personally related entities, are sat out below,

Nor-EOP Secwities  EOP Securities Held Changes Balance
Held at Beginning at Beginning Buring at the End
of Period of Period the Period of the Period
Mr I A McDonald 53,692 - -
dir P J Dransfield 70,000 - -
Mr J H Poynton AM 425173 - -
Ms B K'Ward 20,000 - -
Mr J C Roberts AD? 214 626,570 - -
Mr AT Roberts' 214 525,570 - -
Mr R A McDiven 415,753 BE7.902 -
fir N R Henderson
{Ceased smployment 30 Aprit 2006} 55,022 148, 145° -
Mr J A Corcoran
{Ceased employment 30 June 2008) 511,509 123,457% -
Mr T A Roberts' 214 525,570 - -
Mr IR OToole 14,500 98,766 -
i J L Tuckey - - -
Mr RV McKinnon® 8,000 - -
Mr M G Wilson - 49,383 -
Mr JETidd 168,500 - -
Mr G Kostas - 49,383 -
Mr M M Stagg
{Ceased amployment 12 April 2005) 123,457 - (123,457}

1 Interest is heid Dy Foberts Family Mominees Pty Limited, in which the Key Management Personned holds & relevant interest. Mr J © Roberts passed away

B Jure 2008,

2 Transferred ot of Employes Cenarshio Flan into Nor-EOP Securities upon cessation of empioymend.
3 W Merinnon hald his securities prior to fis apgointmant as & Director on 16 January 2008,

Multiplex SITES Changes Muitiplex SITES
Held at the Start During Held at the End
of the Period the Period of the Pearicd
Mir - A McDonald — Securities held 705 -

Sohenwe

Al the tzme of the Group’s initial Pubdic Offering (PO}, and
subjact to certain conditions Australian-based permanent
employess were eligible to participate in loan schemes
established for executives and employees.

Ehigible employees could apply for interest-free loans from
Multiplex Limied of varying amounts to acquire siapled
securiies in the Group’s PO, The amount of the loans
varied depending on seniority and lengih of service. Under
the terms of the loang, employees are not liable for any
amount by which the value of the securities falls short of
the empioyee’s ioan balance upon demand for repayment
and are not required to make loan repayments except on
termination of employment before 1 January 2007

The loan scheme for executives contemplated that
executives could have some or &ff of their loans forgiven
pragressively over a period of three years. Depending on

the seniority of the recipient, the waiver of the lcan is at the
absohde discretion of the Board. The Board may also subject
loans to such conditions as the Board determines.

in ight of the new IFRS accounting standards, these
amoeurds have been reclassified as treasury shares, and

are therefore no longer disciosed as koans for historical
purposes. The ictal of these advances for those employess
disclosed in the above tabie is 3.5 milion. The option value
of these limited recourse loans has been included in share-
based payments in the remuneration fables.

Upon termination of employment from the Multiplex Group

before 1 January 2007, participants may either repay the
utstanding batance and keep the securities or ransfer the

securities o the Plan Manager in full repayment of the loan.

The Plan Manager will then arrange to sell the securities,
repay the balance and the rermainder (if any) is distributed
to the participant after the deduction of any sale costs.
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A
Batance interest Paid Balance interest Highest
at the Start and Payable at the End not indebtadness
of the for the of the Charged Diiring the
Peariod Period Period Period
§ $ % %
Mr 1R OMoole 500,006 - 500,000 350,250 500,000
Total advances 500,000 - 500,000 35,250 500,600

Muitiptex performance

The remuneration policy of the Group is focused on achieving
internal financial and non-financial objectives. Achievement of
these internal objectives are considered an appropriate basis
for determining remuneration, particulanly incentive payments,
rather than comparison against any arbitrary comparator
group. For reference, the total securityhelder return in 2008
was approximately 20%.

Far executives who are responsilbie for the management

of the operating divisions, thelr business unit performance

is paramount 1o their reward. During the year a number of
group executives have been awarded bonuses at or below
target levels, depending on thelr individual chjectives, while
some business units have exceeded budgets and thus some
executives have received larger than target awards.

it is anticipated that a stronger fong-term fnk will be created
between the remuneration of executives and securityholders
with the implementation of the proposed LT

H R

The Company has entered into deeds of access and
indemnity with @ach of its direciors, company secretary

and cther norminated officers. The terms of the deed are in
accordance with the provisions of the Corporations Act 2007
and will indemnify these execulives (fo the extent permitted by
taw} for up to seven years after serving as an officer agalnst
legal costs incurred in defending civil or criminal procesdings
against the executives, except where proceedings result in
unfavourable decisions against the executives, and in respect
of reasonable legal costs incurred by the executives in good
faith in obiaining legal advice in relation to any issue relating to
the executives being an officer of Multiplex Group.

Under the deeds of access and indemnity, the Company has
agread to indemnify these persons (fo the extent permitted by
taw) against:

llabilfies inclrred as a director or officer of Multiplex Limited or
a compary in the Mulliplex Group, except for those llablliies
incurred in relation o the matters set out in section 139AZ) of
the Corporations Act 2007, and

- segzonable legal costs incurred In defending an action for a
flability or alleged liability as a director or officer, except for
costs incurred in relation o the matters set out in section
190A{3) of the Corporations Act 2007,

The Company has also agreed to sflect, maintain and pay the
premium on a director’s and an officer’s insurance policy. This
policy does not seek to insure against labilities (other than for
imgal costs) arising out of:

- conduct involving a wilful breach of duty in relation to Multiplex
Limited or a Company in the Multiplex Group; or

a contravention of sections 182 or 183 of the Corporations Act
2001,

The abfigation to effect, maintain and pay the premium on a
policy continues for a pericd of seven years after the director
or officer has left office.

£

RS

=1 of insuranos

The Company has paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect
of a contract insuring the directors and officers of Multiplex
Lirnited against a Hability. The directors have not included
details of the nature of the liabilities covered or the amount

of the premium pald in respect of the directors’ and officers’
fiahilities, as such disciosure is prohibited under the terms of
the contract.

Rounding of amounts

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Crder

980100, issusd by the Ausiralian Securities and Invesiments
Commission, relating to the “rounding off" of amounts in the
Directors’ Report and the Concise Financtal Feport. Amounts
inthe Direciors’ Report and the Concise Financial Beport
have been rounded off in accordance with that Class Order o
the nearest hundred thousand doliars, or in certain cases, 1o
the nearest thousand doliars or o the nearest dollar.

Auditor independence and non-audit services
wependens
The directors received the following declaration from the
auditor of Mudtiplex Limited:
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e

Auditor’s independence Declaration under Section 307C of the
Corporations Act 2001
Tz the directors of Mullipiex Limited

| deciare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, in refation to the audi for
the financial year ended 30 June 20086 there have been:

i no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set cut in the
Corporations Act 2007 in relation 1o the audit, and

{il no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in refation
o the audit.
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Sydnay
7 September 2006

KNG, an Australisn partnersiip, is part of the KPMG Indernationad network.
KM International iz a Swiss cobparative.
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yaar as set out befow. Following a review by, and upon the advice of the Multipiex
Group Audlit & Risk Committes of the level of nor-audit services provided to the
Company by KPMG the direciors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit
services is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors
imposed by the Corporations Act. The nature and scope of each type of non-audi
service provided means that auditor independence was not compromised.

Buring the year the following amounts weare pald to the auditor and s related
practices for non-audit services:

Audit related

Tax advisory and compliance matters
Other miscellaneous matters

Total

KPMG continues in office in accordance with section 327 of the Corporations
Act 2001

This Report is signed in accardance with a resolution of the Board of Direciors,
and for and on behaif of the directors.

4

; M% %&f/y M’i{i’ /“;%ssé

Andrew Roberts F Allan McDonald

Multiplex Limited Muttiplex Limited

7 September 2006
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Income Statement
Multiplex Limited and its controlled entities

For he year erided 30 Jure 2006

Note
Revenues 2a
Cost of operations 2c
Other income 20
Finance costs 2a
Expenses {excluding finance costs and cost of operations) 2a
Share of net profits of equity-accounted entities
Net profit/loss) before income tax
Income fax benefit 45
Net profit/ioss) for the year
Net profit/ioss) attributable 1o minority interest
Net profit/loss) attributable to securityholders of MuHiplex Group
Basic and diluted earnings per stapled security {cents per security) 5

The Income Statement should be read in conjinction with the Notes 1o the Financial Statements.

2006

92

Congolidated
2005
$m

3,309.5
(2.980.2)

320.3

2616
(78.7)

(476.7)
38.2

737
304

1041
19.8

84.3

H.7




Balance Sheet 93
Multiplex Limited and its controlled entities

Aot G0

uirigy 2006

Consolidated

2006 2005
Note &m
{3 25
Cash and cash eguivalents 308.4
rade and cther receivables 1,208.3
Berivative assels -
inveniories 7252
investments 341
Cther assets 40.0
2,322.0
Assets ciassified as held for sale 7 -
Total current assetis 2.322.0
@i g
Hecelvables 231.2
inveniories 4257
investments 10.2
Other assets 871
Eouity accounted investments 1,215
investment property & 1.782.4
Property, plant and egudpment 3478
Datarrad tax assets 79.4
intangble assats 330.5
Total non-current assets 4,555.6
Total assets 6,877.6
Chprramt Babhilitioy
frade and other payables BrT4
interest bearing loans and borrowings Sz 65652
Non-interest bearing loans and borrowings 363
Current tax liabiliies 31.3
Provisions 166.2
Contract work in progress 148.3
19245
Liabilitles directly associated with assets
classiied as held for zale 7 -
Total current Habilities 1,924.5
Mogi-tiagrant s %
interest bearing loans and borrowings Yia 1.745.8
MNon-interest bearing loans and borrowings 49.0
Provisions 2.1
Beterred tax liabilities 19.9
Total non-current liabilities 1,816.8
Totad iabilities 3,741.3
Net assets 3,136.3
Eouily
issued capital 10 276859
Reserves am
Accumulated losses 1 (B4.4)
Total parent interests 2,682.4
Minority interests 12 4439
Total equity 3,136.3

The Balance Sheet should be read in conjunction with the Notes 10 the Financial Staterments,
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Multiplex Limited and its controlled entities

For he year erided 30 Jure 2006

Attributable to Equitvholders of the Parent Mirority Total
interests Equity
Issued Accumulated  Reserves Total
Capitat Profits/
{Losses)
B &m $m S $m S
Lo i
As at 1 Judy 2004 13518 584 -
Currency transiation differences - - &1}
Profit for the year - 843 -
Total recognised income and expenses for the year - 84.3 8.1
Transactions with equityhoiders in their capacily
as equityholders:
Raoberts Family indemnity {net of 1ax 312 - -
Diatribution of reinvestment plan 8.8 - -
Dividends/distributions - (2071 -
Ronin acquisiion 11749 - -
Institution placement 120.0 - -
lssue of SITES securities - - -
Retum of capital - - -
Equity raising costs {net of tax) {1.8 - -
Galn on control of subsidiares - - -
Total transactions with equityholders in their
capacity as equityholders 1,414.% (207.1) -
As at 30 June 2005 2,765.9 (64.4) 8.1}
Change in Accounting Policy: AFRS
{Fefer Note 15(c) - - {197}
As at 1 July 2005 2,765.9 {54.4) {28.8}
As at 1 July 2005 2,765.9 (64.4)  (28.8)
Currency transtation differences - - 4.4}
Profit for the year - 216.8 -
Net gains on available-for-sale financial assets - - 1.5
Net gains on cash flow hedges - - 29.8
Total recognised income and expenses for the year - 216.8 26.8
Transactions with equityholders in their capacily
as equityholders:
Dividends/distributions - 213.6) -
Minority interest on acquisitions of subsidiary - - -
{ oss of controf of subsidiary - - -
Total transactions with eguityholders
in their capacity as equityholders - (213.6) -
As at 30 June 2006 2,765.9 61.2) (1.9}

The Statemaent of Changes in Equity should be read in condunciion with the Motes to the Financial Statements.



Cash Flow Statement 95
Multiplex Lam;ted__ and its controlled entities

Fow the WA 217 kel B0 Jupes 20K

Consolidated

2008 2005
Sm
g sis BT DS
Heceipis from customers 32477
Payments to suppliers and employess {3,606.5}
{258.8)
Bividends and distributions received 36.0
interast recelved 315
Finance costs paid (B39
income taxes paid BLY
Net cash outflow from operating activities {325.5)
Homws Troon i 2
Paym@nts for purchaﬁo of contfoiied @n‘{me net of cash acquired 2734}
Payments for property, plant and @qmpmon‘{ (18.8}
Payments for investiments {440.5}
Payments for investments in associates -
Payments for investment properties (2592
Payments for investments in joint ventures -
Loans to associates {317.3)
Loans 1o other parties -
Froceeds from sale of controlied entities, net of cash disposed 1.0}
Froceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.3
Froceeds from sale of investments 121.0
Froceeds from sale of investment properties 51.6
Net cash inflow/{outflow} from investing activities {1,137.0
o  Sroyy Brmmodngg g
Pi’OC@@dS from issued cap:tai JEETRT
Froceeds from final equity instalment B4B.S
Proceeds from bomowings 4.284.0
Hepaymant of borrowings {3,829.6)
Borrowings from associates -
Repaymants from associates -
Froceeds from issue of Multiplex SITES 450.0
Feiablishment costs {18.8)
issue costs paid {1.8}
issue costs pald - Multiplex SITES {17.9)
Repayment of borrowings from related parties (201.3)
Bividends and disiributions paid 208.7)
Froceeds of borrowings from related entitiss 1851
Net cash inflow from financing activities 1,401.1
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents held 61.4)
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the financial year 363.2
Bifects of exchangs rate changas on cash 6.6
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 308.4

The Cash Flow Statement shoufd be read in conjunciion with the Motes to the Financial Statements.



Notes to the Financial Statements 96
Multiplex Limited and its controlled entities

For he year erided 30 Jure 2006

1 Summary of significant accounting policies This is the Group's first concise financial report prepared
The concise financial report of Multiplex Group for the year based on AFRS and comparatives for the year ended
ended 30 June 2006 was authorised for issue in accordance 30 June 2005 have been restated accordingly excent for
with a resciution of the directors on 7 September 20086, the adoption of AASE 132 and AASE 139, In addition 1o the

ot atvusie elaction made with respect to AASE 132 and 139 above,

the Group has made the following elections with respect o
T}‘e Mumptex Group"_(the Group) compi’zses Muit:pi@x the exemptions aliowed by AASE 1 “First-fime Adoption of

Multiplex Property Trust and it controfle d entities (ﬁn o Australian Fguivalents to Infernational Financial Reporting

Trust). Both the Parent Entity and the Trust are domicilad Standards™ (AASE 13

in Australia. — AASE 3 “Business Combinations” was nct applied
retrospectively to business combinations undertaken belore
the date of transition to AFRS;

— AASE 2 “Share Based Payments” s applied only to equity
instruments granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested on or before 1 January 2005; and

- The Group has slected not 1o apply AASE 121 “The Effects

o,

The Group's stapded securifies comprise one Parent Entity
share and one Trust unit to create a single isted entity
faciitating a joint quotation and being publicly traded on the
Australian Stock Exchange. The stapled securities cannot
be traded or deall with separately.

The Group’s concise financlal report has been prepared of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” to the cumulative
based upon a business combination of the Parent Entity, translation differences at the date of ransition o AIFRS.
and fts cortrolied entities and the Trust in accordance This resulted in the foreign currency translation reserve

with Urgent issue Group Interpretations {LIG) 1013, balance at 1 July 2004 being ransierred t© opening retained
*Consolidated Financial Reports in relation fo Pre-Osle-of- earnings. Any gain or loss on a subsequent disposal of any
Transitions Stapling Arrangements”. Tha terms of the stapiing foreign operation shall exclude ranslation differences that
arrangements are described in Note 14, arose befors the date of tranaition and shall inciude later

; ” transtation differences.

The Concise fmanczai r@port is a general-purpose financial The preparation of the concise financial report in

report, which has been prepared in accordance with the accordance with Australian Accounting Standards has
requirernents of the Corporations Act 2007 and Australian resuited in changes fo the accounting policies as compared
Accounting Standards and UG adoptad by the Australian with the most recent annual Financial Statements for the
Accounting Standards Board {AASE]L Group prepared under previous GAAP. Except where

stated the accounting policies set out below have been
appied consistently by sach entity of the Group for the
pariod presented in the concise financial report and are
consisteni with those appiied in the prior year except where
the application of AIFRS has resulied in a change in policy.
They have also bean applied in oreparing an opening AIFRS
Balance Sheet as at 1 July 2004 for the purposes of the
transition o AIFRS as required by AASE 1. An explanation
of how the transition 1o AIFRS has affected the toial equity,
The concise financial report is presented in Australian dollars.  net loss and cash flows of the Group is provided in Note
The Group is of a kind referred to in ASIC Class Order 98/10C 15, This note includes reconciifations of equity and profit
dated 10 July 1998 relating to the “rounding off” of amounts for comparative periods reported under Australian GAAP

ins the conclse financial report. In accordance with that Class {previous GAAF) o those reporied for those periods

Order amaounts in the concise financial report have been under AIFRS,

rounded off to the nearest hundred thousand dollars uniess -
otherwise stated. o

The concise financial report has been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for the following assets and
Habilities that are stated at thelr falr value: derivative financial
instruments, financial instruments held for frading, financial
instruments classified as available-for-sale and invastment
property. Any non-current assets which are held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value lass
costs to sell

of o
UEG Ent@rpf@iﬁtton 1013 "Gonsoffdaz‘ed Financial Reports
i r@famﬂ to Fre-Date- of Transition Stapling Arrang@monts"

baSiS of the Austraisaﬂ Accountsrg Qtandards adopied by prepanng consohdated concise fmancsai reports by

the AASH, being the Australian equivalents to IFRS (AFRS) combining the concise financial reports of the stapled
AIFRS are applicable to the Group from 1 July 2004, withthe  entiies. For this purpose, Multiplex Limited, as Parent Entity,
comparative Financial Statements restated accordingly, with  has combined is concise financial reports and theose of the
the exception of AASE 132 “Financial Instruments: Disclosure  Multiplex Property Trust to prepare the consclidated concise
and FPraseniation” and AASE 139 “Financial Instruments: financtal reports of the stapled entity.

Raecognition and Measurement” for which the Group has

elected not 1o amend the comparatives.



1 Summary of significant accounting policies corinue

e ey i ited
3 SnEGHT

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power, directly or indirecily,
to govern the financial and operating poficies of an entity 20
as to obiain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
poterdial voting rights that presently are exercisable or
convertible are taken info account. The financial statements
of subsidiaries are included in the concise financial report
from the date control commencas untlt the date that control
ceases. The accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary 1o ensure congisiency with the
poficies adopted by the Group.

invastments in subsidiaries are carried at thelr cost of
acquisition in the Parent Bntity’s financial statements.

The Group’s investiment in s associates is accounted for
using the equity method of accounting in the consaolidated
concise financial report. The associate is an entity in which
the Group has significant infiuence, but not control, over
their financial and operating policles.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associates
are carried in the consolidated balance shest at cost plus
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of net assets
of the associate. After application of the equity method,

the Group determines whether it is necessary o recognise
ary additional impairment loss with respect o the Group's
nat irvestment in the associate. The consclidated Income
Siatement reflects the Group’s share of the results of
operations of the associate.

When the Group's share of losses excesds its interest in
an associate, the Group’s carrying amount is reduced to it
and recognition of further lossas is discontinued except to
the extent that the Group has Incurred iegal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of an associate.

Where there has been a change recognised directly in the
assoGiate’s equity, the Group recognises its share of any
changes and discloses this in the consolidated Statement
of Changes in Equity.

assoGiates are carried at falr value with resulting revaluation
gains and losses recognised in equity.

Joir}t vertures are those entities over whose activities the
Group has joint control, which is estabiished by contraciual
agreement.

in the concise financial report of the Group, investments

in jointly controlled entities, including partnerships,

are accounted for using equity accounting principles.
investments in icint venture entities are carred at the lower of
the equity accounted amount and the recoverable amount,

or

The concise financtal report of the Group includes the share
of the Group's total recognised profits and losses of joint
ventures on an equity accounted basis, from the date joint
control commenced untit the date joint control ceases.
Ciher movements in reserves are recognised directly in
consolidated reservas,

The interest of the Groug In unincorporated joint ventures
and jointly controlled assets are brought to account by
recognising in the concise financial report the assets it
controls and the liabilities that it incurs, and the expenses
itincurs and its share of income that it earns from the sale
of goods or services by the joint venture,

Infra-group balances, and any unrealised gains and

losses or income and expenses ansing from infra-group
transactions, are elfiminated in preparing the concise financial
reports of the Group.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its asscciates are eliminated to the extent of the interest

of the Group in the assaclates. Uinrealised iosses are also
siiminated unless the ransaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Where accounting
policies of associates differ from those of the Group, equity
accountad results are adjusted fo ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Unreafised gains arising from fransactions with associates
and jointly controlled entiies are eliminated to the extent of
the interest of the Group in the entity, with adiusiments made
o the “investment in Assoctates” and "Share of Associates
Net Profit” accounts.

(Gains or losses are recognised as the contribuled assets are
consumed or sold by the associates and jointly controlled
antities o1, if not consumed or sold by the associate or jointly
controlled entity, when the interest of the Group in such
entities Is disposed of.

At
p IO

Yhe preparation of the concise finandcial report in

conformity with the Austrafian Accounting Standards
raquires management to make judgements, estimates

and assumpstions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets and labilities, income and
axpenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that
are balieved 10 be reasonable under the circumstances, the
resulis of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and llabiliies that are not
readily apparent from other sowrces. Actual resulis may differ
from these estimates.
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F3lE

iterms included in the Financial Statements of each of the
entities of the Group are measured using their funclional
currency, being the currency of the primary economic

The Group determines whether goodwill with indefinite usefll  environment in which the entity operates. This concise

Hves is impaired atleast on an annual basis. This requires an financial report is presented in Australian doflars, which is the
estimation of the recoverable amount of the cash-generating  presentation currency of the Group.

units to which the goodwill with indefinite usefu lives are :

allocatad,

Transactions in foreign currencias are translated indo the
functional currercy using the relevant exchange rates

The discounted cash flow approach applied for investment prevailing at the dates of the ransactions. Monetary assets
properties usually includes assumptions in relation to current and liabllities denominated in foreign currencies at the

and recent invesiment property prices. If such prices are balance sheet date ars translated into the functional currency
not available, then the falr value of investment properties is vsing the relevani exchange rates prevailing at that date.
determined using assumptions that are mainly based on Nor-monetary assets and llabiiities that are measured in
market conditions existing at each balance date. terms of historical cost in a forelgn curency are transialed

tsing the exchange rate at the date of the fransaction.
Nor-monetary assets and llabiliies denominated in foreign
currencies that are stated at falr value are translated o the
functional currercy at oreign exchange rates riding at the
dates the falr value was determinad.

The principal assumptions underlying management’s
estimation of falr value are those related 1o the receipt of
contractual rentals, expecied future market rentals, void
pericds, maintenance requirements and appropriate discount
rates. These valuations are regularly comparad 1o actual
market-yield data and actuat transactions by the Group and Fareign exchange gains and lossas resulting from the

those reporied by the market. setlernent of such transactions and from the transiation at
pericd-end of monetary assets and fiabilifies denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income Statermnent
in the period in which they arise.

The expected future market rentals are determined on the
basis of current market rentals for similar properties in the
same location and condition,

Refer to Note 1) for policy on investment properties The results and financial position of all Group entities

i : that have a functional currency that is different from the
roject profitablity is estimated at a project’s inception presentation currency are translated into the presentation
based on the agreed contract value with the client and currency as follows:
the budgeted tolal costs. Profitability is then reviewed and
reassessad on a regular basis.

— assets and labifities for each Balance Sheet presentsd are
transtated at the closing rate at the date of that Balance

Unapproved variation revenue is recognised where it is Shest;

probable that the revenue will be cerfified by theclient and - income and expenses for each Income Statement are

approved. Clalm recoveries against clients are booked when:  translated at an average rate for the period that approxdmates
the rates at the dates of the transactions; and

— alt resuliing exchange differences are recognised as a
separaie component of equity.

negotiations have reached an advanced stage such that it is
probable that the client will accept the claim; and
the amount can be measurad rafiabhy.

With regard to booking claim recoveries against third parties,
the key requiremnents that must be met are the same as
those listed atzove for clalms against clients. Where the
matters are in dispute, the test of probabifity is normally
obtained in the form of a legal opinion and/or independent
expart’s opinion.

On consclidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments, are taken to shareholders'
equity. When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income Staternent as part
Costs are recognised on a commitment basis for trade costs,  of the gain or loss on sale.

and a forecast basis for other costs. Unapproved variations
from subconiractors are recognised where | is probable that
the Group will be flable to incur the cosis.

Goodwill and falr value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign entity are reated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.
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The Group has slected 1o apply the option avaﬂabé@ unicher
AASE 1 of adopting AASE 132 and AASE 139 from 1 July
2005, Outlined below are the elevant accounting policies for
derivative financial instruments and hedging applicable to the
years ending 30 June 2006 and 30 June 2005. The impact
of this changs i3 et out in Note 15(c).

investments

Financial instruments held for trading are classified as current
assets and are stated at fair value, with any resulfant gain or
loss recognised in the Income Statement.

Other financial instrumeants held by the Group are classified
as being avallable-for-sale and are stated at {air value, with
any resultant gain or loss recognised directly in equity, except
for impairment losses and, in the case of monetary items,
foreign exchangs gains and ksses. Whers these investments
are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised directly in equity is recognised in the Income
Staternant. Whaere these investments are interest bearing,
interest calculated using the sffective interest method is
racognised in the Income Statement.

The fair value of exchange traded financial instruments
classified as held for rading and available-for-sale is their
quoted bid price at the balance sheet date.

Othar investments are carried at the lower of cost and
asiimated recoverable amount

Deritvative financlal instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments to hodge its
exposure to foreign exchange and interest rate risks arising
from operational, financing and Investment activities. In
accordance with its treasury policy, which documents policies
and fmits approved by the Board of Directors in respect of
the use of derivative financial instruments to hedge cash flows
subject to interest rate and currency risks, the Group does
not held or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. However, derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are accouriad for as trading instruments.

Berivative financial instruments are inftlally recognised at
fair value and are subsequently remeasured on a fair value
basis. The gain or ioss on remeasurement 1o fair value s
recognised immeadiately in the income Statement. However,
where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting, recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the
fem being hedged.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated amount
that the Group would receive or pay 1o terminate the swap
at the balance sheet date, faking intc account current
interest rales and the current creditworthiness of the swap
counterparties. The fair value of forward exchange contracts
is their quoted markst price at the balance sheet date, being
the present value of the quoted forward price.

Q9

Hedging activities

Derivatives are inftially recognised at fair value on the date

a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their falr value. The methad of recognising the
rasuliing gain or loss depends on whether the dervative is
designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature of
the item being hedged.

The Group only enters into hedges of actual and highly
probable forecast ransactions {cash flow hedges). |

may also erter into hedges of the fair value of recognised
assets or iabiities or a firm commiiment (fair value hedges)
or hedges of net investments in foreign cperations (net
invastment hedges).

The Group documents at the inception of the transaction
the relationship between hedging insruments and hedged
fterns, as well as its risk management cbjective and strategy
for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at the inception of the
hedge and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives
that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in cash flows of the hedged items.

The effective portion of changes in the falr value of cash
flow hedges is recognised directly in aguity. Movemenis in
hedging reserve in shareholders’ equity are shown in the
Staternent of Changes in BEquity. The gain or loss refating
o any ineflective portion is recognised immediately in the
Income Statement.

Amounts accumidated in equity are recycled in the Income
Statemnent in the pericds when the hedged item will affect
profit or loss {for instance when the forecast sale that is
hedged takes place). However, when the forecast fransaction
that is hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset {for example inventory) or a liability, the gains or losses
previously deferred in equity are transferred from equity and
included in the inial measurement of the cost of the assel or
liability.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, ferminated

or exercised, or when a hedge no longer meeis the criteria
for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain or loas existing

in equity at that time remains in equity and is recognised
when the forecast transaction is ultimately recogrised in the
income Statement. When a forecast tfransaction is no longer
expected to oceur, the cumulative gain or loss that was
reporied in equity is immediately transferred 1o the Income
Staternent.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting
Certain derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the falr value of any dervative
inatruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
recogrised immediately in the Income Statement.



Notes 1o the Financial Statements continued

100

Multiplex Limited and its controlled entities

A

For he year erided 30 Jure 2006

1 Summary of significant accounting policies continued

The comparatives in this report have not been restated and
continue o be accounted for in accordance with the previous
GAAR compliant accounting policies.

The Group's activities expose it to changes in interest rates
and ioreign exchange rates. There are policies and limits
approved by the Board of Directors in respect of the use of
derivative and other financial instruments 1o hedge cash flows
subject to interest rate and currency risks. Management
reports 1 the Board on a regular basis as o the monioring
of the policies in place.

The Groug is party to derivative financial instruments in the
normat cowrse of business in order 1o hedge exposure to
interest and foreign exchange rates. The groug does not
enter info derivative financial instruments for speculative
purposes. The Group continually reviews its exposures and
upgrades its treasury policies and proceduras.

Interest rate swap contracts

Interest rate swap agresments are used 1o convert certain
variable interest rate borrowings fo fixed rates. The swaps are
entered info with the objective of hedging the risk of inferast
rate fluctuations in respect of the underlying borrowings.

Foreign exchange contracts

The Group, from tima to fime, entars into forward rate
agreements to buy or sefl specified amounts of forelgn
currencies in the future at predetermined rates. The objective
is to minimise the risk of exchange rate fuctuation in respect
of its foreign currency denorminated assets, lablities,
revenues and expenses.

Differences arising on sefitement of forward exchange
contracts which hedge the Groug’s foreign currency
denorminated income and profits are recognised in the
Group's Income Statement as and when the underlying
forsign currency income or expenditure is recognised.

Net fair values of financial assets and fiabilities

The Groug's financial assets and Habilities are stated at cost
and are not traded in an organised financial market. Carrying
amounts of trade and other debtors, other financial assels
and payables are stated at cost as the carrying values
approximate net fair values.

The valuation of financial instruments not recognised in
tha Statemeant of Financial Position reflects the estimated
amounts which the Group expects o pay or recelve
terrminate the contracts, or replace the contracts at the
market rates prevading at the reporting dats.

A segmert is a distinguishable component of the
consofidated entity that is engaged efther in providing
products or services {business segment), or in providing
products or services within a particular economic
environment [gecgraphical segment), which is subject to risks
and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

i % sanse reatgriton
Revenue is recognised 1o the extent that it is probxable that
the econcmic benefits will fliow to the Group and the revenue
can be refiably measured. The following specific criteria must
alsc be met belore revenue is recognised. Where amounis
do not meet these recognition criteria, they are deferred

and recognised in the peried inwhich the recognition criteria
are mat.

5

Revenues are recognised at the falr value of the
consideration received for the sale of gocds and services,
net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax, rebates and
discounts and after sales within the Group are efiminated.
Exchange of goods or services of the same nature and
vatue without any cash consideration are not recognised
as revenues,

Revenue and expenses are recognised for the major
business aclivities as follows:

Faor fixed price contracts, construction contract revenues
and expenses are recognised on an individual contract

basis using the percentage of compietion method. Once the
outcome of a consiruction contract can be estimated reliably,
contract revenugs and expenses are recognised in the
income Statement in proportion o the stage of completion
of the contract. The stage of completion is measured by
reference o actual costs incued {0 date as a percentage

of estimated total costs for each condract.

Where the oulcome of a contract cannot be reliably
determined, contract costs are expensed as incurred.
Where it iz probable that the costs will be recovered,
revenue is recogrised 1o the extent of costs incurred.

Where it iz probable that a loss will arise from a construction
contract the excess of 1otal costs over revenue is recognised
as an expense immediataly.

Revenue from cost plus corfracts is recognised by reference
to the recoverable costs incurred during the reporting pericd.

Cortract cosis comprise:

Costs that relate directly to the contrack;

— Costs that are related to construction activities in general and

can be allocated to the contract on a reasonable basis (such
as insurance, costs of design and technical assistance), and
Other costs that are specifically chargeable io a customer in
accordance with the terms of a contract,

Early completion bonuses are recogrised only when
construction projects are substantially compleie.
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.i'—{é\.'fénu@'ﬁ:orﬁtz:r;@ sale of development projects is recognised
in the Income Statement only when each of the following
conditions has been satisfied:

The trangfer of the significant risks and rewards of ownership
from the Group to the buyer;

That thers is no continuing managerial involvement by the
Group 0 the degree usually associated with ownership, nor
effective control over the goods sold;

The amount of revenue can be measured relfiably,;

it is probable that economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow fo the Group, and

The costs incurred and o be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be reliably measurad.

The conditions are generally satisfied with the entering into
of an unconditional contract which transfers legal title In
addition fo construction being substantially complete.

Sale of interests in developments

The proceeds recaived In respect of the sale of an economic
interest in a development project by way of a development
sale agreement with a co-investor are recognised as
revenue oree each of the above conditions have been
satisfied, based on the specific terms and conditions of each
agreement.

The transfer of the significant risks and rewards of ownership
to the co-investor, and the satisfaction of a number of the
cther conditions detailed above, typically ocours upon the
establishment of the agreement. Howevar, the condiiion

that there be no cortinuing managerial involvement by the
Group 0 the degree usually associated with cwnership, nor
effective control over the goods sold, Is generally not satistied
until practical compietion is achieved, effectively daferring the
recognition of the sale proceeds until such ime. Any sales
proceeds recelved belore practical completion is recognised
as deferred income.

Upon practical compietion, the Group continues to account
for any residual inferest in the development project in
accordance with the revenue and profit recognition policias
in this ncte.

Equity accounted development projects

Equity acoounted interests in development projects are
carried net of amounts payable o the co-invesior under

the co-investor agreements in proportion to developrment
profits eamed by the co-investor. The share of associates’
profits recognised reflects only the share attributable to the
Group under the agreement. Development profits payable
vnder the agreements are recognised in accordance with the
agreements in proportion to development profits earmed in
the underlying development.
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Controlled development projects

Development projects camed out in controlled entities
coniinue o be consolidated in accordance with the principles
of consclidation set out above as a majority of the risks and
benefits associated with the developments are retained.
Devalopment profits payable under the agreements are
recognised in accordance with the agreements in proportion
o development profits earned in the underlying development.

Rental incame from invesiment property leased out under an
operating lease is recognised in the Income Statement on a
siraight-fine basis over the term of the lease.

In accordance with UIG Inferpretation 115 “Operating Leases
—incentives”, lease incenthves granted are recognised by the
Group as an integral part of the fotal rental income and are
amortised on a straight-line basis and deducied from rental
income over the term of the lease.

Gains and losses arising from fair value adjusiments fo
investment properties are accounted for in accordance with
Note Hul.

Contingant rants are recorded as income by the Group in the
perinds in which they are earned.

Revenues from the rendering of property funds managemert,
property advisory and faciiies management services are
recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customer
o whaere thars is a signed uncondiional cordract for sale or
purchase of asseis.

The pericdic funds and faciliies management fees are
received for management services provided for income
producing assets sither owned by third parties or the Trust.
These fees are recognised as revenues as the management
services are provided, and the Group controls the right to
be compensated for the services provided. Any fess earned
on asset sales or property advisory services are recognised
when the Group controls the right 1o receive the fee.

Interest revenue Is recognised as if accrues, taking into
account the effective vield on the financial asset.

Revenue from dividends and distributions is recognised
when the right of the Group 1o recetve payment is established
and thus are out of post-acquisition profits.

Dividends and distributions received from associates reduce
the carrying amaount of the investment of the Group in that
associate and are not recognised as revenus.
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ety SEI R

uss, expenses and assets are recognised net of the
amount of goods and services tax {(GST), except where

the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the
Australian Tax Office (ATO). In these circumstances, the GST
is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as part of the expense.

Frgne
SEON SR

Heceivables and payables are stated with the amount of
GET included. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or
payabie to, the ATC is included as a current asset or liability
in the Halance Sheat.

Cash flows are inciuded in the Cash Flow Statement on a

gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which are recoverable from,
or payable 1o, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.

&k oowne T
Income tax on the income Statement for the periods
represenied comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
is recognised in the Income Statement except to the extent
that it relates o #ems recognised directly in equity, in which
case if is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the yvear, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the date of the balance sheet, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Defarrad tax is provided using the batance sheeat llabiity
method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and labifities for concise financial
reporting and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The
amount of deferred tax provided is based on the expecied
manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
msseis and liabilities, using {ax rales enacted or substantiailly
enacted at the date of the Balance Sheet.

A deferred tax asset is recognised o the extent that itis
probabile that future taxable profits will be avallable againel
which the assel can be utifised. Deferred tax assets are
reduced 1o the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related tax benefif will be reafised.

Refer to Note 4 for tax consclidation for the Group.

N ek vidher ren ;
Trade debtors and other receivables are stated at thelr
amortised cost less any identified impairment losses.
Impairment charges are brought 1o account as described in
Nota Tw).

Non-curent recelvables are measured af amortised cost
using the effective inferest method.

Bevelopment projects are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated seling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and seling expenses. Cost includes
direct materials, direct latzour, borrowing costs, other direct
varfable costs and allocated overheads necessary to bring
invantories to their present location and condition.

Costs incurred in the initial phase of development projects
are capitalised and emerged against the associated sales
on the same basis as the recognition of sales and profit for
development projects, as set outin Nots i}, while marketing
costs incurred subsequent to the cormmencement of the
development of the project are expensed as incurred. When
a development project is completed, subsequent borrowing
costs and other holding charges are expensed as incurred.

Censtruction work in progress on construction contracts

is stated at cost plus profit recognised to date calculated

in accordance with the percentage of completion method,
including retentions payable and recaivable, less a provision
for foreseeable losses and progress payments received

to date.

A contract is not considerad complete untd the defects
katility perod has expired and monies withheld have been
received. Any expecied losses on a contract are recognised
immediately and are caiculated as total contract revenuss as
compared to total confract expenses in the period the loss
becomes foreseeable.

Cost includes all variable and fixed costs directly refated

to spedific construciion contracts, those costs related fo
contract activity in general which can be allocated to specific
contracis on a reascnable basts and other costs spacifically
chargeable under the contract. Costs expected to be
incurred under penalty clauses and rectification provisions,
and porrowing costs where contracts are classified as
qualitying asseats fefer to Nots o)) are also included.

The Group presents as an asset the gross amount due from
custamners for contract work for all contracts in progress for
which costs incurred plus recognised profits (less recognised
losses) exceed progress billings. Progress bilings not yet
paid by customers and retention are included within the
“frade and Other Receivables” balance.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amount due 1o
customers for corfract work for all contracts in progress
for which progress bilings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits {ess recognised lossas).

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes the cost of acquisition, and
development and borrowing costs duing development.
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New bus:n@ss and t@nd@r costs ara d@f@rrod to the extent
they can be separately identified and measured refiably and
it is probable that the contract will be obtalned, and that

the costs!

— are recoverable out of future revenus;

— do not relate 10 revenue which has already been brought to
account; and

—will contribute 1o the future sarning capacity of the Group.

Tender expendiiure that is not expensed due 1o the tender
being successiul is ransferred to work in progress. New
business and tender costs are reviewed on a regular
basis, being at lsast six monthly, to determine the amount,
it any, which is no longer recoverable. Any such amount

is subsequently expensed.

When costs incurred in securing a contract are recognised
as an expense in the period in which they are incurred,
they are not included in coniract costs when the contract
is obtained in a subsequent period.

Borrowmg costs ar@ recogn;sed as expenses in the period

in which they are incurred, except where they are included

in the costs of inventories o investment properties under
development {refer 1o Note 1im). Where borrowings

are specific to particular inventory assets or investment
properties under development, the rate at which borrowing
costs are capitalised is determined by reference {o the aciual
borrowing costs incured.

Borrowing costs include:

— interest on bank overdrafts and short-term and long-term
borrowings, including amounts pald or received on interest
rate swaps;

— amortisation of discounts or premiums reiatiﬂg 0 borrowings;

— amortisation of anciliary costs incurred in connection with the

arrangement of borrowings;

— finance iease charges; and

— certain exchange differences arising from foreign currency
borr&wings.

y arud oanh & uiss‘}ufi T
For purposes of the Cash Fow Statement, cash includes
cash balances, deposits at call with financial institutions and

cther highly iquid investments, with short pericds to maturity,
which are readily convertible to cash on hand and are subject

to an insignificant risk of changes in value, net of outstanding
bank overdrafts.
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ttems of property, piant and equipmant, including leasehoid
improvements, are inftlally recorded at cost, being the

fair value of the consideration provided plus incidental
cosis direcily attributable to the acquisition and, where
relevart, the infiial estimate of the costs of dismantling and
ramaving the items and restoring the site o which they are
located, and after inittal recognition are stated at cost less
accurmdated depreciation and any impairment losses.

tems of property, plant and equipment are depreciated and
amortised as described in Mate 1.

The cost of seli-constructed assets includes the cost of
matertals, direct labour, the initial estimate, where relevant,
of the costs of dismanifing and removing the iterms and
rastoring the site on which they are located, and an
appropriate proportion of production overhesads.

Whare parts of an itern of property, plant and squipment
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separals
individual iterns of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included In the carrying amount of the
asset or are recognised as a separale asset, as appropriate,
only when ft is probabie that future economic benefits
associated with these costs will fiow to the Group and the
amount of these costs can be measured refiably. All repairs
and maintenance are charged o the income Statement
during the financial pericd in which they are incurmed.

Froperty that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property is classified as property, plant
and equipment and stated at cost {including borrowing costs
in relation to those assets incurred during construction) until
construction or development is complete, at which time #t is
raclassified as investment property.

Goodwilt artsing from the acquisition of assets is brought to
acoount as described in Note ).

i F emronarty, 2
Depr@czanon is charg@d o the Encome Statom@n‘{ ona
siraight-line hasis over the estimated useful ife of each part
of an item of property, plant and equipment, taking info
account estimated residual vaiues.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The cost of lsasehold improvements is amortised over the
shorter of either the unexpired pericd of the lease or the
astimated useful ife of the impravement 1o the Group.

Assets are depraciated or amortised from the dats of
acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assats,
from the time that an asset is completed and held ready
for use

The residual values and useiu lives of the assels are
reviewad, and the deprectation and amortisation rates and
methods adjusted i appropriate, on an annual basis. YWhen
thesae changas are made the adjustments are reflected
prospectively in current and future periods only.
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: o promary
The d@pr@csatzon rates used for each class of asset fin bath
the current and prior year) are as follows:

Asset class Rate Method
Buildings 2.5-4 %% Straight-line
Plant and equipment 6-33 % Straight-ine
{ easshold improvemenis 20-33 % Straight-ine

{ ease payments made under operating leases are
recognised as an expense in the Income Statement on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

In accordance with UIG interpretation 115 “Operating Leases
- Incentives” lease incentives recelved are recognised in the

Income Statemnent on a straight-ine basis as they are an

integral part of the totad lease expense over the lease term.

Non-current assets that are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of their carrying amount and falr vaiue
less costs o sefl { their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use.

An impairment foss is recognised for any inftlal or subsequent
write-down of the assei to falr value less costs to sell. A gain
iz recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less
costs to sell off an asset, but not in excess of any cumulative
impalrment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not
previously recognised by the date of the sals of the non-
current asset is recogrised at the date of de-recognition.

Non-current assets classified as held for sale are prasented
separately from the other current assets in the Balance
Shest.

In the cowrse of s ardinary activitles, other transactions

finchuding the sale of non-current assets such as investments —

and operating assets) may be undertaken that are incidental
to the main revenue generating aciivities of the Group.

The results of such transactions are presented by netting the
sale proceeds on disposal less selling cost and the carrying
value of the asset at the date control of the asset passes o
the buyer.

lnvef‘tmeﬂt pi’op@mef are propemes that are held to sam
kong-term rental yields and/or for capiial appreciation.

Invaestment properties acquired are initially recorded at their
cost of acquisition at the date of acquisfion, being the fair
value of the consideration provided plus incidental costs
directly aitributable to the acquisition. Investment properties
are subsequently carred at falr value based on the principles
outlined in the paragraph below.

The costs of assets constructed/redeveloped internally
include the costs of materials, direct labour, directly
attributable overheads, borrowing costs (see Note 1ol
and other incidental costs.

Where the contracts of purchase include a deferred payment
arangement, amounis payable are recorded at their present
value, discounted at the rate applicable to the Group if

a simitar borrowing were obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.

investment properties are stated at thelr falr value at the
balance sheel date,

The investiment properties of the Group are intermally valued
at every reporting date and independently valued once a
vaar oF whenever it is believed that the falr value of a propearty
differs signfficantly from its carrying value, based ona
material change to the assumptions and market conditions
underlying the valuation. These valuations are considered by
the directors when determining fair value.

The falr value of investment property is the price at which
the property could be exchanged between kKnowledgaabls,
willing parties in an arrmy's length transaction, and is
determined:

Without any deduction for transaction costs the entity may
incur on sale or other disposal,

Reflecting market conditions at the reporting date;
Reflecting ramtal income from cument leasses and reascnable
and supportable assumptions that represent what
knowledgeable, wiling parties would assume about rental
income from future lsases in the light of current conditions.
it also reflects, on a similar basis, any cash outflows that
could be expected in respect of the property;

— Aszsuming simuitaneous exchange and compleiion of

the contract for sale without any variation in price that

might be made in an arm’s length ransaction between
knowledgeable, wiling parties if exchange and completion
are not simuftansous;

Ensuring that there is no double counting of assets or
habilfties that are recognised as separate asseis o Habilities;
and

Without inclusion of future capital expenditure that will
improve o enhance the property. The valuation does not
raflect the related fulure benefits from this futre expenditure.

Any gains or losses arising from a change in the falr valus of
irwastment property are recognised in the income Staternent
it the period in which they arise.

Rental income from investment property is accounted for in
accordance wih Note 1),



1 Summary of s&gmf:cant accountmg policies cordinued

All business combmanons are account@d far by apphving
the purchase method. In respect of business acquisitions
that have cccurred since 1 July 2004, goodwill represents
the difference between the cost of the acquisition and the
fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired. In respect
of acquisitions prior fo this date, goodwil is included

oy the basis of its deemed cost, which represents the
amount recorded under previous GAAR The classification
and accounting treaiment of business combinations that
occurred priorto 1 Ju]y 2004 has not been reconsidered i

at 1 Juy 2004

Goodwil] is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment
tosses. Goodwill is altocated 1o cash-generating units and

is no longer amoertised but is tested annually for impaiment
{refer to Note Hwl. In respect of associates, the carrying
amoeunt of goodwil is included in the carrying amount of the
irwestment in the associate.

Negative goodwill arising on an acquisition is recognised
diractly in the Income Siatement.

i b 2
if any indication of impairment exists, the carrying amounts
of the applicable assets of the Group, other than invesiment
property fefer to Nole 14, inventories fefer to Nate 1imj),
Censtruction contracts (refer 1o Note 1l and deferred tax
azssets {refer 1o Note 1), are reviewed and the assel’s
recoverabte amount is estimated.

For goodwill, assets that have an indefinite uselyl ife and
intangible assets that are not yat available for use, the
recoverabie amount is reviewsd annually.

Animpairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying
amoeunt of an asset or its cash-generating unit excesds is
recoveraiie amount. impairment losses are recognised in
the income Statement.

When a decline in the fair value of an available-for-sale
financial asset has besn recognised directly in equity and
there is objective svidence that the asset is impaked, the
cumuiative ioss that had been recognised in equity is
recognised in the Income Statement. The amount of the
cumuiative loss that is recognised in the Income Statement
is the difference between the acquisition cost and current
fair value, less any impalrment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the Income Statement.

The recoverabie amount of the investments of the Group
in hetd-io-maturity securities and receivables camed at
amoertised cost is calculated as the present value of the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate (being the effective interest rate
compuied at inftlal recognition of these financial assats).
Recehvables with a short duration are not discounted.

impairment of receivables is not recognised untit objective
svidence is avallable that an impairment event has cccurred.
Significant receivables are individually assessed for
impairment. Receivables that are not assessed as impaired
or are not significant are placed into portfolios of assaets

with simitar risk profiles and a colleciive assessment of
impairment is performed.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the greater of thelr
fair value leas costs 1o sell and value in use. In assessing
valug in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
0 their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the ime values of
morey and the risks specific to the asset. For an asset that
does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit I which the asset belongs.

Animpairment loss in respect of a held-o-maturily security
or recelvable carried at amortised cost is reversed if the
subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related
abjactively to an event ocourring after the impairment loss
Wwas recognised.

Animpatrment ioss in respect of an investment in an equity
instrument classified as available-for-sale is reversed through
the Income Staterment. B the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as avallable-for-sale increases and the increase can
be related to an event ocouming after the impalrment loss
was recognized in the Incamea Statement, the impairment
loss shalt be reversed, with the amount of the reversal
racognised in the ncome Siatement.

Animpairment loss in respect of gqoodwill is not reversed.

In respect of other assels, an impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed
only to the extert that the carrying amount of the asset
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation and amortisation, i no
impairmaent loss had been recognised.

Z«i Tracks an

Fayables are statod at amomsed cost and {@present liabiities
for goods and services provided to the Group prior 1o

the end of the financial pericd and which are unpaid. The
amounts are unsectired and are usually paid within 30 days
of recognition.

Ent@r@s‘[ bearmg borrowmgs are recognisad indtially at fair
value less any attributable fransaction costs. Subsequent

o initial recognition, interest bearing borrowings are stated
at amnortised cost with any difference between cost and
redemption valuie being recognised in the Income Staterment
aver the period of the borrowings on an effective intereat
basia.
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i Summary of sngmf:cant accounting policies continued

Provzsmn is made ior the amount of any dividend or
distribution declared by the directors of Muttiplex Funds
Management Limited as a Responsible Entity of the Trust
and by the directors of the Company on or before the end of
tha repomng p@nod but not distributed at the reporting date.

Liabiliies for employee benefifs for wages, salaries, including
nor-monetary benefits, and annual leave expected to be
setifed within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised
as cutrent provisions in respect of employees’ services
provided up o the reporting date and are measured at the
amounts expacted 1o be pald when the llabilities are settled.

The net obligation of the Group in respect of long-term
service benefits, other than superannuation, is the amount of
future benefit that employees have earmed in return for their
service in curreni and prior periods.

The obligation for long-term service benefits expecied

to be settled within 12 months of the reporting date is
recogrised in the current provision for employee benstiis

and is measured in accordance with the paragraph above.
The obligation for long-term service benefits expected o

be setfled more than 12 months from the reporting date is
recognised in the non-current provision for employes benefits
and is measured as the present value of expected future
paymaents io be made in respect of services provided by
empicyees up to the reporting date.

Consideratior; is given to anticipated future wage and salary
levals, experience of employee departures and periods of
service. Expecied fuiure payments are discounted using
market vislds at the reporting date on national governmant
bonds with terms to malurity and currency that match, as
closely as pessible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Obfligations for contributions to accumulation superannuation
plans are recognised as an expense in the income Statement
as incurred.

Empioyes benefit on-costs, including payrel tax, are
recognised and included in employee benefit liabilities and
costs when the employees benefits to which they relate are
recogrised as fabilities.

établed securitﬁ is éiassifi@d as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable 1o the issue of new stapled security are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of fax, from the proceeds.

Mincrity interest predominantly represents the portion of
profit or loss and net assets in Muttiplex SITES Trust not heid
by the Group and are presented separately in the Income
Siatement and within equity in the Balance Sheel.

Bas:c @ammgs pez’ Secunty ts calculated as net profit after
tax attributable to stapled securityholders divided by the
waighted average number of stapled securiies cutstanding
during the financial year. Diluted earnings per security is
calculated as net profit after tax attributable to stapled
securityholders divided by the weighted average number of
Grdinary securities and dilutive potential Oi'dinary securities.

Cer‘iam new accountmg stardafds and UiG rﬂt@rpretanons
have been pubiishad that are not mandatory for the 30 June
2006 financial year. The Group’s assessment of the impact of
these new standards and interpretations is set out below for
thoss standards that may affect the Group In future reporting
periods.

LHG 4 Is appiicable to annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2008. The Group has not elected to adopt UIG 4
early. £will apply UIG 4 in its 2007 financial statements and
the UIG 4 transition provisions. The Group will therafore apply
UIG 4 on the basis of facts and crcumstances that exisied
as of 1 July 2006, implementation of UIG 4 is not expected
to change the accounting for any of the Group's current
arrangements.

A 2005-9 is appiicable to annual reporting pericds
beginning on or after 1 January 2006. The amendmerits
relate to the accounting for financial guarantee condracts.
The Group has not elected 1o adopt the amendments
early. B will apply the revised standards in its 30 June 2007
Fnancial Stalements. Application of the revised rules may
result in the recognition of financial llabifties in the Financial
Siatements of the Parent Entity, under guarantees given in
respact of amaounis payable by wholly-owned subsidiaries
and investments accounted for using the equity method.
An assessment of the falr value of these guarantees has not
vet been performed.

AASE 7 and AASE 200510 are applicable to annual
reporting periods heginning on or after 1 January 2007

The Group has not elected o adopt the standards early.
Application of the standard will not offset any of the amounts
recognised in the Financial Statements, but will impact

the type of information disclosed in relation fo the Group's
Financial Statements.
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Consolidated

2008 2005
Sm
2 Revenues and expenses
fo Frovernmsg
Revenue from the sale of development properties 5874
Consiruction revenus 2,479
Property renial revenue 145.4
Property funds manageament revenue B&.0
interast ravenua 29.9
Total revenues 3,308.5
{ih Iy
Net falr value adjustments on investment properties 712
Profit on sale of non-current assets 140.8
Othar income 49.6
Total other income 261.6
ot oaty of Gperalions
Subcontractor and consumable costs 24485
Movement in development property inventories 494.6
Rental property rates, taxes and other property outgoings 370
Total cost of operations 2,980.2
interest and finance charges
Related parties 3.5
External parties B6.0
Amortisation of capitalised borrowing cost 8.3
Other 0.9
Total finance costs 787
F gy
mMployae expenses 2074
Bepreciation and amortisation expenses 3.9
Unrealised foreign exchange losses 7.2
Realised foreign exchange losses 6.0
Tender cost expenses 18.0
Project related overhead costs 43.4
Legal and consuttancy fees 8.8
Administration costs 128.6
Other expenses 52.7
Total expenses (excluding finance costs and cost of operations) 476.7
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3 Segment information

i i SO TR
Fri ¥ by s indosmnadion

As the éroub is o'rganis&ci on a global basis info divisions by product and service type, its primary segmentation is by business
segment,

Primaty Segment Description of Activities

Consitruction Construction projects across the commercial, retail, industrial, residential, hospitality, sporting,
heaith care, enfertainment, education, engineering, and government sectors,

Property Development Devalopment projects in the commercial, retall, residential, hospitality, maritime, car parking,
grtertainment, land and infrastructure sectors.

Facilities Management Faciiies management, property management services, project works management,
investment in and management of infrastruciure projects.

Property Funds Management  Management of property investment vaehicles,

Property Investmeant Direct investment in investment properties and indirect investment in property frusts holding
investment properties.

Corporate Administration of internal and exiernal reporting.
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3 Segment information coriiruec

Conatruction Froparty Facities Froparty Property Corporate Irrtesr- Todal

Development Management Funds Trust segment Consolidated
hManagere Eliminations

$m $m $m $m B $m $rry Sm
Sal@s i external customers 2,4685.0 417.4 407 26.5 189.0 - -
Other income 11 i6le - 31.8 2144 45.3 1601
inter-segment sales 3041 230.2 6.5 5.4 9.4 14.8 {5704
Total segment revenue 2,773.2 808.2 47.2 63.8 412.8 61.1 {410.3

Unallocatad revenus

Total revenue

Segment resuit {333.6) FoN! 7.2 448 3044 4.1} 26.3
Share of assoclates’ profit 13.8 29.9 .2 9.2 138.5 - -

Total segment result (319.8} 100.0 7.4 53.8 4429 4.1 26.3
Net unaliccated revenue/{expenses}

Profit before tax and finance costs
Net finance costs
income tax {expense)/benefit

Net profit for the year
Segment assets 27030 24759 353 11552 48504 21302  (8.209.8
investment in an associate 58.1 6850.9 0.4 2.5 614.9 - {10.2

Unallocated assets

Total assets

Segment liabiities 2,40R.4 21752 209 1,124.8 1,439.2 29190 {83558
Unallocated fiabilites

Total liabilities

Cap;tai expenditure 39 510 0.3 01 185.3 3.4 -
Bepreciation and amortisation 3.5 0.7 0.3 01 - 4.4 -
Other non-cash expenses 8.5 94.5 - 1.2 BB 1.3 -
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3 Segment information ooritinuea
Comnsiructian Property FacHitios Property Property Corporate Irstap- Total
Davetopment Management Funds Trust segment Consolidated
htanagamernt Efminaticns
&m $rm Sm $rm &m i &m $m

;;»ai@s o external customers 24793 o571 370 3G 146.4 - -
Other income 86.1 778 - 16.4 437 355 (28.4)
Inter-segment sales G26.6 310 3.0 2.9 155 - {B78.0)
Total segment revenue 3,191.8 695.8 40.0 50.3 204.6 35.5 (707.4}

Unallocated revente

Total revenue

S@gm@rﬁ result 100.2 33.2 B 26.3 80.8 227 {189.1)
Share of associate’s profit - 9.9 - (3.0 40.1 8.8 -
Total segment result 1060.2 43.1 51 23.3 120.9 13.8 (189.1)
Net unallocated revenues/lexpenses)

Profit before tax and finance costs

Finance costs

Income {ax [expensel/benefi

Net profit for the year

Segment assets 17476 2,068.2 330 4980 40516 7160  (3,632.0)
Invastmeant in an associate 2.6 1239 5.0 3.0 8247 331.3 -
Unaliocated assels

Total assets

Segment latilities 1.517.8 2064.2 3.8 4454 19663 810.7 {3,146.7)
Unallocated Habiliies

Total liabilities

Capital @Sip@ndi‘fur@ - - - - 246.4 7.8 -
Deprectation and amortisation - 20 1.3 0.4 0.2 - -

Other non-cash expenses - 34.4 0.2 1.1 1.2 - -
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3 Segment information o

7y ST £
Secondary segmentation is by geographical area, with the Group operations sphit between Australasia, Europe and Middie
Fast. The Group’s geographical segments are determined by the location of the Groug’s assets and eperations. The following
table presents revenue, capital expendiiure and certain asset information regarding geographical segments.

Australasia Europe & inter-segrment Total
Middle East Elirnination
$m $m $m &m

2,764.9 1,402.4 {410.3)
Segment assets 12,323.5 1,.035.5 {8,299.8)
Capital expenditure 2441 3.9 -
Segment revenus 28877 1.360.4 {707 4}
Segment assets 8.202.7 am.y {3,632.0)
Capital expenditure 244.3 4.9 -

Consolidated

2005
Sm

4 income tax
St Ey e ey ey fg
Currant income tax expenserbenefi {29.6)
Adjustiments in respect of current income tax of previcus years 1.7
Helating to ongrhatioﬂ and reversal of temporary differences and tax iosses 583
income tax benefit/(expense) reported in Income Statement 364
Beferred income tax benefit/lexpense) included i income 1ax expense comprises:
increase/ddecrease) in deferred tax assets 48.2
fincreasel/decrease in deferred tax liabiities 103

58.3
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Congolidated

2006 2005
$m

Accounting profit/floss) before income tax 737
Prima facie income tax (expense)/benefit on profit/loss using the domestic
corporation tax rate of 30% (2005: 30%) {22.1)
Tax effect of amourts which are not ([deductible)/assessable in
calculating taxable income:
AFRS adjustments {11.7)
Deductions claimed for equity raising costs 0.3
Hfect of higher tax rates on overseas income 03}
Non-deductible expenses 1.2
Non-taxabie ADPT profit 20
Non-taxable Trust profit 811
Offshore attributable income 2.8
Offshore tax losses not brought to account {1.3)
Other 1.8
Overfunderi-provision in previous year 1.7
B&D concasslons 0.3
Income tax {expensej/benefit 30.4

o

Tax conm o
Multiplex Limited and its wholly-owned Australtan resident subsidiaries formed a tax consolidated groug with effect from 1 July
2003, Muliplex Limited is the head entity of the tax consolidated group.

Tax expense/cradits, deferred tax fizblfties and deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences of the members of the
tax conscidated group are recognised in the separate financial statements of the members of the tax consofidated group using
the “separate taxpayer within group” approach. Current tax liabilities and assets and deferred tax assets arising from unused @ax
losses and tax credits of the members of the tax consclidated group are recognized by Multiplex Limited as head entity of the
tax consoiidated group.

Members of the tax consolidated group have ertered inte a tax sharing arrangement with the head entity. The tax sharing
agreement provides for the determination of the allocation of income tax llabliities between the entities should the head enfity
defaul on its tax payment obligations. No amounts have been recognised in the financial statements in respect of the tax
sharing agreement as payment of any amounts under this agresment is considered remote as at the balance date.

The head entity and the members of the tax consofidated group have snfered into a tax funding arrangement. Under the terms
of the tax junding arrangement, the head entity and sach member of the tax consolidated group has agreed o pay a tax
equivalent amount o or from the hesad entity, based on the current tax ilabllity or current tax asset of the member. Such tax
equivalent amounts are recognised as payable o or receivable by the head entity and each member of the tax consolidated

group.
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Consolidated
2006 20605
Cents Cents

5 Earnings per stapled security

Hasic and diluted sarmings per stapled security 117
Number Nurber
Waighted average number of stapled securities used as the denominator 722,661,202
Sm

B
Net profit 104
Less Net profit atfributable to minorily inferest 19.8
Earnings used in calculating eamings per stapled security 84.3

Earnings per stapled security is determined by dividing net profit after income tax attributable to stapled securityholders by the
waighted average number of stapled securities cutstanding during the financial year.

Mudtiplex SITES are potential securities but are not dilutive. Consequently, basic and diluted earmings per stapled securily are
the same.

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares since the reporting pericd date and
before the completion of these Fnancial Statements.
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6 Dividends and distributions
Dividends and distributions paid to stapled security holders or declared during the financial year were as follows:

Cents per Totat Amournt Date of Tax Rate Percentage
Share/Unit $m Payment Franked %

l.ntet i d}wd@nd Nit

N/A N/A NAA
Final dividend INiE NA MNAA MNAA
Total dividend Nil
l\nteri'm distribution 8.0 28 February 2006 17% {fax deferred)
Final distribution 17.50 31 August 2006 12% {fax deferred)
Total distribution 25.50
Total distributions 25.50
Interim distribution 8.0 28 February 2006
Final distribution 17.50 31 August 2006
Total distribution 2550

l.ntersm dividend B.22

28 February 2005 309% (fully franked) 100

Final dividend - - - -
Total dividend 8.22

l\nters'm distribution 7.6 28 February 2005 40% (lax deferred) -

Final distribution 14.0C 31 August 2005 22.5% {fax deferred) -
Total distribution 21.58
Total distributions 29.81

Interim distribution 1581 28 February 2005 - -

Final distribution 14.0C 31 August 2005 - -
Total distribution 29.81

Consolidated

2006 2005

$m

Franking credits avallable for subsequent financial years based on a tax rate of 30% 13.2

The above amounts represent the balance of the franking account as af the end of the financial year, adjusted for:

— franking crediis that will arise from the payment of the current tax labifity,

— franking debits that will arise from the payment of dividends recognised as a Hability at the reporting date;

— franking cradits that will arise from the receipt of dividends recognised as receivables at the reporting date; and
— franking crediis that may be prevented from being distributed in subsequent financial years.
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7 Assets classified as held for sale
On 19 May 2006, the Group made a public announcement of its decision to estabiish a newly Australian Stock Exchangs
isted fund comprising of prime CBD office assets named as Multiplex Acumen Prime Property Fund (the Fund).

The establishrment of this new fund is in pursult of the Group’s strateqy for growth of its third party funds management
business. A sale s expected by September 2008,

This portfclio held for sale comgprises the following prime office investments and other assets and liabilities with the respeciive
fair values af reporting date.
Consolidated

2008
Note &m

investment property
Old Swan Brewery
100% of Defence Plaza in Melbourns

25% of Southern Cross in Mefbourne a
Eouity acoountad investmants

B50% of Ernst & Young Cendre in Sydney b
Cash and cash eguivalents

Receivabies
Derivative assets
Froperty, plant, equipment — Old Swan Brawery

Total assets classified as held for sale

st
Payables

interast bearing labifities
Non-interest bearing liabiliiies

Total liabilities classified as held for sale

Net assets classified as held for sale

g intersel in the respective investment property is held via Multipiex Developments Mo, 84 Unit Frast.

tr interest in the respective investment properly i held viz Latitode Landowning Truzt,

The Group paid $99,840 to Muliiplex Prime Property Fund for granting the first and last rights at refusal aver the Southern Cross
Bast Tower (25%), Emst & Young Centra (B0%), American Express and Defence Plaza assets to the Group.

Consolidated
2008 2005
$m sm

8 invesiment property

investment property 1,762.4

Coarrying 5 £33
Valuations of investment property are based on prevailing market conditions for the properties being the fair value for which the
properties could be exchanged between willing parties in an arm's length transaction in an active market for similar properties
in the same iocation and condition and subject to simitar leases. n assessing the value of the investment properties, the
independant valuers have considered two basis of valuation being:

— Biscountsd cash flow; and
— Capitalisation approach.

Where independent valuations are undertaken prior to reporting date, the assumptions on which the valuation is based are
revigwad in light of the prevaiing market conditions at reporting date o ensure that any material change is reflected in the
vatuation.

Betails of the individual properties are sei out below. Investment properties are 100% owned except where indicated.
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inde- inde- Catrying
pendent  pendent Value

Valuation Valuation 2006 2005

Note Title Date $m e $m

Southern Cross Bast Tower, Melbourne, Victoria (759" i Freshold Mar-06 380.0 -
Commonwealth Bank Bullding, Brisbans, Qld i Freehold Jun-06 170.0 128.6
KPMG Tower, Sydney, NSYW (50%:) il Freshold Bec-05 122.5 116.3
ANZ Centre, Brisbane, Oid (B0%) i Frashold Jun-06 54.3 422
Ernst & Young Building, Perth, WA i Frashold Bac-0b 49.0 47.8
National Austrafia Bank House, Sydney, NSW {25%) % Frashold Bac-06 78.8 4.0
NREMA Centre, Sydnay, NSW (50%) {il Frashold Bec-06 140.0 139.1
15 Blue Street, North Sydnay, NSW §i Leasehold Jun-06 97.0 89,3
AMP Place, Brisbane, Old i Freehold Jun-06 1700 1191
111 Alinga Street, Canberra, ACT W t easshold Jun-06 55.0 bh.4
Jessie Street Centre, Parramatta, NSW {il Frashold Bec-05 180.0 1811
Goldfields House, Sydney, NSW i Freshold N/A N/A 2083.2
BankWest Tower, Perth, WA (50%;) i Fraehold Bec-0b 97.5 g2.5h
Defence Plaza, Melboume, Vic i Frashold NA N/A 650
King Street Whartf, Sydney, NSW {il Frashold Beac-0b 924 B1.7
Pittwater Place Shopping Centre, Sydney, NSW i Freshold Jun-06 71.5 B54.2
Great Western Super Centre, Keperra, Brisbane, Gld i Frashold Jun-06 56.0 500
Great Western Super Centre, Peachy Quarry, Qid i Freshold Jan-0& 8.5 9.2
Carfiton City Shopping Cendre, City Arcade, Perth, WA (50%} | Freehold Jun-06 57.2 510
Bracken Ridge Plaza, Brisbane, Gid i Fraehold Jun-06 22.0 200
{ atitude Retall, George Streat, Sydney, NSW {(50%) i Frashold Deac-05 99.0 -
Crw Devon & Durham Streets, Rosehill, Sydney, NSW §i Frashold Jun-08 570 53.8
Crw Cobait & Silica Streets, Carole Park, Brisbane, Gld i Frashold Jun-06 124 11.0
48 Randle Road, Mesandah, Brisbane, Gld i Frashold Jun-06 485 3.6
Lots 55 and 56 Rutland Avenue, Walshpool, Perth, WA i Freghold Jun-06 10.2 8.2
Luna Park Car Park, Sydney, NSW Leasehold Bac-05 17.0 23.5
Vale, WA v Frashold Mar-06 4.6 277
1,759.3
Impact of straight-lining of renial income disclosed as non-cutent recelvables B9

Total investment properties

A 25% of the interest in Southern Cross is disclosed as assets classiied as held for safe {refer 1o Note 7). The independent valuation was performed for Muitiplex
Property Trust and incorporates isase support provisions by the development manager. The value for the Group does not include e benefil of lease suppart
LIOASIoNS,

Namas of independent valuers

i Colliers International,

i CBRE.

it Jones Lang LaSaia,

v Wnight Frank.

v Sawills WA Py Ltd



9 interest bearing loans and borrowings

P

Secured

Froject facilities

Dabt faciities

Loans from external parties

Unsecured

Loans from associates
Cornvertible preferred securities
Project facilities

Total current interest bearing liabilities

Secured

Commercial mortgage backed securities
Datt faciiities

Froject facilities

{ @ss: Attributable fransaciion cost

Unsecured
L oans from associates
Froject facililies

Total non-current interest bearing Habilities

Total interest bearing liabilities

117

Consolidated
2006 2005
gm

336.4
21854

554.8

30.2
80.2

10.4
665.2

1,000.0
4410
120.6

(13.6)

1,548.0

13.1

184.7
197.8
1,745.8
2,411.0
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9 Interest bearing joans and borrowings corsiried

¥ gt i %
The Group draws down on certain project facliities as a result of entering into certain development and construction projects.
Thess project faciities are with certain banks and credit financial institutions and are secured by a first charge over certain
individual project’s assets including land and development costs.

4

Principat Consolidated
Carrying Value/
Factlity Utilised

2006 2008 20086 20058  interest

Facility Note $m P Bin $m Rate Maturity
Hank guaranieses and FEER:! B392.6 NA Generally subject
insurance bonds o annual review
Trust facilities
CMBS Series 1 i B37.0 8370 3MBBESW May 2008
+3.2% 1o +0.8%
CMBS Series 2 i 4630 483.0  SMBESW May 2010
+0.25% o +0.895%
Mudti-option faciity i bG0D 331.8  Referd May 2008
Debt facilities i 6513 3276 Prevaling market  June 2007~
rate Sept 2009
Project Faciliies B hrz.4 8417  Prevaiing markei  Sept 2006
rate May 2010
Loana from exiernal parties W - - Referv
Convertible prefered securities i 80.2 BO.2  742% Juby 2005
Less: Attributable transaction cost il - (13.6}
net of amaortisation}
3,585.3 3,007.3

* BRIV - Austrafian Dank bill gweap.
* BREM - Mew Zestand bank b swan.
i Beres 1is sscured by gight office buiidings and Series 2 by fowr office buildings and three retal centres. The rating is AARAARE/ALA 10 EBE-/BBEB-,

i Interest rate for the Mult-option facility are as follows:

AL BESW +0.65%, -1 80%
AL BKBM +2.55%—1.50%

i Interesi on loans is charged &t the pravaiting market rate. Maturily i in accardanscs with the undarlying project.

v The Group has ioans denomingted in Austratian dofiars and in other currencies. Inlerast on loans is charged at the prevaling marked rate, Matority iz o
accordance with underiving project. Praject facilities are procured from arange of sources fie banks, financial institutions etc} and structured in accordance
with the speciic requirernants of the underlving project. Fecoursa iz typically lirsited 10 the gssets of e individeal progact with Multipies Limited providing
inlarast servicing supgort i limited creumstances. Project facilies contain a range of termis and conditions typical wilh faciiies of ihis nature,

v Interesiis charged at 12%.

vi The corwertible greferred securilies were redeamed at face value pius acorued interest on 1 July 2005,

Interesl bearing borrowings am recognised initialy s far vaiue ess tha respective aliributaile ransaction coste. These costs are amortised over the pesiod
of e facility,

wi
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Consolidated

2006 2005
gm
0 Issued capital
i wed mrwd fully i
Siapled securities 2768569
Detalls Number of Shares tsgue Price Consolidated
3 sm
1 Judy 2004 Balance at the beginning
of the comparative year 5EE, 182,014
11 Nov 2004 o 7 Dec 2004 Ronin Acquisition 215,435,852 .0803
259 Dec 2004 institutional Placement 22,018,349 2.94975
5 Jan 2005 Ronin Acquisition 15,043,236 0.0803
28 Fel 2005 Distribution Reinvestment Plan 168,722,734 2.5535
30 Jdun 2005 Roberts Family Indemnity
{ess: Cost of issue
30 June 2065 Baiance at the end of the
comparative year 837,402,185
30 June 2066 Balance at the end of the
current year 837,402,185

fapled securities of the consolidated entity include shares in Multiplex Limited stapled with the units of Multiplex Property
Trust as listed on the ASX. The Trust's resulis are included in the Group as expiained in Note 1. Stapled securities have the
right to receive dividends distributions as declared and, in the event of winding up the Consclidated Entity, to participate in
the proceads from the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid up on shares held. Stapled
secirities entitle thelr holder 1o one vote either in person or by proxy, at a mesting of the Company.

information relating to the employee ownership plan, including detalls of shares issued under the schems, is set outin the
Remuneration Report.

1€ I8 no curvent on-market buyback.
Consolidated

2008 2005
Sm

11 Accumuiated profits/{losses)
Accumutated profitsdlosses) at the beginning of the year 554
Net profit attributable 1o stapled securityholders 843
Bividends and distributions recognised during the year (2071
Accumulated profits/{losses) at the end of the year {B4.4)
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Congolidated
2005
$m

2006

12 Minoerity interest

Intarest in:

Multiplex SITES Trust
Share capital
Retained profits

432.1
11.8

Multiplex Acurmen Prime Property Fund
Share capiial

443.9

443.9

Multiplex SITES represent Step-up Income-distributing
Trust-issued Exchangeable Securities. A fully pald security
in Mubtiplex SITES Trust is entitled o interest that is derived
by Multiplex SITES Trust being a non-cumulative, floating

ferrtio
tha right 1o initiate redemption of Multiplex

Hrdted circumstances:

— A breach of the restrictions imposed on stapled secusities,
where a priority distribution payment is not pald in full; or

— The occwrence of a winding-up event, with respect to efther
of the guarantors, the Trust (for as long as the Responsible
Entity of Multiplex SITES Trust is a member of the Multiplex
Group) or Multiplex Hybrid Investment Trust IMHIT) {for as
kong as MHIT Trustee s a memizer of the Multiplex Group.

The request for redemgption is effective and will be
implemented if made by helders who cumcdatively hold 5%
or more of Multiplex SITES on issue.

Upon redemption, holders will receive the aggregate of $100
plus the unpald distribution amount in cash.

bmuer rockernption
Subject to the approval of the Responsible Entity and the
Multiptex Group, the issuer may initiate redemption of al or

notice to holders, in the foliowing circumstances:

— The step-up date or the last day of each distribution periad
after the step-up date,

— Anincreased costs event;

— An accourding event;

—Where the Responsibie Entity of the Trust is no fonger a
member of the Muliiplex Group,

— A change of coriral event; or

— There are less than $50 million of Multiplex SITES remaining
on issue,

253 i G

Helders have no right 1o request exchange.
Sub
Multiplex Group, the issuer may initiate exchange of all or
some Mulliplex SITES for stapled securities in the same
circumstances as these whera the issuer may infliate
rademption.

The exchange process will be effectad on the reafisation
date.

if the issuer initiates one or more of redeem or exchangs,
then, i they do not redeem of exchange all Multiplex S{TES
then on issue, they may do 20 in such proportions as they
determing as long as they treat all holders squally.

The excﬁéngé. ratio is used to calculate the number of
stapled securities received by a holder on exchange of each

— The aggregate of the face value plus the unpaid distribution

amount: by

— The average of the dally volume weighted average sales price

of stapled securities sold o the ASX during the 20 business
days immediately before the realisation date, reduced by the
exchange discount of 2.5%.

in the case of a change of control event, the face value plus
the unpaid distribution amount will generally be divided by
97.5% of the offer price under the takeover bid or scheme
of arrangament.



13 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Detalls and estimated maximum amounis of contingent
assets and liabilities {for which no amounts are recognised in
the Financial Statements) are as follows:

{a} Contingent liabilities and contingent assels exist in respect
of guarantees and insurance bonds issued to clients and
guarantees received by Multiplex from its subcontractors
in ieu of cash retentions. The guarantess and bonds
issued io clients are secured by indemnities. Al of the
bank guarantees and bonds are received and issued in
Mutiiptex's ordinary course of business.

Bank guaraniees and insurance bonds outstanding at
30 June 2006 were:

Congolidated

2006 2005

$rm P

Bank guarantess outstanding 363.8
Insurance bonds outsianding 285.7
5385

ncrease in bank guarantses and insurance bonds partly
due to issuances in ieu of cash retentions and support
growth in the Group's order bock.

{t) I the ordinary course of business, the Group provides
rental guarantees and income support arrangements to
tenants and owners of various residential and commercial
buildings, in respect of which the Group is devaioping
or has completed development. These arrangements
require the Group entity 1o guarantee the rental income
of these properties for certain periods of time. As atthe
date of this report, the directors are of the gpinion that
based on the current sub-lease proposals and forecast
sub-lease commitments, fogether with the aliowances
made within the development budgets for these property
developments, adequate allowance has been made in
tha Fnancial Statements for these potential obligations.

fc} Contingent liabilities and contingent asseis existas a
consecuence of the arrangsments contained in the
Stapling Deed between the Company and Muitiplex Funds
Management Lid, as the responsible entity of the Multiplex
Property Trust. The stapling arrangement is described
further in Note 14.

{d) The Company and the Trust are called upon to give, in the
ordinary course of business, guarantees and indemnities
in respect of the performance of controlled entities,
associales and related parties of thelr contractual and
financial obiigations. The value of these guarantees and
indemnities is indeterminate in amount. Any known losses
have been brought to account.

{e} In the ordinary course of business, the Company and
the Trust, thelr controlied entities and associates become
involvad in iitigation, pertaining to normal design liability in

o)
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retation to completed design and construction projects,
normat confractor's liability in relation to construction
contracts, public liabiity, workers' compensation, elc,

the majority of which falls within the Group’s insurance
arrangements and/or contractual indemnities with
consultants and subcontractors. The Company and the
Trust, thelr controlled entifies and associates alsc becoms
involvad in contractual disputes in relation to property
development activities and property ownership issues.

Whilst the outcomes of these proceedings are uncertain,
cortingent fabiliies exist In respect of amounts not
specifically provided for, which, based on legal advice,
should not be material either individually or in the
aggragate,

In February 2005, the family of John © Roberts, the
founder and a Director of the Company, undertook o
indemnily the Company against any losses incurred by it
or the Wemisiey National Stadium Construction Project
{the Project) up o a maximum amount of $50 milkion.

As at 30 June 2005, the Company was of the opinion that
the loes on the Project could reasonably be expected 1o
exceed $50 million. The Company booked a provision

for loss against the Project and a recovery against the
Raberts Family Indemnity (the Indemnity) of 550 milion.

Under the tarms of the indemnity, should the final Project
cutcome {inclusive of the result of all claims made

against and by the Company) result in a ioss of less than
$50 million, the Company is required 1o repay the amount
by which amounts patd by the family exceed the final ioss.
Ary amounts paid by the Company in this regard would
be offsel by addiional revenue booked o the Project.

(g} Controfled entities of the Company have eritered into joint

venture arrangements under which the Contfrolled Entity
may ba jointly and severally iable for the liabifities of the
joint venture arrangement. The assets of each partnership
or joint venture vehicle are anticipated 1o be sufficient 1o
meat any such liabiliies.

(i In October 2004, the Group, together with its joint venture

partner, provided an indermnity to a third party in relation
to cartain tax related issues which may arise from the
Group's investment in a controlied entity. There has been
no quantification of any claim and no claims have been
made or received under the indemnity to date. On the
basis no ioss is expecied, the Group has not created any
provision in #s accounts for any potential fabilities that
may arise under this ndemnity.

As publicly reportad, ASIC is conducting an investigation
irdo the affalrs of the Company relating to the Wembley
National Stadium (Wembley) project in the United
Kingdom:. This investigation is cngoing and at the date of
this report it is not clear what, i any, financial impact this
investigation will have on the Company.
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14 Stapling arrangements

The Stapling Deed between Multiplex Funds Management
Limited, as the Besponsible Entity of the Trust, and the
Company, is dated 8 October 2003, i sets cut the terms

of the relationship between the Regponsible Bntity and the
Company in respect of the units in the Trust and the shares
in the Company that comprise the securities. The aspects of
that relationship with which it deals inciude the following:

— stapling: the units and shares will remain stapled uniess
special resolulions of stapled securityholders approve
unstapfing or unless stapling becomes unlawfu or prohibited
by the Listing Rules;

— co-operation and consultation: the Responsible Entity
and the Company agree o share accounting and other
information, and to co-operate in operating the Trust and
Company in providing information to investors, valuing

assels, preparing concise financial reports, holding mestings,

issuing securities and making distributions;

— dealings in securiies: unfts and shares may only be issued or

transferred as part of securities;

— acquisitions, disposals and borrowings: these require
consultation procedures batween the Besponsible BEntity and
the Company to be followed,

— sale of assets: the Company agrees to notity the Responsibie

invesiment criteria of the Trust and will reasonably consider
any proposals put 1o it by the Responsible Entity to purchasa
these assets;

— aliocation of issus price: the Responsible Entity and the
Company must agree what proportion of the issue price of
a security is allocated 10 each of the Trust and Company.
Generally, this is by reference 1o the respective market values
of the units and the shares (as determined by agreement
between the Responsible Entity and the Company);

— financial benefits: the Trust and the Company must provide ©

the other or its controfied entities upon reguest any financial
benefit which is requested;

—registers: these are 10 be kept jointly,
and the Company may consider the interests of holders of
securfties as a whole, not only the interests of the members
of the Trust and Company separately; and

— dispute resolution: | there are disagreements about stapiing
issues, the Responsible Entity and the Company must use
thair best efforts to resolve them and negctiate in good faith
befors instituting procesdings.

The stapled security structure will cease 1o operate on the
first to cocur of:

afther of the Company or the Trust resolving by special
resoltion in general mesting and in accordance with its
Constitution to terminate the stapling provisions; or

the winding up of sither the Company or the Trust.

The ASK reserves the right {but without Bmiting its absohus
discration to remove one or more entities with stapled
securities from the official list if any of their securifies cease
to be “stapled” together, or any squily securities of the same
class are issued by one entity which are not stapled to
equivalent secutities in the other entity or entities.

15 Explanation of transition to Australian equivalents
to IFRS

For alt perinds up to and inciuding the year ended 30 June
2005, the Group prepared iis Financial Statements in
accordance with Australian Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles {previous GAAR). These Fnancial Statements for
the year ended 30 June 2006 are the first the Consclidated

that comply with AIFRS applicable for periods baginning on
or after 1 July 2004 and the significant accounting policies
meeting those requirements are described In Note 1. In
praparing these Financial Statements, the Group has started
from an opening Balance Sheet as at 1 July 2004, the
Group's date of ransition fo AIFRS, and made those changes
in accounting palicies and other restalements required by
AASE 1 “First time Adoption of Australian Fquivalents 1o
interational Financial Reporting Standards”.

AASE 1 alfows first ime adopters certain exemptions from
the general requirements to apply AIFRS retrospectively. The
exemptions applied by the Group are explained in Note 1)



Expian

3

15

EEY

ation of transition

ELats EAR

Total equity under previous GAAFP

Bevelopment revenue recognition i
Net present valus adjustment o Roberts Family ndemnity it

Fair value adjustments i
Other i
White-back of gocdwill amariisation v
Tax on share issue cost

Tax effact Wi

Total equity under AIFRS

Net adjustment to equity

Total equity under AIFRS atfributable to:
Members of Multiplex Group
Mincrity inferest

30 dun 5B

MNote
{ed
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Consgolidated
1 Jul 04
gm

1,552.2

(159.9)

©.3)

1.0
3b.2

1,426.9

(125.3)

1.410.2
6.7

1,426.9

Net profit/{loss) before income tax expense as reported under previous GAAP

Bevelopment revenue recognition

Roberts Family indemnity

Adjusiments 1o goodwill amortisation

Fair value adiustments to investment properties
Other

Total AIFRS adjustments 1o net profit

income tax expense/bensfi) as reported under previous GAAR
Bevelopment revenue recognition

Hoberts Family Indemnity

Share ssus costs

Tax effect of stapiing sliminations

Other

income tax benefit under AFRS

Net profit/{loss) after income tax expense under AIFRS

Net adiustment 10 net profit after tax
Net profit attributable o members of Multiplex Group
Mincrity interasts

Consolidated
Year ended
30 Jun 05
gm
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Conaoclidated

Year ended
Note 30 Jun 05
{e) tm
Total equity under AIFRS at 30 June 2005
Adjustments o equity upon adoption of AASE 132 and 13%
Interest rate swaps qualifying for hedge accounting Vil
Cash flow hedges Vil

Total equity under AIFRS at 1 Judy 2005

Total equity under AIFRS at 1 July 2006 attributable for
Mambers of the Mutiplex Group
Minority interesis

eyt Fee b
EEREYRY T

2t £ wFET IR Lk
The adoption of AIFRS has not resulted in any material
adjustments fo the Cash Flow Statement.

B e Bae B e

Under previous GAAR, revenus and profits on the
development of apartments and residential property were
recognised on the percentage of completion basis, in
accordance with UIG 53 “Pre-completion Contracts for the
Sate of Rasidential Development Froperties™.

UG 53 has been withdrawn under AIFRS, and with no
AFHS equivalent which spechically addresses the issue

of revenue and profit recognition for the development and
sale of apartments and residential properties, development
properties are treated as inventory and are subject fo the
revenue recognition rules of AASE 118 “Revenue”.

AASEH 118 requires that revenue and profit be recognised
when the Group has transterred to the buyer the significant
rizks and rewards of the ownership of the property which
occurs on setffernent. As a resull, under AIFRS, the
recognition of revenue and profit are deferred untit the later
of sxchange and substantial completion.

The Roberts Family have granted an indemnity of up o

$50 mifion to the Group in respect of losses expectad to be
incurred by the Group on the Wembley Stadium construction
project. Under previous GAAR the amount of the indemnity
is classified as revenue in the year ended 30 June 2005, in
accordance with AASE 1004 "Revenue” and carried on the
Balance Sheet as a non-current receivabls,

Under AIFRS there is no specific guidance on the treatment
of such transactions. By applving the definitions of financial
Habilities and equity, the discounied value of the amount
receivable has been treated as additional contributed equily
in the Group, with no additional shares being issued.

AFRS requires rental income from operating leases to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. As many of the Group's operating leases with tenants
incorporate fixed annuat increases, an adjustment is made
each year o reflect the rental income arising from the
cumulative future fixed increases appiicable to the current
year, These amounts are included in rental income with a
corresponding asset shown as a component of the carrying
amount of rwastment properties.

in accordance AASE 140 “Investment Property” the
Group has the option o measure the value of investment
property using either depreciated historical cost or fair value
{after iniial recognition at costy. The Group has slected to
adopt the fair value mode, requiring investment property

1o be measurad at fair value, which is defined as “the

price at which the properiy could be exchanged between
knowledgeable, wiling parties in an anm's length transaction™,
raflecting market conditions at the reporting date.

Under previous GAAF, changes in the fair value of investrment
property wers recogrised in the asset revaluation reserve,
Under AIFRS any gains and losses that arise from the
change in falr value are recognised in the Income Statement
in the period in which they arise.

Goodwill represents the difference between the costof a
business combination over the net falr value of the identifiable
aseets, llabilities and contingent Habiliies acquired. Under
previcus GAAP, goodwill was amortised over an assumed
useful ife of 20 years.

cost less any accumalated impairment losses. Any goodwil
amortised under previous GAAP will be reversed and googwil
will be allocated to cash-generating units, where it wilt be
tested for impalrment on an annual basls in accordance with
the requirements of AASE 136 "Impainment of Assets”.



15 Explanation of transition to Australian equivalents
to IFRS coritirserd

Under AIFRS, the balance sheet method of tax sffect
accounting replaces the profif and loss method applied
vnder previous GAAR Undsr the balance sheet approach

of AASE 112 “Income Taxes” income tax on the Incoms
Siatement for the year consists of current and deferred taxes.
income tax will be recognised in the Income Siatement
except o the extent that it relates o flems recognised directly
i eguity, in which case i will be recognised in equily.

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet liability
method, providing for temporary differences between the
carrying amount of assets and llabilities for concise financial
reporting purpoeses and the amounts used for taxation
purposes. The amount of deferred tax provided will be
based on the expected manner of realisation of the asset
or settlement of the Rability, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at reporting date.

A deferred fax asset will be recognised only fo the axient
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be avallabie
against which the asset can be utilised. Deferred tax assets
will be reduced to the extent that it is no ionger probable that
the related tax benefit wil be reallssd.

Under AIFRS, the Group has slected to adopt the exemption
providad in AASE 1 “First-fime Adoption” which permits
entities to not apply the requirements of AASE 132 "Financial
instruments: Disclosure and Presentation” and AASE 130
“Financial Instruments: Hecognition and Measurement” for
the financial year ended 30 June 20056. As a result, there
were no acdjustments in relation to these standards for the
opening Balance Sheet as at 1 July 2004, or for the financial
year ended 30 June 20058, as previcus GAAP accounting
poficies continue o apply.

Urrealised gains on unexpired Interest rate coniracts that are
cash flow hedges are included in reserves as the contracts
hedge interest rate exposure and qualify for hedge accounting.

i b T
iiis brytl MR

The Trust Constitunon.has been amended by remaoving
refevant termination clauses and asscciated changes so that
unithoider funds can be class

G angeé in estimaies between the interm Financial Staternents
and the annual Financlal Statements have resulted in the
following changes to the previousty disclosed AIFRS numbers:

On adeption of AASE 112 “income Taxes" the balance sheet
method of calcuiation was adopted. This had the effect

of a reduction in the deferred tax batance of $16.4 million
{$11.2 miliion - June 2005, $5.2 mifion ~ June 2004} with the
carresponding adjustment made to retained earmings.

125

Upors review of the assumptions underlying the valuation

of the Vale property, it was determined that an adjustment
had been required to be made o the June 2005 investment
property value resuliing In a $10.0 million revision upwards
of the fair value of the investment property with the
corrasponding adjustment 0 retained earnings.

Further to a review of the Group's deferred tax position, there
were ceriain minor adjustments made to deferred tax assels
and Habilities balances with the corresponding adjustment

o retained earnings. Thess adjustments did not contributs
significantly to the Group's results for the financial year ended
30 June 2005,

18 Events occurring after the Balance Sheet date

On 22 June 2006, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Multiplex
Limfted, Muiticlex Capital Limited, lodged a product
disclosure statement for a new CBD office fund, the Multiplex
Acurnen Prime Property Fund {the Fund). The Fund is
seeking 10 ralse equity of $163 mifion {and may accept up
10 528 million in oversubscriptions) with a portiofio of assets
valuad at 3640 million. The Fund's portfclio will comgprise
the following investments; 100% of the new American
Express building at Sydney’s King Street Whart, currently
under development by Multiplex Developments and dus

for completion in December 2007, 509% of Ernst & Young
Cenire and b0 Goulburn Strest, World Sguare, Sydnay, 25%
of Southern Cross Tower, Melbourne, 100% of Defence
Flaza, Melbourne and a portfolic of listed property trust
securitias. The offer of units in the Fund opened on 10 July
2008 with frading expected 1o commence on the Australian
Stock Exchange on or around 15 September 2006, Multiplex
Froperty Trust will relain a cornerstons investment in the
Fund. Upon completion of the offer the net proceeds
racelad by Multiplex Group will altow for a reduction in
axisting borrowings.

On 17 August 2006, Multiplex Group announced the transfer
of the construction contract for the White City project inthe
United Kingdom to Westfield Group. Westfield wil assume
construction responsibifity for White City and will continue 1o
coliaborate with Multinlex Group on construction slements
for the duration of the project. The agreement with Westfield
provides for subcontractors currently engaged on the project
o be assigned to Wastfisld and for the secondment of
Mudtipiex UK Construction personnel directly engaged on the
project to Westfield. Under the agreement Multiplex will retaln
rasponsibility o deliver certain rall works in relation fo the
White City project.

Apart from the events noted above, there have been no
sigrificant events or ransactions that have arisen since the
end of the financial year, which in the opinion of the directors,
would affect significantly the operations of the Group, the
results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Group.



Directors’ Declaration 126
Multiplex Limited and its controlled entities

In the opinion of the directors of Multiplex Limited, the accompanying concise financial report, including the remuneration
disclosures that are contained in the Remuneration Report in the Directors’ Report, designated as audited, of the Group,
comprising Multiplex Limited and its controlied entities for the financial vear ended 30 June 2006, set out on pages 67 fo 126

{al has been derived from or is consistent with the full inancial report for the financial year; and
b} complies with Australian Accounting Standard AASES 1039 Concise Financial Reports.

The Directors have been given the declarations by the Chisf Executive Officer and Chief Financtal Gfficer required by section
2954 of the Corporalfons Act 2001,

This deciaration is made in accordance with a resoiution of the direcicrs.
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Andrew Roberts F AHan McBDonald

Multiplex Limited Muftipﬁ@x Limited

7 September 2006
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on concise financial report 1o the securityholders
of Multiplex

e

Scope
Tha o Y £ 5 i

WMidtiplex comprises the consolidation of Mufitpiex i_zmut@d {“the Compaf'}y " and its controlied entities, including Multiplex
Froperty Trust and s controlled entifies {the "Consclidated Entity”).

sk e % o .
e ranort, v et it

The concise financial report comprises the income staternents, statements of changes in equity, balance sheets,
statements of cash flows, and accompanying notes 1 o 16 and the directors' declaration set out on page 92 to 126 for the
Consclidated Bntity, for the year endad 30 June 2008,

As permitted by the Corporations Regulations 2007, the Consolidated Entity has disclosed information about the
rermuneration of directors and executives ("remuneration disclosures”), required by Australian Accounting Standard
AASE 124 Related Party Disclosures, on pages 75 to 89 of the directors’ report and not in the financial report.

The directors of Muftiplex Limited and the directors of the Responsible Entity of Mulliplex Property Trust, Muitiplex Funds
Management Limited {collectively referred 1o as “the directors™) are responsible for the preparation of the concise financial
report in accordance with Ausiralian Accounting Standard AASE 1038 “Concise Financial Beports”. This includes
responsibility for the maintenance of adequate accounting records and internal controls that are designed fo prevent

and detect fraud and error, and for the accounting policies and accounting estimates inherent in the concise financial
report. The directors Qe T8SPONS ibka for pi’@paring the relevant recoﬂciling information regard'tng the ad;ustmonts roquired

We conduct@d an independent audit in order to express an opinion 1o the securityholders of Muliiplex. Our audit was
conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards in order to provide reasonabie assurance as to whether the
concise financial report is free of materal misstaternent and that the remuneration disclosures comply with AASE 124,
The nature of an audit is influenced by faciors such as the use of professional judgement, selective testing, the inherent
Bmitations of internal controd, and the avallability of persuasive rather than conclusive evidence. Therefore an audit cannot
guarantee that all material misstatements have been detected. We have also performed an independent audit of the full
financial report of the Company and its controfled entities for the year ended 30 June 2008, Our audit report on the full
financial report was signed on 16 August 20086, and was not subject o any qualification.

We performed procedures in respect of the audit of the concise financial report to assess whether, in all material respects,
the concise financial report is presented falrly in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASE 1039 “Concise
Financial Reporis”,

We formead our audit opinion on the basis of these procedures, which included:

— festing that the information in the conclse financial report is consistent with the full financial report, and
— exarnining, on a test basis, information o provide evidence supporting the amounts, discussion and analysis, and other
disclosures, which were not directly derived from the full financial report.

While we considered the effectiveness of management's internal controfs over financial reporting when determining the
nature and exient of ouy proceduwres, ow audit was not designed o provide assurance on internal controls,
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independence
In conducting cur audit, we followed applicable independence requirements of Australian professional ethical
proncuncements and the Corporatfons Act 2001,

Audit opinion
In our opinion, the concise financial report of Multiplex for the year ended 30 June 2006 complies with Australian Accounting
Standard AASE 1039 “Concise Financial Beports”.
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Multiplex Group stapled securities trade on the Australian Stock Exchange under the symbcl "MXG". The securities were first
listed on 2 December 2003 with the home exchange being Sydney.

Number of issued securilies 837,402,185
Securityholder distribution ranges {as at 18 August 2006)

Nurnber Number Percentage
Harige of Holders of Securities (%)
1-1000 4,740 12,836,957 .33
10015000 10,544 28,480,575 3.40
B0CG1-1000G 2,697 20,200,985 249
10C0T-100G00 1,452 32,601,147 3.89
100001 and over 113 753,273,027 8095
Total 19,546 837,402,185 100.00

The numbear of security investors holding less than a marketalsie parcel of 141 securities ($3.57 on 18 August 2006) is 426 and
they hold 30,956 securities.

Top 20 securityholdings {as at 18 August 2008}

Number Percentage
MName of Securities of Issued {%)
Roberts Family Nominees Pty Lid 214,620,570 25,63
Wastpac Custcdian Nominees Limited 91.877.788 10.97
National Nominees Limited 89,350,008 10.687
JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 75,683,091 9.03
Citicorp Nominees iy Limited 40,626,704 4.84
ANZ Norminees Limited 25,043,585 299
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 22 413,72 268
Widllie Group Pty Lid 20,000,600 2.39
OCHEC Nominees (Australia) Pty Ltd 19,002,000 2.27
HSHEC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 18,415,010 2.20
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 15,180,260 1.81
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 12,215,137 1.46
Cilicorp Nominges Pty Limited 11,343,257 1.35
Cogent Nominees Fiy Limited 10,808,613 1.29
Whllie Group Py Lid 10,600,000 119
Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 9,103,375 1.09
Victorian WorkCaver Authority 5,424,850 G.65
UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominess Pty Lid 4,425,219 0.53
Hond Street Custodians Limited 4,368,097 0.52
Transport Accident Commission 3,611,985 0.43
Total 703,328,260 83.99
Substantial securityholding notices have been received by the Group from:

Number Percentage
Mame of Securities of lssued {36}
Roberts Family Nominees Pty Lid 214,625,570 268.63

Commonweaith Bank of Australia 79,418,320 945
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Securityholder domicile report {as at 18 August 2008)
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Number Nurnber Percentage
Domicile of Holders of Securities {%40)
ACT 424 1,610,330 0.20
NSW 711 282,112,304 33.69
NT B4 PAG,B24 0.03
;D] 2,380 .672177 1.3
SA 1,031 4,976,803 0564
TAS 312 1,381,208 017
VIC 4,490 268,511,223 3206
WA, 3,431 264,461,224 2168
Overseas 303 2.428,880 0.28
Total 18,546 837402185 100.00

On-market buyback

There is no current on-market buyback program.
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Key dates

Date* Evert
1 November 2006 Annual General Meeting
18 December 2606 Half Year Distribution Estimate Anncunced

28 December 2006

Record Date for Haif Year Distribution Entitlement

22 February 2007

Announcement of Halt Year Resulis

26 February 2007

Payment of Half Year Distribution

20 June 2007 Fudl Year Distribution Estimate Announced
28 June 2007 Record Date for Full Year Distribution Entitlement
16 August 2007 Announcement of Full Year Results

31 August 2007

Payment of Full Year Distribution

* Plaase nole that these dates are indicative only and may Be subject 1o change.

Online access

You can access information about your Multiplex Group
holding via the “Investors” section of the Multiplex Group
wehsite at www.muitiplex.biz which provides a wide varisgty
ot holding informaticn. You can also update your details
cniine or download a range of additional forms {(including
Change ot Name or Address forms) from this site.

Services available online include:

— Check your current and previous holding balances;
- Choase your preferred annual report option;

- Update your address details’;
- Update your bank details®;

- Confirm whether you have lodged your Tax File Number
(TN}, Australian Business Number (ABN) or exemption:
- Enter your email address and updale your communications

preferences;
— Subscribe to email announcements;
- Check transaction history;
- Check the security price; and

- Download a variety of instruction forms.

1. dmsuey sponsored holders onky,

incted Nolders onky.

Security Registrars contact details
[{ you have any queries regarding your investment, please
contact our security registrars:

Link Market Services Limited

Level 12, 680 George Street

Sydney NSW 20006

Locked Bag Al4

Sydney South NSW 1235

Tetephone (within Australia) 1800 68 54 55
Telephone [outside Australia): +61 2 8280 7141
fracsimile: -+61 2 9287 0303

Email: registrars@iinkmarkstservices.com.au
Website: www linkmarketservices.com.au
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Distribution history
Distribution Medtipex Multiplex Tax
Limited Property Trust Betarred
Dividend Bistribution Y%
June 2006 - 17.5 cents 12
Decembaer 2006 - B cents 17
June 2005 - 14 cents 40
Decamber 2004 8.22 cents 7.53 cents 26
January 2064 200 cents - -
June 2004 6.79 cents 584 canta 32

fnvestor communications

Multiplex Group continually strives to improve its
ervironmental performance and securityholders are
encouraged 1o assist with this effort. In a bid to reduce
paper wastage and costs, securityholders are automatically
sent a concise annual report in lieu of a full annual report.

Through the electronic investor service, securityholders
are given the opportunity 1o recelve annual and half
yearty reports electronically, While the savings on print
and mail costs for the Group are considerable, the best
outcome is the reduced impact on the environment.,
Multiplex is also pleased to inform you of the continuation
of cur environmental initiative in partnership with Clean
Up Australia Lid, The Group has again agreed to pay $4
to the not-for-profit organisation, Clean Up Australia, for
each securityholder wha elected o become an electronic
invesicrn As a result of this campaign, we weare able to
donate approximately $20,000 fo Clean Up Australia.

Ifyou are a securityhelder, i is not too late 1o elect to become
an electronic investor, Simply visit the securfty registry in

the “nvestors” section of cur website www.muliiplex.biz) o
Update your details online or contact cur security registrars,
Link Market Services Limited.

About Clean Up Australia

Clean Up Australia supports and faciliiates practical
action and environmentally efficlent sclutions aimed at
addressing the critical issues of water paliution, water
conservalion, waste management, resource re-use,
recycling and remanufacturing.

Pacple from all sectors of the community, including schoci
children, community graups, snvironmeantal groups,
governments, businesses, sporting and recreational groups
are all actively involved with Clean U Australia's programs
cn an ongoing basis. In the past 16 years, Australians

have devoted mare than eight million hours towards the
environmant through Clean Up Australia Day and collected
over 200,000 tonnes of rubbish,

After gaining the support of the United Nations Environment
Frogramme, Clean Up the World was launched in 1993,
The appeal of Clean Up the World {more than 35 millicn
people from 120 countries annually take part) has
demonsirated that this simple Australian idea has universal
appeal and the health of the environment is of concern to
people and communities worldwide.
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